







#### **OWNERSHIP STATEMENT**

This document, the data contained in it and copyright therein are owned by Bayer CropSciences No part of the document or any information contained therein may be divelosed to any third

Le biséd on unpublished essement indertaken bythe registator a du grant amétid, objeneva registration on the a du grant amétid, objeneva registration on the a du grant amétid, objeneva registration are bised, a du grant amétid, objeneva re The summaries and evaluations contained in this document are based on unpublished proprietary data submitted for the purpose of the assessment undertaken burk authority. Other registration authorities should and based on the summaries of the su Intersummaries and evaluations contained in this document are based on unpublished proprietary data submitted for the purpose of the assessment undertaken by the regulators authority. Other registration authorities should not grant, amend, op renew a registration basis of the summaries and evaluation of unpublished proprieters.



## Version history

	v er stott mistor y	
Date	Data points containing amendments or additions <sup>1</sup> and brief description	Document identifice and
	 (*a,	
<sup>1</sup> It is suggested that SANCO/10180/201	applicants adopt a similar approach to showing revisions and vectors 3 Chapter 4 How to revise an Assessment Report.	history as offlined in the second sec



#### **Table of Contents**

	Table of Contents	- ° .
		ų þ
	۲×۲	age
CA 7 FATE A	AND BEHAVIOUR IN THE ENVIRONMENT	5
CA 7.1 Fate an	d behaviour in soil	Ç. 6
CA 7.1.1	Route of degradation in soil	8 🔊
CA 7.1.1.1	Aerobic degradation	8
CA 7.1.1.2	Anaerobic degradation	, <b>25</b> a,
CA 7.1.1.3	Soil photolysis	.33
CA 7.1.2	Rate of degradation in soil	33 💭
CA 7.1.2.1	Laboratory studies	38
CA 7.1.2.1.1	Aerobic degradation of the active substance	238
CA 7.1.2.1.2	Aerobic degradation of metabolites, breakdown and reaction products	
CA 7.1.2.1.3	Anaerobic degradation of the active substance	53
CA 7.1.2.1.4	Anaerobic degradation of metabolites, breakdown and reaction products	
CA 7.1.2.2	Field studies	254
CA 7.1.2.2.1	Soil dissipation studies.	54
CA 7.1.2.2.2	Soil accumulation studies	57
CA 7.1.3	Adsorption and desorption in soil.	57
CA 7.1.3.1	Adsorption and desorption	57
CA 7.1.3.1.1	Adsorption and desorption of the active substance.	58
CA 7.1.3.1.2	Adsorption and desorption of metabolites, breakdown and reaction products	59
CA 7.1.3.2	Aged sorption	69
CA 7.1.4	Mobility in soil	69
CA 7.1.4.1	Column leaching studies	69
CA 7.1.4.1.1	Column leaching of the active substance	69
CA 7.1.4.1.2	Column leaching of metabolites, breakdown and reaction products	70
CA 7.1.4.2	LavimeteOstudies	71
CA 7.1.4.3	Field leaching studies	74
CA 7.2 Fate an	d behaviour in water and sediment	74
CA 7.2.1	Route and rate of degradation in aquatic systems (chemical and photochemical	
2	degradation)	76
CA 7.2 (1)	Hydrotytic degradation	76
CA 7.2.1.2	Direct photochemical degradation	77
CA 7.2.1.3	Indirect photochemical degradation	77
CA 7.2.2	Route and rate of biological degradation in aquatic systems	80
CA 7.2.2.1	"Ready biodegradability".	80
CA 7.2.2.2	Aerobic mineralisation in surface water	80
CA 7.2.2.3	Water/sedimentstudy	83
CA 7.2.2	Irradiated water/sediment study	85
CA 7.2,3	Degradation in the atura of zone.	86
CA 73 Fate an	d behavion in air.	87
CA 7.3.1	Boute and rate of degladation in air	88
CA 7.3.2	Transport vie air	88
CA 7.3.3	Local and global effects	88
CA 7.4 Definiti	or of the gesidues.	89
CA 7.4.4 🖉 🔬	Definition of the residue for risk assessment	89
CA 7.4.2	Definition with residue for monitoring	89
CA 75 Monito	ring data S	89
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	- ~	
õ		



#### CA 7 FATE AND BEHAVIOUR IN THE ENVIRONMENT

Data on the fate and behaviour of Thiacloprid in soil, water, sediment and air were submitted within the EU Dossier (Baseline Dossier), which resulted in the Annex I inclusion under Directive 91/414/EEC in 2004 (SANCO/4347/2000 – Final; 13 May 2004). In the Supplemental Dessier for renewal of approval of Thiacloprid only those environmental fate studies which were not submitted within the Baseline Dossier are described in sections 7.1 to 7.5. However, for a better understanding of the behaviour of Thiacloprid in soil, water and sediment, and air, short submitted in the first EU evaluation (summarised in the EU Monograph Annex B8) are given additionally in this summary in sections CA 7.1, CA 7.2 and CA 7.3. To differentiate between studies already evaluated during the last Onex F listing and new studies, the references or author's given in tables are written in grey for studies already evaluated and in black for new studies.

The proposed residue definitions for each compartment are given in CA 7

For Thiacloprid no new studies were performed with respect to monitoring of soft, surface water, ground/drinking water, sediment and air. From the studies found in published literature one article with respect to monitoring of surface water is regarded as providing adequate supportive information (see CA 7.5). In this literature study the detected concentration of Thicclopric in surface water was lower than the predicted environmental concentrations for the representative uses of Thiacloprid.

The studies concerning the fate and behaviour of This lopric. In the environment were conducted using radiolabelled as well as unlabelled parent compound. The three offerent radiolabel positions used are regarded as adequate to define the coute of degradation of This loprid.

The structure of Thiacloprid and the 14 Cradio abelling used as for thows:



The results of studies are summarized in the following sections, the proposed degradation pathways in soil, water and sediment are given in Figure 7.1.1 and Figure 7.2-1, respectively.

In addition, studies have been performed with the following radiolabelled or non-labelled major degradation products: YRC 2894-amile (MW2), YRC 2894-des-cyano (M29), YRC 2894-sulfonic acid<sup>-</sup> No<sup>-</sup> (M30), YRC 2894-sulfonic acid amile (M34) and YRC 2894-thiadiazine (M46). If applicable, the labelling position used is indicated by \*:





In original reports study authors may have used different names or codes for digradation products of Thiacloprid. In this summary, a single name or a single code is used for each degradation product. A full list containing structural formula, various tames, short forms, codes and occurrences of degradation products is provided as Document N3.

## CA 7.1 @ Fate and beha four in soil

The route of degradation of Thiacloprid in soil has been investigated in a set of three laboratory studies using different soils. Thiacloprid was found to be rapidly degraded and thoroughly metabolised in soil under aerobic conditions. The formed major metabolites YRC 2894-amide (M02), YRC 2894-des-cyano (M29), and SRC 2894-sultonic acid<sup>-</sup> Na<sup>+</sup> (M30) are further degraded to carbon dioxide and NER, and, therefore. The not accumulate in Soil. The compounds YRC 2894-sulfonic acid amide (M34) and YRC 2894-thiadiazine (M46) found in the reachables of lysimeter studies is included in the residue definition for ground water risk assessment although it was not found as a major metabolite in the route of degradation studies.

Anaerobic and photolytic experiments were performed with [<sup>14</sup>C]-Thiacloprid in soil. However, these routes of degradation do not change the before mentioned residue definition for soil and ground water risk assessment. Under an aerobic soil comptions Thiacloprid disappears quickly to form YRC 2894-amide which degraded only moderately and no further major metabolite occurs. Photo-degradation on soil surface has no relevance compared to the fast degradation in the dark.

The proposed degradation papeway in soil is shown by <u>Figure 7.1.1.1-1</u>. For a summary of kinetics of degradation is soil see <u>Table 7.1-1</u> and <u>Table 7.1-2</u>.

An updated kinetics evaluation of the field dissipation studies performed with Thiacloprid (6 trials performed in Northern Europe, 2 trials in Southern Europe) according to FOCUS kinetics (2006) is submitted in order to derive kinetic parameters suitable for modelling purposes and environmental risk assessments. This data are also included in <u>Table 7.1-1</u> and <u>Table 7.1-2</u>.



Ø1

#### Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid

In general no difference between lab and field degradation data was indicated. Therefore, it was justified to combine both data sets for the overall evaluation.

DT<sub>50</sub> values and maximum occurrences of Thiacloprid and its major degradation products in solution be used as modelling input values for the calculation of PEC<sub>soil</sub> values are summarized in Table 7.1-A Since for such calculations the overall worst case values should be taken a warst case non-normalized field DT<sub>50</sub> value of 13.7 and 321.1 days is used to describe the degradation of Thiaclopric and M2 in such calculations.

Table 7.1- 1:	Key substance specific	input parameters	of Thiacloprid	and its a	pietabolites 🔗
	for calculating PEC <sub>Soil</sub>		Á Č	V Q	Ô S

	-	4° 20'	0 1. 6	
Compound	Worst case DT <sub>50</sub> non-normalized	Maximum occurrence in soil	Molar mass	Molar mass
	[days] 🔍	<u></u>	√ [g/mø₽	°∕y factor
Thiacloprid	13.7 )* ©	j č100 č s	P 2 <i>5</i> 07.7 "	<u>A</u> 1
YRC 2894-amide (M02)	321.1 🖄 , 🕜	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	270.7 O	Q.0712
YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30)	97.6	~ <sup>y</sup> 195 <sup>2</sup>	<u></u> 0336.&	1.332
YRC 2894-des-cyano (M29)	7 <b>89</b> .3 <sup>)#</sup>	_@`3¥.2 <sup>)1</sup> _O <sup>™</sup>	227,9	2 0. <b>96</b> 11
*: worst case non-normalized field D'	T <sub>50</sub> value			, Q

non-normalized laborator

given in section CA 7.1.3.4. Table 7.1- Summarizes the adsorption parameters in soil to be used for modelling purposes. On the basis of the batch adsorption studies thiacloprid is classified as moderately to slightly mobile and there is no evidence that it dissociates at environmentally relevant pH. YRC 2894-amide (M02) is classified as moderately mobile and VRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30) is classified as very probile to mobile. There is no explence that soll pH influences the adsorption of either Thiacloprid or the metabolites YRC 2894-antide (M02) and YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30). On the basis of new batch adsorption studies YRC 289 des-control (M29) is classified as having low mobility, YRC 2894-sulfonic acted amide (M34) and YRC 2894-thuadiazine (M46) are classified as being very mobile in soil.

The key substance parameters to be used for the calculation of PECGW values are summarized in the following Table 7. 2. For groupdwater exposure assessments the lysimeter metabolites YRC 2894sulfonic acid amige (M34) and RC 2894-thradiazine (M40) are also considered. This was concluded during the first data Saluation by the EU which resulted in the Annex I inclusion under Directive 91/414/EEC @ 2004 (SANOO/4347/2000 >> Final, 13 May 2004).

Ì

#### Ô Key substance specific input parameters of Thiacloprid and its metabolites Table 7.4 for calculating PECow

Compound	Formation	DT50	Koc <sup>)2</sup>	Kom <sup>)2</sup>	FREUNDLICH)2
	fraction	[days]	[mL/g]	[mL/g]	exponent
Thiacloprid	1.0	5.4 <sup>)1</sup>	615.0	357.0	0.880
YRC 2894-appride (M02)	× · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	41.3 <sup>)1</sup>	293.0	170.0	0.830
YRC 2894 Sulfonic acid (M30)	∞ <sup>3</sup> 0.80 <sup>)2</sup>	15.6 <sup>)1</sup>	20.2	11.7	0.940
YRC 2894 thiadiazine (M46)	<b>0.44</b> <sup>)5</sup>	19.8 <sup>)3</sup>	9.6	5.6	0.960
YRC 2894-des ano (\$129)	0.23 )2	140.7 <sup>)3</sup>	371.0	215.0	0.840
YRC 3894-suffonic foid amide (M	$(134)$ $0.56^{-)2}$	48.8 <sup>)4</sup>	7.0	4.1	1.000

<sup>1</sup>: Median of complete data set of normalized lab and field DT<sub>50</sub> values.

<sup>)2</sup>: Arithmetic mean of data set.

<sup>)3</sup>: Geometric mean of lab data set.

<sup>)4</sup>: Worst case of lab data set.

<sup>)5</sup>: Worst case assumption that M30 can only degrade to M34 and M46.



#### CA 7.1.1 Route of degradation in soil

The route of degradation of Thiacloprid in soil has been investigated in a set of three laboratory studies using different soils. Thiacloprid was found to be fast degraded and thoroughly metabolised in soil under aerobic conditions. The formed major metabolites YRC 2894-amide (M02), YRC 2894-descyano (M29) and YRC 2894-sulfonic acid<sup>-</sup> Na<sup>+</sup> (M30) are further moderately degraded to carbon dioxide and non-extractable residues (NER), and, therefore, do not accumulate in soil. The compounds YRC 2894-sulfonic acid amide (M34) and YRC 2894-thiadiazine (M46) found in the leachates of lysimeter studies are included in the residue definition for ground water risk assessment open though they were not detected as major metabolites in the route of degradation studies.

Anaerobic and photolytic experiments were performed with [<sup>14</sup>C]. Thiaeloprid in soil However, both that routes of degradation do not change the residue definition. For soil and ground water fisk assessment. Under anaerobic soil conditions Thiaeloprid disappears rapidly to form YRC 2894 anide (M02) which is moderately degraded and no further major metabolite accurs. Photo-degradation on soil surface has no relevance compared to the fast degradation in the dark.

The proposed degradation pathway in soil is shown by <u>Figure 7.01.1-1</u>, a compilation of formation fractions for the metabolites derived from the different data sets is given by <u>Take 7.1.01.2-10</u>.

#### CA 7.1.1.1 Aerobic degradation

The route of degradation of Thracloprid in soil under aerobic conditions in the laboratory was evaluated during the Annex I inclusion (compare EU Monograph, Annex B8), and was accepted by the European Commission (SONCO/3347/2000 – Final; 19 May 2004). The following study included in the Baseline Dossier was regarded as relevant during the Annex I inclusion.

		, OY		, S	$\sim$			~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	
Author(s)	×,	Ô C			d L	× ~~	Å.	<sup>∞</sup> Year	Document No.
, R.,		, W. 🗸	Ô	4		ð		1998	M-001076-02-1
	8	×	×	a s	0	(	Ø _ 'Ø		

#### Summary of study performed by R., R.

The study conducted under standardized laboratory conditions in 4 different soils (sand, loamy sand, loamy silt, and sandy loan) with [methylene<sup>44</sup>C]-Thiaclored at rates equivalent to 300 to 350 g as/ha.

Thiacloprid was found to be thoroughly metabolised in soil and rapidly degraded to <sup>14</sup>CO<sub>2</sub> under aerobic conditions. The total mineralisation of Phiacloprid steadily increased in all soils, although the microbial bromass was markedly reduced during the incubation period. Depending on the type of soil the mineralisation reached 6.3% to 33.6% of the applied amount after 100 days and 24.7% after 365 days in the sandy loath. Other volable metabolites have not been found. The total recovery of radioactivity ranged from 91.9 to 103.8% of the applied amount.

The test substance was metabolised via formation of the amide and cleavage of the thiazolidine ring to  ${}^{14}CO_2$ . During the inclubation period more than 8 intermediates were observed. Five metabolites were identified, Major metabolites (\* 10% of the applied radioactivity, AR) were the YRC 2894-amide (M02) and YRC 2894-sulford acid (M30). All other degradation products accounted for less than 5.7% of AR during the course of the study. The metabolite YRC 2894-des-cyano (M29) formed at a maximum of 5.7% on this study is newly included in the residue definition.

Depending on the soil type YRC 2894-amide (M02) made up a maximum of 73.8% of the AR. In the sandy soil (BBA 2.1) YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30) accounted for 19.7% of AR. However, in the other soils this metabolite did not exceed a maximum value of 8.5% of AR.



#### Page 9 of 90 2014-10-15

#### **Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment** Thiacloprid

The degradation of Thiacloprid is essentially based on hydrolysis and oxidation reactions. Breakdown of the molecule starts by addition of water to the nitrile group under formation of the amide. Cleavage of the thiazolidine ring is also a major degradation step probably by addition of water to the mino group and ring opening followed by rapid oxidation of the sulphur to form the sulform acid. Desalkylation of the tertiary amino group results in M32 which is hydrolysect to the urea compound M31. Oxidation at the methylene bridge also occurs (M33), and is certainly a general reaction for the formation of 6-chloronicotinic acid (M03) which was however not detected in the main study, but could also be formed from M29 and M31. In combination with other study data and evaluations (seein the following) the metabolic pathway shown in Figure 7.7.1.1-1 is proposed.

The study evaluated in the base-line dossier was not regarded as sufficient to describe the patte of Thiacloprid degradation in soil. To determine whether a different foute of degradation was observed in the lysimeter studies a further study has been performed using the lysimeter soil as test system free , E.; 2003). This study is submitted within this Supplementary dossign °

Additionally, a new core metabolism study performed with the radio bel placed in the 2nd ring of parent molecule was regarded as necessary. It is submitted within this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval (see <u>Resulting</u> from the new studies no further degradation products were found, however the amount of metabolites formed was different in the new route of degradation study. To enable groundwater risk assessment additional rate of degradation studies with some metabolites were performed.









Report:	KCA 7.1.1.1 /03;, E.; 2003 🖉
Title:	Aerobic Degradation/Metabolism of Thiacloprid (YRC2894) in Soil
	AXXa.
Report No:	MR-433/02
Document No:	M-106754-01-1
Guidelines:	Official Journal of the European Communities, No. 1772 (EN), Jup 22, 95.
	Commission Directive, 95/36/EC, arounding Councy Directive 91/414/EEC,
	7171/VI/94-EN, 7.1.1 Route and Rate of Degradation.
	SETAC-Europe: Procedures for Assessing the Chvironmental Fate and
	Ecotoxicity of Pesticides, March 1995, Part Q Section 1.1
	German BBA Guideline, Part IV, 4-1, 1986
GLP:	Yes v v v v v

#### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

The route and rate of [methylene-<sup>14</sup>C]-Thiacloprid degradation was studied in one soil under acrobic conditions in the dark in the laboratory for 120 days at 20±1 C and 49% of respective maximum water holding capacity. The test was conducted in soil **16** and **16** 

At each sampling interval, the soil was extracted 3 times by shaking with methanol at room temperature, and additionally, the the low extractability portions were further extracted with methanol/water (50/50) for about 1 hour under reflits conditions. The radioactivity was determined in all samples and the extracts analysed by TPC- and HPLC-radio detection methods. Metabolites were identified by mass spectroscopy and by comparison with authentic reference compounds. Volatile radioactivity was trapped using soda time and released for measurement by adding HCl for <sup>14</sup>CO<sub>2</sub> (identified by Grignard reaction) or stracting the form plugs with ethyl acetate for radio assaying by LSC.

Investigation of the route of degradation showed that Thiacloprid is well degraded and mineralised in the tested soil incubated under standardised aerobic laboratory conditions in the dark. Complete material balances found at the sampling intervals demonstrated that there was no significant loss of radioactivity from the test systems or during sample processing. During the study the total recovery of radioactivity (RA) in individual test respects ranged from 103.8% to 97.1% of applied radioactivity (AR), and the mean was 100.0% (SD 1.6%).

The total mineralisation of [methylene<sup>44</sup>C] Thiacloprid to carbon dioxide reached 10.2% of AR during the testing period of 120 days. Formation of volatile organic compounds (VOC) was insignificant. The non-extractable residues (NER) exceeded a maximum portion of 28.0% at DAT-49, and declined to 24:9% of KR until DAT-120. Since relevant proportions of steadily increasing <sup>14</sup>CO<sub>2</sub> and NER were observed this indicates that the NER formed from the parent is a major part of its entire route of degradation in soil, and that NER formation is not caused by an inadequate extraction of parent from the soil matrix.

The comparatively fast degradation resulted in the following degradation products in soil:





CO <sub>2</sub> (10.2%, DAT-120) NER (28.0%, DAT-49)	
<b>YRC 2894-amide</b> (KKO 2254) (70.2%, DAT-5)	<b>YRC 2894-sulfonic acid</b> (WAK (11.3%, 11.3%, 11.3%)
CI N N NH2	$\left \begin{array}{c} \begin{array}{c} & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & & \\ & & & $
<b>YRC 2894-des-cyano</b> (KTU 3072) (5.5%, DAT-120)	

It is concluded from this study that Thiaclopfild is degraded rapidly in soft **Mathematical AXXa** with a simple first order  $DT_{50}$  of 13 days when incubated under aerobic conditions at 20°C. The formed major metabolites (YRC 2894-amile (M62), YRC 2894-sulfonic acid(M29) and YRC 2894-des-cyano (M30)) are further moderately degraded and, therefore, do not accumulate in soit. For more details on kinetics of degradation see Section (20, 7.1.20).

Formation of significant amounts of non-extractable residues and carbon dioxide indicates a participation in the natural carbon cycle of soil and the potential for a complete mineralisation of Thiacloprid. Thacloprid and its degradation products have the potential for accumulation in the environment.

### I. MATERIALS AND METHODS

#### A. Test Item

[Methylene- <sup>14</sup> C]-ØRC 2894:	BECH 0527 (synthesis: KMQ 2358)
Specific Radioactivity	3.7 MBq/mg (10 puCi/mg)
Radiochemic Purity	8% (acc. to radio-HPLC and TLC, protocol BECH 0527)
Chemical <u>purity</u> :	97.6% face. to HPLC V at 210 nm, protocol BECH 0527)

## B. Test System

The study was carried out using soil **CA** (7.1.4.2). The soil was taken from an agricultural use area. The plant protection product use history of the soal is known for at least 5 years. The characteristics of test soil are given in following table.



Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid

Table 7.1.1.1- 2:Physico-chem	nical characteristics of test soil <b>AXXa</b>
Parameter	Results/Units
Texture Class (USDA)	Sandy loam
Sand (2,000 - 50 µm)	72.4%
Silt (<50 - 2 µm)	22.6%
Clay (<2 µm)	5.0%
	(64% Illite, 19% Kaolinite, 17% VermicaTite/Chlorite)
pH	7.2 (water), 6.3 (CaCl 6.4 (KCl)
Organic Matter <sup>1)</sup>	
Organic Carbon	
Microbial Biomass Activity <sup>2)</sup>	Initial (DAT-0): 499 (without a 3), 330 (with a s)
[mg microbial C /kg dry wt]	Final (DAT-120): 129 (without a.s.), 186 (with a.s.)
Cation Exchange Capacity	$8 \text{ meq}/100 \text{ g}^{\text{S}}$
WHC <sub>max</sub>	34.42 g water / 10@soil (DM)
Bulk Density (disturbed)	2.5 g/cm 2 6 6 6 A 6
<sup>1)</sup> % organic matter = % organic carbon x	1.724 A O O O O O

<sup>2)</sup> Determinations were performed using wet soi 

#### II. STUDY DESIGN

#### A. **Experimental Conditions**

The soils were sampled freshly from the fields (upper horizon of to 20 cm) and signed to a particle size of  $\leq 2$  mm. Description of soil collection and storage is given in Appendix 2 of the report.

Static test systems (300-ml Erlenmeyer glass flasks for degradation in soil under aerobic conditions were used as incubation vessels. Each flask was fitted with a trap attachment permeable for oxygen) containing soda lime for absorption of carbon dioxide and a polyurethane (PU) foam plug for adsorption of volatile organic compounds (VQC).

For preparation of the test systems, 100 g dry weight equivalents of the sieved soils were weighed into each flask. Sort monsture was adjusted to approx. 49% of the maximum water holding capacity (MWHC) for the individual test systems by addition of de-ionized water, taking into account the water content of the application solution. The flasks were then fitted with above-mentioned trap attachments. The universe dest systems were equilibrated to study conditions for some days prior to application. For detailed information on experimental design see also Table 2 and Table 3 of report.

A study application rate of 510 µg per 100 g soil dry weight was applied. An aliquot of 147 µL of aqueous [<sup>14</sup>C]-Thiacloprid application solution finally containing 7.2% of organic solvent (ACN) was applied drop-wise onto the Soil surface of the respective equilibrated test systems using a pipette.

After application, the test vessels (except DAT-0 samples) were fitted with trap attachments and placed into a temperature-compolled walk to climatic chamber for incubation. The soil moisture was maintained since water loss from evaporation (determined by re-weighing of flasks) was replaced in interval (for details see Table 4 of report). Soit microbial biomass was determined at the beginning and at end of the study in untreated test systems (DAT-0 and DAT-120, see Table 7.1.1.1-2).

#### В. Sampling

Duplicate reate flasks were taken and processed completely for analyses at the following sampling dates: 0, 1, 2, 5, 12, 28, 49, 69, 90 and 120 days after treatment (DAT).

## Analytical Procedures

Prior to ppening an incubated test system for processing of soil, volatiles possibly still present in the head space of the test system were purged into the trap attachment. Afterwards, the trap attachment was removed and the soil was extracted completely. The soil was extracted immediately after



sampling of the flasks. The total soil portion of each test flask was transferred (using the extraction solvent) into a centrifuge beaker. The mean efficiency of "cold" extraction at DAT-0 was 89.8%, only. Thus, after drying and homogenising the extracted soil a further extraction was performed with 25-g-aliquots in a <sup>®</sup>Soxtec equipment (45' boiling and 15' rinsing). Volume and the radioactivity of the combined extracts (-E and HE) was determined. Chromatographic analyses of soil extracts by the primary method were performed not later than on the day after preparation. The analysed extracts were stored in a freezer for further investigations, if necessary. The paper filters used for filtration were cut into pieces (usually 3 to 4), combusted completely, and the evolved radioactivity was regarded as not extracted radioactivity.

The amount of degradation products in the combined soil expact was determined by frquid scintillation counting (LSC) and by TLC/radiodetection analysis. The amount of volatiles and nor extractable residues was determined by LSC and combustion/LSC, respectively (for more details see section 3.6.1 of report). Degradation products were identified by mass-spectroscopy and by comparison with authentic reference compounds.

#### III. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Results indicated that the anticipated standardized aerobic laboratory conditions were maintained during the entire incubation period in the dark. Maintenance of aerobic conditions was achieved by using an "open" test system (so-called bio-meter flacks permeable for aic) incubated in a large airconditioned room. The anticipated standardised soil temperature was maintained auring the study. The average temperature was 19:99 °C. (max / min = 20.70 / 19.65( °C). The anticipated standardised soil moisture was maintained during the study. In absolute terms, the scater loss between two sampling intervals was low. Between sampling intervals the soil moisture decreased on average from 49% to 46.3% of WHCmax, only. Viable soft was used within this study. The measured values for microbial biomass were found to be in the usual range expected of soils taken from agricultural fields. As it is usual for such laboratory studies the microbial biomass determined at the end of the incubation was significantly lower. In the soil samples treated with Thiacloprid signilar values were determined. Thus, the parent compound did not affect the microbial biomass of the test soil.

#### A. Data

The ansaunt of applied test item for the degradation samples was determined to be 195.66 kBq (equal to 51.6  $\mu$ g of test item, considering the radio-purity) with a RSD of 0.72%, and this was set to 100% of applied radioactivity [% of ARV It was confirmed that the application was homogeneous during the application procedure. The capculations for radioactivity (as % of applied radioactivity) in the soil and the respective frap attachment for volatiles are listed in <u>Table 7.1.1.1-3</u>, the conclusive overview was presented in <u>Table 7.1.1.01</u>, already.

Complete material balances found at the sampling intervals demonstrated that there was no significant loss of radioactivity from the test systems or during sample processing. During the study the total recovery of radioactivity (RA) in individual test vessels ranged from 103.8% to 97.1% of applied radioactivity (AR), and the mean was 100.0% (SD 1.6%).

#### B. Method Validation

#### Verification of sample Processing Method

The mean efficience of "cold" plus "hot" extraction at interval DAT-0, i.e. about 2 hours after treatment of soil, was 98.9% of AR (see data in <u>Table 7.1.1.1-3</u>). Thus, the extraction procedure was well suitable to extract the applied [<sup>14</sup>C]-Thiacloprid from the soil matrix.

Ů



Table 7.1.1	.1-3: Material balance	e of radioa	ctivity in a	soil	I	AXXa (ez	xpresse	d as
	percentage of ap	plied radio	pactivity,	% AR)			-	Ŷ
Incubation	time [days]	0.1	1	2	5	12		28 0
Volatiles	Soda lime		0.1	0.3	2.2	Q 4.5		Ŭ6.8 🖒
	PU-foam		< 0.1	< 0.1	<0.1 /	<0.1	~~	<0.1
	Subtotal volatiles		0.1	0.3	2.2	4.5		6.8
Soil					×,		°~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	
Extracted	Organic extract	89.8	86.2	83.9	<i>ð</i> ¥.5	62 Å	) i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	49.7 Ô
	Hot extract	9.1	13.5	14.1	Q 16.9	2 <b>2</b> .6	J.	20
	Subtotal extracted	98.9	99.7	98.1 🗸	91.4	85.3	Ą	70.0
NER	Soil	1.7	1.2	2.2	<i>6</i> <b>5</b> .7	9.9	Ş (	21.4 L
	Filter	0.9 🐇	0.1	Û M	©0.4	°¥ 0,₽	, ĝ	3.9
	Subtotal not extracted	2.6 🐇 .	1,3°	≾ ≼	6.10	Ž <b>0</b> .3		253
	Total	101\$	<b>101.1</b>	100,7	2908	<b>A100.0</b>	k.	<b>102.1</b>
	Mean deviation	+/ 0.5	@+/- 0.2℃	+/0,7	+/-1.0	+/- QQ	ř j	F/- 1.85
			Y NY	ð .	A, C		- Ç	
Incubation	time [days]	@ <sup>*</sup> 49.°~/	<b>69</b> 、	<b>90</b> Ö	120	Ş	× ×	AN'
Volatiles	Soda lime	× 163×	8.4 %	9.4	A.C.2		D'	
	PU-foam	Ø.1	<sup>∞</sup> <0.1	\$0%.1	ð<0.1 č	, s		
	Subtotal volatiles 🔗	\$ 7.7 \$	8,94	69.1	D 10,2		°	
Soil			R V	Ø ġ	. 07	8	4	
Extracted	Organic extract 🖉 👔	49.5	34.2	32,2	× 27.7 (		)	
	Hot extract of	_323.1 ¢	28.7	32.3 🛸	35.7	, Q		
	Subtotal extracted	<sup>©</sup> 63.5	62.9	Ç 64.5 <sup>×</sup>	63.3			
NER	Soil 🔬 🖓	2493	_025.3∞	24 🌫	<u></u> <u></u>			
	Filter	_Ø.5 ×	₽ 1.6°	0.8	0.5 4	, 1 1		
	Subtocal not extracted	<b>28.0</b>	269	25.0 L	24 🧶			
	C N Total	99.2	98.2 *	) 98,70	98.4			
	Mean deviation	₹⁄-20.2	€Ĵ+/- 1%,	+/23.3	+/- 0.6			
			2 5	· 0 <sup>~</sup> «	Ŵ			
T-LL 7 🖄			۳۵° ۱۰۰۰ - ۱۰۰۰ ۱۰	<u> </u>	×	A 373	V - (	
Table 7. L	$\begin{array}{ccc} \textbf{X.1-4:} & \textbf{Kestaues of } \mathbf{C} \\ \textbf{C} \\ $	rniaciopri	u m extra	et of soul		AX	xa (exp	ressea
	as % of AR; mea	in or dupli	cates)	Ň				
C			(Dags aft	er treatme	ent)			
Compound		× 5	12	28	49	69	90	120
<u> </u>			A con	0.4	100	0.1	1.00	0.5

Commenced	, N	$\mathcal{A}$								
Compound	621	<i>∂</i> ≯1 &	ž 200	s_5	🕞 12 🖉	28	49	69	90	120
Origin	م 0.5 🖉	0.5	°~0.4	0°0.2	0.60	0.4	< LOQ	0.1	< LOQ	0.5
Thiacloprid	₹ 95.5		∕≫39.7 <sub>_</sub> ©	12.06	Q,	5.0	3.4	2.7	2.8	3.5
-amide (MQ2)	1.6	32.7 🌋	52 <b>,5</b>	~702	× 0.0	46.3	45.1	43.2	37.8	28.5
-sulfonic acid	< LOO <sup>\$#</sup>	Ø 01 Ø			× .	5.0	6.8	87	10.5	113
(M30)					5.5	5.0	0.0	0.7	10.5	11.5
Zone	0. ľ	Q.4	$\approx 0.6 $	1:47	2.1	1.5	1.3	1.1	1.1	2.0
Zone Ě	< LOQ	LOQ	<lqq<sup>*</lqq<sup>	0.7	1.1	0.7	< LOQ	<loq< td=""><td>&lt; LOQ</td><td>&lt; LOQ</td></loq<>	< LOQ	< LOQ
Zone F	۵.5 🔬	<ul> <li>0.6  </li> </ul>	Ę.	Q2.4	1.4	0.6	< LOQ	0.2	< LOQ	< LOQ
-des-cyano					15	3.2	2.1	25	47	5 5
(M29)		0 2		0.9	1.5	5.2	2.1	2.5	т./	5.5
Zone H 🖉 🖉	<∂ OQ	Q LOQ	<pre>LOQ</pre>	0.1	0.9	0.8	1.0	0.8	2.3	2.8
Zone R 0.15	<u>⊘~LOQ</u> 1	< L Q Q	< LOQ	< LOQ	< LOQ	< LOQ	< LOQ	1.8	3.0	3.6
Zone <b>R</b> 0.77	< LQQ <sup>™</sup>	< <u>k</u> OQ	< LOQ	< LOQ	< LOQ	< LOQ	< LOQ	0.4	0.5	1.0

Zofe X: region of interest set for TLC analysis LOQ = 0.0% of AR



#### **Verification of Chromatographic Procedures**

Using the TLC chromatographic method A the recovery of Thiacloprid amounted to 99.5% of AR. These results indicated that the radio-thin-layer chromatographic method (A) was well suitable to analyse the applied [<sup>14</sup>C]-Thiacloprid.

The TLC limit of quantification (LOQ) for a single peak in the combined organic extracts was 0.1% of AR.

#### C. Degradation of Test Item

A synopsis on biotransformation of Thiacloprid in aerobic soil is shown by <u>table 72.1.1-9</u>; the results were included in the proposed pathway of degradation 16 soil (see Figure 7.1.1-9). More detailed data (expressed as percent of AR) are sugmarized in <u>Table 7.1.1-4</u>.

#### Volatiles, i.e. Mineralisation to <sup>14</sup>CO<sub>2</sub>

The amount of RA trapped in the individual test flasks (raw data and expressed as % of AR) was given in Table 7.1.1.1-3. At all sampling intervals no volative organic compounds (VOC) were measured in the polyurethane foam (each VOC value was 0.1% of AR).

The RA found in the soda lime of the trap attachments was  $CO_2$  (See Table 7.15.1-3) A steady increase of the portion of  $^{14}CO_2$  was measured during the entire stud period. At the termination of the experiment (at day 120) the amount of  $CO_2$  (Was 10.2%) of QR.

#### Test Item and Degradation Products in Soil Fatracts

Until study termination (DAT-120) extractable residues degreased to 63.3% of AR. In the same time period the portion of RA recovered by the "cold" extract decreased from approx. 90% to approx. 28%, whilst that recovered by the "hot" extract decreased from approx. 9% 6 approx. 36%.

The disappearance of Thacloprid was quite fast: for kinetics of degradation see Section CA 7.1.2.1.

Degradation of Thiadoprid was accompanied by the formation of several degradation product zones with the observed amounts shown in Table 7.1.1.4, the respective degradation products and its maximum amounts observed were summarized in Table 7.1.2.1.1.2.

#### Non-Extractable Residues

Non-extractable residues (NER) steadily increased to max. 28.0% of AR at DAT-49, slightly declining to 24.9% of AR antil DAT-120 (end of study). Since relevant proportions of <sup>14</sup>CO<sub>2</sub> were observed, also, this indicates that the NER formed from the parent is a major part of its entire route of degradation in soil, and that NER formed from the parent is an analoguate extraction of parent from the soil matrix.

#### Kinetic Analysis of Data

It is concluded from this study that Thiacloprid is degraded rapidly in soil AXXa (compare <u>Table 7.1.1.1. 3</u> and <u>Table 7.1.01-4</u>) with a simple first order DT<sub>50</sub> of 1.3 days when incubated under aeroDic conditions at 20°C. The formed major metabolites (i.e. M02, M29 and M30) are further moderately degraded and, therefore, do not accumulate in soil. For more details on kinetics evaluation of degradation see Section <u>CA 7.1.2.1</u>.

## Degradation Pathway

Based of the results of current study, combined with that from the other performed route of degradation studies, the pathway of degradation of Thiacloprid in soil presented by Figure 7.1.1.1-1 is proposed.



#### IV. CONCLUSIONS

Investigation of the route of degradation showed that Thiacloprid is well degraded and mineralized in the lysimeter soil incubated under standardized aerobic laboratory conditions in the dark. The quite fast degradation leads to the major degradation products shown in Table 7, 01.1-1. Formation of significant amounts of non-extractable residues and carbon dioxide indicates a participation in the natural carbon cycle of soil and the potential for a complete mineralization of Thiacloprid

The outcome is included pathway of degradation as well as in the summary of the degradation rates of Thiacloprid and its major degradation products in soil in the laboratory given in section C 7.1.1 and in Table 7.1-1 and Table 7.1-2.

Report:	KCA 7.1.1.1/04;
Title:	[Thiazolidine-2-14C]-Thiaclopfed: Accobic pletabolism/degradation in a
	European soil.
Report No:	MEF-10/140
Document No:	M-404822-01-1 2 4 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Guidelines:	OECD Guideline for Testing of Chemicals, No. 207, Aerobic and Anacrobic
	Transformation in Soil, 2002 💫 🔊 🖉 🖉 🖓
	US EPA Fate, Transport and Transformation Jest Gudeline, OPPTS 835.4100
	and OPP S 835.4200 Aerobic and Anaerobic Soil Metabolism, 2008
	Commission Directive 95/36/EC amending Council Directive 91/414/EEC
	(Annexes II and III) Fate and Behaviour in the Environment M995
GLP:	Yes A C O C O C

#### EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The route and that of [thiazolidine-2-<sup>14</sup>C]. Thiazoprid degradation, was studied in a silt loam ( a, OO = 2.4%,  $pH_{AC12}$  63; (corresponding to the dark at 20 ± 1°C and 55 ± 5% WHCmax (maximum water holding capacity). An amount of 16 µg Thracloprid 100 g soil dry weight was applied in this study, corresponding to the single us rate of 120 g Thiadoprid/ha.

The test was performed in static systems consisting of 300-mL Erlenmeyer flasks each containing 100 g soil (dry weight equivalents) and equipped with graps for the collection of carbon dioxide and volatile organic compounds (VOC). Duplicate samples were processed and analysed 0, 0.25, 1, 2, 4, 7, 14, 21, 30, 45 72 and 20 days after treatment (DAT).

At each sampling date the soil samples were extracted four times by shaking at ambient temperature and with respect to the formation of non-extractable residues by hot (microwave) extraction with acetonitrile/water solution mixtures. The extract were analysed and quantified by HPLC. Test item and major metabolities were identified by HPLC-MS and HPLC-MS/MS and/or confirmed by cochromatography with the corresponding characterized reference substances. AMD-TLC was used as confirmation method.

Investigation of the route of degradation showed that Thiacloprid is well degraded and mineralised in the tested soil incubated under standardised aerobic laboratory conditions in the dark. Complete material balances found at the sampling intervals demonstrated that there was no significant loss of radioactivity from the test systems or during sample processing. During the study the total recovery of radioactivity (RA) in individual test vessels ranged from 97.6% to 101.8% of the applied radioactivity (AR).

The total mineralisation of [thiazolidine-2-<sup>14</sup>C]-Thiacloprid to carbon dioxide reached 41.5 % of AR recovered at study termination (DAT-120). Formation of volatile organic compounds (VOC) was insignificant.



The non-extractable residues (NER) steadily increased from 0.6 % of AR at DAT-0 to 29.4 % at study end (DAT-120). A further characterization (fractionation into humin, humic acids and fulvic acids) was shown for the DAT-72 interval. Since relevant proportions of steadily increasing  $^{14}CO_2$  and NER. were observed this indicates that the NER formed from the parent is a major part of its entire of degradation in soil, and that NER formation is not caused by an inadequate extraction of parent from the soil matrix.

The comparatively fast degradation resulted in the following degradation products in soil

Table 7.1.1.1-5:         Identified degradation products (mean maximum amoun)	Table 7.1.1.1- 5:	Identified degradation	products (mean	maximum	amount
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------	-------------------	------------------------	----------------	---------	--------



the same thajor degradates were found using the [methylene-14C] label. Remark: compare with . ¢

In the course of the study up to Fradioactive APLC peaks indicating degradation products were observed and quantified in addition. The maximum concentration of an assigned, unidentified, HPLC peak (ID: u2) was 3.9 % of AR (DAT-30). The very minor peaks were calculated as sum and were in the range of 0.2 to 1 % of AR Altogether the unknown extracted radioactivity achieved a maximum value of 6.1 % of AR

It is concluded from this study that Thiscloprid is degraded rapidly in soil AXXa with a best fit kinetics according to FOCUS double first order in parallel, DFOP, for trigger evaluation) as 0.35 days und aeroloc conditions at 20° Oin the dark. The formed major metabolites (i.e. M02, M29 and M30) are further moderately degraded and therefore, do not accumulate in soil. For more details on kinetics of degradation see Section CA 7.1.2.1.

Formation of significant amounts of non-extractable residues and carbon dioxide indicates a participation in the natural carbon cycle of soil and the potential for a complete mineralisation of Thiacloprid. Thiacloprid and the degradation products have no potential for accumulation in the environment.

The results received within this [thiazoli@ne-2-14C]-Thiacloprid metabolism/degradation study were in good agreement with the proposed aerobic soil degradation pathway of Thiacloprid (see Figure 7.1.1.1 known from the Orresponding metabolism/degradation studies using the [methylene-<sup>14</sup>C]label (see both studies summarized earlier. No new metabolite specific for the [thiazolidine-2-<sup>14</sup>Clabel was found. , S



#### I. MATERIALS AND METHODS

#### A. Test Item

[Thiazolidine-2-14C]YRC 2894:	KATH 6633	S' '0'
Specific Radioactivity:	4.12 MBq/mg (111.3 μCi/mg)	
Radiochemical Purity:	> 99 % (HPLC, radiodetector)	
Chemical purity:	> 99 % (HPLC, UV-detector, 210 nm)	SÍ Q

#### B. Test System

The study was carried out using soil are given in following table.

## Table 7.1.1.1- 6: Physico-chemical characteristics of test soil

Parameter	Results/Units 😞		Methods 0	
Geographic Location	/Nort	ñ Rhin		
(City / State / Country)	Westphalia / Geri	nañ 🖌 🖌		çã Õ
	Loanny, mixed, m	esic Typi		) Å
Soil Taxonomic Classification (USDA)	Argudalfs		D D D	, W
Soil Series	W/A 2			~~
	f in the second se	L 23		Y
Soil Mapping Unit				9
Texture Class (USDA)	Set Loan		Wydrometer method	*
Sand	42 %	S.		
Silt & S	51 %	×0 <sup>.</sup> ×	Sieve anatysis *	
Clay	70% ~ 2	<i>6</i> ″ 0	Ő <sup>V</sup> Á	
pH in 0.01 M CaCl <sub>2</sub> Soil/CaSl <sub>2</sub> 1/2	\$ <del>.</del> 3 ~ ~0		· · · · 10/ · ·	
pH in water (soil/water 1/1)	6.5		pH-electrode	
pH in water (saturated parte)	6.60 5		suspension method of	or *
pH in 1 N KCl <sup>Or</sup>	6.0		per in saturated past	e *
Oracania Marting XI XI		a, 1	Calculated: % org. n	natter
	4.1 %		= % org. carbon x 1.	.724
Organic Carbon	24%	ް	Combustion analysis	s *
Initial & Final Soil Bomass or Microbial	Table 2 of Br	, i	Part of current study	
Activity			Fart of current study	
			Sum of cations (extr	acted with 1N
Cation Exchange Canadity (CBC)	12/8 max 100 de	9	CH <sub>3</sub> COONH <sub>4</sub> ) and h	nydrogen (pH
Cation Exchange Capacity (CCC)		, ,	measurement in Ada	ams-Evans
			buffer solution) *	
			Moisture remained v	when water
Water Holding Capacity 0.33 bar (pF 2.5)	23.4 g HzØ ad 10	0 g DW	saturated soil is plac	ed under 1/3 bar
	<u> </u>		pressure	
Maximum Water Holding Capacity	64 6 H O ad 10	θσDW	Cylinder drip-off me	ethod (BCS-D-
(WHC <sub>max</sub> )	04,05 1120 uu 10	ogbn	EnSa-MeA/Efate)	
Bulk Density disturbed	$\sqrt{99}  \mathrm{g/cm^3}$		Determined by weig	hing a known
	y.,,, 6.011		volume of dried and	ground soil *
Sampling Dates A DAT-0	DAT-30	DAT-30 <sup>+</sup>	DAT-120	DAT-120 <sup>+</sup>
Microbial Bromass				
(mỹ micropial carbon per 1011	833	855	550	620
kg of søl dry weight)				

<sup>+</sup> Samples applied with acetonitrile/water 1/20 (solvent of application solution).

\* References to soil characterization methods used by "AGVISE", USA.



#### II. STUDY DESIGN

#### A. Experimental Conditions

The soils were sampled freshly from the fields (upper horizon of 0 to 20 cm) and sieved to a particle size of  $\leq 2$  mm. Description of soil collection and storage is given in Appendix of the report.

Static test systems (300-mL Erlenmeyer glass flasks) for degradation in soil under aerobic conditions, were used as incubation vessels. Each flask was fitted with a trap attachment (permeable for exygen) containing soda lime for absorption of carbon dioxide and a polyarethane (PU) foam plug for adsorption of volatile organic compounds (VOC).

For preparation of the test systems, 100 g dry weight equivalents of the sieved soils were weighed into each flask. Soil moisture was adjusted to 55% of the maximum water holding capacity (MWHC) for the individual test systems by addition of de-ionized water, taking into account the water content of the application solution. The flasks were then fitted with above-mentioned trap attachments. The untreated test systems were equilibrated to study condition for some days prior to application. For detailed information on experimental design see also fable 3 and Table 4 of report.

A study application rate of 0.16 mg per 100 g soil do weight was applied. An abquot of 1000 µL of aqueous [<sup>14</sup>C]-Thiacloprid application solution was applied drop-wise onto the soil surface of the respective equilibrated test systems using appipetter.

After application, the test vessels (except DAT-0 samples) were fitted with trap attachments and placed into a temperature-controlled wilk-in flimatic chapter for incubation. The soil moisture was maintained since water loss from evaporation (determined by reweighing of flasks) was replaced in interval (see Appendix 3 of report. Soil photobral biomass was determined in test systems at DAT-0, DAT-29 and DAT-120 (see Table 7.1. 14-6).

#### B. Sampling

Duplicate treated basks were taken and processed completely for snalyses at the following sampling dates: 0, 0.25, 1, 2, 4, 7, 14, 21, 30, 45, 72 and 120 days after treatment (DAT).

#### C. Analytical Procedures

Prior to opening an incubated test system for processing of soil volatiles possibly still present in the head space of the test system were purged into the trap attachment. Afterwards, the trap attachment was removed and the soil was extracted completely. The soil was extracted immediately after sampling of the tasks. The total soil portion of each test flask was transferred (using the extraction solvent) into a centrifuge beater. The extraction procedures for all intervals were as follows:

~~				
Solvent	Volume Duration	Temperature	Cycles	Combine
Jogen		remperature	cycles	extracts
Acetonitrile/water	100 mL 30 min shaking	ambient*	1	
Acetonitrile/water 80/20 (v/v)	100 mL <sup>©</sup> <sup>©</sup> <sup>©</sup> <sup>©</sup> <sup>©</sup> <sup>©</sup> <sup>©</sup> <sup>©</sup>	ambient*	3	yes
Acetonitrile@ater 80/20 v v	100 mL 12 pun microwave	70°C	1	-

#### \* further called coldextract

After each extraction step, the suspension was centrifuged for 10 minutes at 5000 x g, and the clear supernatant was decanted. The four organic cold extracts were combined. The organic microwave extract was analysed separately. Volume and radioactivity contents were determined. Aliquots (10 mL) of the combined organic cold extracts and microwave extracts were spiked with 20  $\mu$ l Dobanol<sup>®</sup> and concentrated to approximately 1.0 – 1.5 mL using a SpeedVac concentrator. 100  $\mu$ l acetonitrile were added to the concentrated extracts.



Volume and the radioactivity of the combined extract were determined. Chromatographic analyses of soil extracts by the primary method were performed not later than on the day after preparation. The analysed extracts were stored in a freezer for further investigations, if necessary. The paper filter used for filtration were cut into pieces (usually 3 to 4), combusted completely, and the evolved radioactivity was regarded as not extracted radioactivity.

The amount of degradation products in the combined soil extract was determined by high id scintillation counting (LSC) and by HPLC/radiodetection analysis. The amount of volables and non-extractable residues was determined by LSC and combustion/LSC, respectively. Test item and major metabolites were identified by HPLC-MS and HPLC-MS/MS and/or confirmed by co-chromatography with the corresponding characterized reference substances. AMDOPLC was used as confirmation of method.

#### III. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Results indicated that the anticipated standardized aerobic laboratory conditions were maintained during the entire incubation period in the dark. Maintenance of aerobic conditions was achieved by using an "open" test system (so-called bio-meter flacks permeable for air fincubated in a large air-conditioned room. The anticipated standardized soil temperature was maintained during the study. The average temperature was 20.0 °C (range = 49.8 - 20.6 °C). The anticipated standardized soil moisture of 55% of WHCmax was maintained during the study. Viable soil was used within this study. The measured values for microbial biomass were found to be in the usual range expected of soils taken from agricultural fields. As it is usual for such laboratory studies the microbial biomass determined at the end of the incubation was significantly ower.

#### A. Data

The amount of applied test item for the degradation samples as determined to be 15.8  $\mu$ g/vessel, which is equivalent to 65083 Bq. This was set to 100% of applied radioactivity [% of AR]. It was confirmed that the application was homogeneous during the application procedure.

The calculations for radioactivity (as % of applied radioactivity) in the soil and the respective trap attachment for volatiles are listed in  $\frac{Table 7.1.1}{Table 7.1.1.2-5}$ , already.

Complete material balances found at the sampling intervals demonstrated that there was no significant loss of radioactivity from the test systems or during sample processing. During the study the total recovery of radioactivity (RA) is individual jest vessels ranged from 103.1% to 97.3% of applied radioactivity (AR), and the mean was 100.5% (SD 1.5%).

## B. Method Walidation C

### Verification of Sample Processing Method

Mean DAT-0 material balance was 101  $\frac{7}{100}$  of AR; the test item was stable under the conditions of extraction and sample processing i.e. the DAT recovery of 101.1 % of AR found in the organic cold and microwave extracts was just the parent compound (<u>Table 7.1.1.1-8</u>). These results demonstrate that the extraction method was well suitable to extract the applied [thiazolidine-2-<sup>14</sup>C]-Thiacloprid from the soil matrix  $\frac{101}{2}$ 

### Verification of Chromatographic Procedures

Using UPLC the complete recovery of injected radioactivity was confirmed for both methods using samples from DAT-0 and DAT-14. The minimum limit of quantification (LOQ) by HPLC for a single peak was estimated as three times LOD (0.2% of AR) and was in the soil extracts in the range of 0.6% of AR. Peaks between LOD and LOQ were used in calculations as given values. Representative HPLC chromatograms showing the separation of parent and transformation products can be found in Figure 8 to Figure 11 of report. These results indicated that the HPLC method was well suitable to analyse the applied [<sup>14</sup>C]-Thiacloprid as well as the degradation products.



In order to confirm the results of the HPLC method, extracts were investigated with a second separation method (AMD-TLC). A comparison of both methods is given in Appendix 8 of report. test item and the metabolites were well separated and no additional metabolite was detected in significant amounts (>5% AR). Ò

(expressed as percentage of applied radioactivity, AR)														
	Replicate						D/	AT	Ĩ		õ		, Ø	,C
	No.	0	0.25	1	2	4	7	14	₽ 21	30 🦼	© 45	572	<b>2</b> 20	Ő
Volatiles						, Û <sup>v</sup>		Å		, Ô		\$ _(	) 8	×
<sup>14</sup> CO <sub>2</sub>	1	n.a.	<0.1	0.1	0.2	0.82	1.90	4.56	<b>Ø</b> .1	<u>1</u> 2.9	18:5	29.1	41.8	
	2	n.a.	<0.1	0.1	0.20	0.8	1.9	<sup>⊭</sup> 4.8°≽	7.8	13.0	20.1	28.4	A.1.7	
	Mean			0.1	<b>0</b> /2	Ø.3	1:9	4	8.0	13.0	້ 19.3 <sup>ັ</sup> ້	້ 28.8 ີ	41.5	
Volatile organics	1	n.a.	<0.1	<0.1	<0.1 s	0.1 ج	<b>@</b> 0.1	<b>CO</b> .1	<u>@</u> 2	<691	<0.1	<0.4	<0_1 °	
	2	n.a.	<0.1	<0.1	<0,1	<0.4	<0.1	[≪0.1_	<0.1	<b>©0</b> .1	<0.1	<b>\$9</b> .1	Ø	
	Mean			Å.	$\sim$		L <sup>O</sup> Y	Å	0.1	0.1	۷ 🖌		0.1	
Total	1	n.a.	<0.1	0.1	Kg∕0.2	0.8 📞	€1⁄.9	×4,6	8.3	1209	185	29.1 <sup>C</sup>	41.3	
	2	n.a.	<0,0	0.1	0.2	🎙 0.8 🛠	¢ 1.9	<sup>4.8</sup>	<b>\$7.8</b>	<b>.</b> 93.1	<b>20</b> .1	289.4	41.8	
	Mean		Ą'	0.1	0,2	0,8,	1.9	4.70	8.1	13.0	ີ້ 19.3 ີ	28.8	41.5	
Extractable Radioa	ctivity	(	v "	Ś	°	S	,Õ	Ő	Ö	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	K			
Cold extract	1	98,9	97.8	98.6C	93.0	87.5	81.1	69.8	<b>@</b> 1.6	,56.4	49 <u>.</u> 8	34.1	24.2	
	2	101.1	161.2	95,7	9302	89.1Ø	83.2	71.4	∕ <sup>%</sup> 63.6°≽	57.3	<i>©</i> 46.4	34.7	24.5	
	Mean <sup>%</sup>	100.0	99.5	<b>97</b> .1	93.1	88/.3	82,2	70.6	62.6	56.9	47.1	34.4	24.3	
Microwave extract	1	1.1	ິ້ 1.1 🦓	) 1.9 (	D 3.4 (	≫3.3 ∿	3.7	<b>%ø</b> .2	6.1	\$.5.6	5.9	5.5	5.1	
	a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a	1.2	1.2	1.	3.1	3.3	<sup>°</sup> 3.8	5.5 (	ງຶ5.4 ⊣	<b>∲</b> 6.1	6.1	5.4	5.0	
	Mean	<b>∱∕1.1</b> ∢	<b>9</b> 21	<u>%6</u>	3.2	, QŠ	3.8	5,9	5.8	5.9	6.0	5.5	5.1	
Total	¶` 1	99.94	/ 98. <del>9</del>	100.4	y96.3	90.8	<b>^84</b> .9	<b>16</b> .1	67/8	62.1	53.7	39.6	29.2	
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	<i>Æ</i>	1023	102 <b>3</b> *	97¢1 <sup>°C</sup>	96.3	° 92.4	» 87.0 ه	76.9	, 69.0 //	63.4	52.5	40.1	29.6	
Č.	Méan	101.1	<b>190.7</b>	98.8	96,3	91 6	86.0	76:5	68.4	62.7	53.1	39.8	29.4	
Bound Residue	1 🕺	0.6	0.7	¢2.4	5.4	9.2	19.1	⊿8.9	23.4	24.3	26.5	29.2	29.4	
K, V	,20Ű	0.6	0.7	2.8	⊳ 5.2 (	) <sup>%</sup> 9.2 ¥	U13.0、	Q 9.0	23.9	24.3	26.6	28.7	29.4	
	Mean	<b>0.6</b>	<b>0</b> ,1	<b>्20</b> ४	<b>5</b> 3 <sup>×</sup>	9.2	13.0	18.9	23.7	24.3	26.5	28.9	29.4	
Material Balance	× 1 1	100.5	Ø9.6	(102.9	101.9	100.9	<b>99</b> 28	99.5	99.5	99.3	98.7	97.9	99.8	
<i>M</i> ,	* 2 Q	102.8	103 🖧	ິ 100.0	101.7	02.4	901.8	100.7	100.7	100.7	99.2	97.3	100.8	
~	Mèan	101.7	101.4	101,5	101.8	101.7	100.8	100.1	100.1	100.0	98.9	97.6	100.3	

#### Table 7.1.1.1- 7: Material balance of radioactivity in soil



**Bayer CropScience** 

# **Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid**

Table 7.1.1.1- 8:	Resid	lues of	f <sup>14</sup> C-T	hiaclo	oprid i	n extr	act of	soil				4	a	
	(expr	ressed	as %	of AR	)								Ů	ð
	Replicate						D	AT				Å	Ý	Ĩ
Compound	No.	0	0.25	1	2	4	7	14	21	30	45	72	120	
Thiacloprid	Mean	101.1	64.6	12.2	3.0	1.6	1.1	0.8	0.6	@0.4	0.4	n.d.	∘,ń,d.	
	SD	±1.2	±1.7	±0.5	±0.1	±0.1	±0.1	±0.0	±0,1	±0.2	±0.2		Ş,	Ĉ <u>o</u>
-amide	Mean	n.d.	36.1	83.2	86.6	75.5	61.9	45.1	28.4	25.1	15.0	3.0%	5.3	
	SD		±0.0	±1.2	±0.1	±0.8	* ±0.4	±0.5	¢±0.8	±0.4	€0.5	~ <b>£</b> 9.0	,±0.0	L.
-sulfonic acid	Mean	n.d.	n.d.	1.2	3.3	<b>X</b> ,0	10.9	13.6	15.1	12.8	8.9	2.1	\$3.3	$\langle O' \rangle$
	SD			±0.1	±0.1	≦ <u>1</u> 0.2	±0.2	<b>D</b> .6	±0₀0	±0,1	±0.3	±0.0	±0.00	y V
DIJ10739	Mean	n.d.	n.d.	0.6	0,50	° <sup>″</sup> 0.8	0.7🥿	0.6	0.3	″¶¢d.	@ď.	₿ <sub>0</sub> d.	nØ.	
	SD			±0.1	<u></u> ∉±0.1	±0.1	±0,0	±0,1	±0.30	ŝ 1	× ×		Ĵ,	
u1	Mean	n.d.	n.d.	0.7	<b>6</b> 0.9	ØĨ.9	2.5	2,9	301	3,9	3.7	1.1	3.7	
	SD			±0,0	±0.3	±0.1@	±0.0	Q±0.2	¥0.2	<u>+0.3</u>	£0.3	±@1 <sup>%</sup>	±0.2	
-des-cyano	Mean	n.d.	n.d.	0.9	2.0	4.2	8.	12.2	9.0 🕻	ື້ 18.4∡	23.6	33.0	\$6.2	
	SD			©±0.0∢	°¥0.0_	<u>,</u> <del>1</del> 0.0	∿±0.5	±000	±0.0	±0,4	±0,3	±0.2	±0.3	
u3	Mean	n.d.	n.@	n.d.	″ n.d. 🤇	0.6	Ø0.9	@1.3	പ്പ.9	2:2	<b>4</b> 6	0,4	n.d.	
	SD		Ñ	·0·		±0.1	±0,1	±0.0	t0.0	±0.0	Ĵ£0.1 ∘	× <u></u> ±0.0		
Sum u4-u7	Mean	n.d.	, n.d. 🖌	n.d.	on.d.	"mrd.	<b>.</b>	n dr.	næ	n.đ	n.d.	<sup>″</sup> 0.2	1.0	
	SD	, Ç	×م	~0		0*	Ķ,	Ũ <sup>y</sup>	Ô	0°	0 <sup>×</sup>	±0.1	±0.2	
Sum unidentified	Mean	n.d.	n⊳d.	QQ″	0,9/	2.5%)*	3.4 🐔	4.2	∕∕ 5.1 <sub>%</sub>	<i>©</i> 6.1 ,	5.3	1.7	4.7	
radioactivity	SD 🗞		0	¢ <del>2</del> 0.0	<b>€</b> 0.3	£0.0	±0,∛	±6.2	±0.2	±0,2	±0.1	±0.1	±0.4	
Total extractable	Mean	101	100 <i>B</i>	98.8¢	96.3°	<b>91.6</b>	<b>\$6</b> .0	%7 <u>6</u> .5	68.4	62,7	53.1	39.8	29.4	
residues	ŞÇ	±@.2	A17	± <b>%</b> ,7	±0;0	±0.\$	±1.1 <sup>©</sup>	€±0.4	±0.6	( <u></u> ±0.6	±0.6	±0.3	±0.2	
<sup>14</sup> CO <sub>2</sub>	Mean	∦n.a. <sub>s</sub>	Ø\$0.1 ,	ିଡି.1	0.2	~08	18	47	8.0	13.0	19.3	28.8	41.5	
	רא אַ אַ אַ	4	<u> </u>	±0.0	±0.0	<u>∕</u> ¥0.0	<i>≈</i> Ĵ£Õ.0	<b>£0</b> .1	£9.1	±0.0	±0.8	±0.3	±0.2	
Volatile	Mean	∫@a.	<0)ľ	<q.9< td=""><td>&lt;0,∜</td><td>&lt;0.</td><td>&lt;0.1</td><td>×&lt;0.1</td><td>0.1</td><td>0.1</td><td>&lt;0.1</td><td>&lt;0.1</td><td>0.1</td><td></td></q.9<>	<0,∜	<0.	<0.1	×<0.1	0.1	0.1	<0.1	<0.1	0.1	
organics	<sup>™</sup> SD	$\sim$	Ô	29		- A		Ś	±0.1	±0.1			±0.1	
Non-extractable	Mean	0.6	0.7	y <sup>%</sup> 2.6	5.3	9.2	<b>3.0</b>	~18.9	23.7	24.3	26.5	28.9	29.4	
residue	. <u>\$</u> Ø	<u>,</u> ±0.0	±0.0	±0,2	±0.10	<sup>∞</sup> ±0.0 <sup>≪</sup>	∮ <sup>″</sup> ±0.1	⊖ <u>±0.0</u>	±0.3	±0.0	±0.1	±0.3	±0.0	
Total %	<b>M</b> ean	\$101.7	đơ1.4	1 <b>0</b> 1.5	101.8	104,7	100.8	100.1	100.1	100.0	98.9	97.6	100.3	
recovery	SD 🏹	±1.1	±1.7%	J ±1.5 ∞	_£0.1	±0.8	0.15	±0.6	±0.6	±0.7	±0.3	±0.3	±0.5	

n.d.: not detected, main not an week of the treatment, SD; sondard detation, u: unknown, u2: -des-cyano Unidentified radioactivity: maximum Component 3.9 % AR at (AR at (AT-30 (B)); none increasing towards study end.

Unidentified radioactivity. maximum components  $C_{1,1}$  DIJ10739 = YRC 2894-urea (see N91 in Free 7.1. 1447).

# C. Degradation of Dest Item

A synopsis on biotransformation of Thiaclorid in aerobic soil is shown by <u>Table 7.1.1.1- 5</u>; the results were included in the proposed pathway of degradation in soil (see <u>Figure 7.1.1.1-1</u>). More detailed data (expressed as percent of AR) are summarized in <u>Table 7.1.1.1-8</u>.

# Volatiles, f.e. Mineralisation to 44CO2

The amount of RA trapped in the individual test flasks (raw data and expressed as % of AR) was given in Table 7.10.1-7 aready. At all sampling intervals not any volatile organic compounds (VOC) were measured at the polyurethane foam (each VOC value was <0.1% of AR).

Amount of RA found in the soda lime of the trap attachments was addressed as  ${}^{14}CO_2$  (again see <u>Table 7.1.1.1-7</u>). A steady increase of the portion of  ${}^{14}CO_2$  was measured during the entire study period. At the termination of the experiment (at day 120) the amount of  ${}^{14}CO_2$  yielded 41.5% of AR.



#### **Test Item and Degradation Products in Soil Extracts**

Until study termination (DAT-120) extractable residues decreased to 29.4% of AR. In the same time period the portion of RA recovered by the "cold" extract had decreased from 100% to 24.3% of XR. In general the portions recovered by hot extraction remained on a low level (max 60% of AR).

The disappearance of Thiacloprid was quite fast: for kinetics of degradation see Section C

Degradation of Thiacloprid was accompanied by the formation of several degradation produce zones with the observed amounts shown in Table 7.1.1.1- 8; the respective degradation products and its maximum amounts observed were summarized by Table 7.1.1.1-5.

#### **Non-Extractable Residues**

Non-extractable residues (NER) steadily increased to max. 29.4% of &R at DAT-120 (end of study). Since high proportions of <sup>14</sup>CO<sub>2</sub> were observed, also, this indicates that the NER formed from the parent is a major part of its entire route of degradation in soft, and that NER formation is not caused by an inadequate extraction of parent from the soil matrix.

#### **Kinetic Analysis of Data**

It is concluded from this study that Thigstoprid is degraded very rapidly in soil 4a (see <u>Table 7.1.1.1.</u> and <u>Table 7.1.1.1. 8</u>) with a best fit  $DT_{50} \neq 0.35$  days when incubated under aerobic conditions at 20°C in the dark. The formed major metabolites (i.e. M02, M29 and M30) are further moderately degraded and, therefore, do not accumulate in soil. For more details on kinetics evaluation of degradation see Section <u>GA 7.1.2.1</u>.

#### **Degradation Pathway**

Ô Based on the results of clarrent study, combined with that from the other performed route of degradation studies the pathway of degradation of Thaclopred in soil presented by Figure 7.1.1.1-1 is proposed.

#### IV. CONCLUSION

Investigation of the route of degradation showed that This forrid is well degraded and mineralized in soil incorrection of the standard zed acrobic laboration in the dark. The rapid degradation leads to the major degradation products flown in Table 7.1. SI- 5. Formation of significant amounts of non-extractable residues and carbon dioxide indicates a participation in the natural carbon cycle of soil and the potential for a complete generalization of This loprid.

The results received within this [this zolighne-2-fe] - This cloprid metabolism/degradation study were in good agreement with the proposed aprobic soil degradation pathway of Thiacloprid (see Figure 7.1.1.1-1 Known from the corresponding metabolism/degradation studies using the [methylene-<sup>14</sup>C]label (see both studies summarized earlier. No new metabolite specific for the [thiazolidine-2-<sup>14</sup>C] radio-label was found.

The outcome is included pathway of degraderion as well as in the summary of the degradation rates of Thiacloprid and its major degradation products in soil in the laboratory given in section CA 7.1.1 and ~Ó in Table 7.1 and Table



#### CA 7.1.1.2 Anaerobic degradation

The significance of the route of degradation of Thiacloprid in soil under anaerobic conditions of the laboratory was evaluated during the Annex I inclusion (compare EU Monograph, Annex B8), and was accepted by the European Commission (SANCO/4347/2000 – Final; 13 May 2004). The following was stated in the list of endpoints:

No data provided, not required for the currently requested uses (summer application).

Since in general an exposure under anaerobic conditions cannot be exclided and the study is stated as a current data requirement under 1107/2009, a new study performed with [mazolruine-2<sup>44</sup>C]- <sup>(4)</sup> Thiacloprid is submitted within this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval.

Report:	KCA 7.1.1.2 /01;, HP.;, To; 2014 @ @ %
Title:	[Thiazolidine-2-14C]-Thiazlopric Anaerobic Metabolism / Degradation in Soil.
Report No:	EnSa-13-0490
Document No:	M-484954-01-1 $\swarrow$ $\checkmark$
Guidelines:	OECD Guideline for Testing of Chemigals, No. 307, Aerobic and Anaerobic
	Transformation in Soil 2002 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
GLP:	Yes $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$

#### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

The route and rate of [thiazôlidine 2-<sup>14</sup>C]. Thiacloprid degradation was studied in a silt loam (**1999**) 4a, OC = 1.96,  $pH_{C12}$  64 **Constant**, Germany) at 19.8 °C in the dark under flooded anaerobic conditions following a short aerobic incubation phase. A test concentration of 356 µg per kg soil dry weight was applied based on the single field use rate of 120 °C thiacloprid/ha. The test was performed in static systems consisting of 300-mL Erlenneyer flasks each containing 100

Ine test was performed in static systems consisting of 400-mL Erlenmeyer flasks each containing 100 g soil (dry weight equivalents). During the aerobic study phase, air permeable traps were attached for the collection of carbon dioxide and volatile organic compounds (static test systems). At start of the anaerobic study phase, the traps for volatile components were replaced by sealable two-valve glass stoppers connected with plastic gas sampling bags. Following application of [<sup>14</sup>C]-Thiacloprid to soil the samples were incubated under aerobic conditions in the tark at about 20 °C and 55% of maximum water holding capacity. After, day of incubation the soil's amples were flooded with oxygen-depleted, de-ionized water (approx. 3 cm layer above soil level) and set under an atmosphere of argon. The water-logged samples were maintained inder maerobic conditions at approximately 20 °C in the dark for 125 days. Duplicato test systems were taken directly after water logging (day 1) and 5, 8, 13, 35, 63, 91 and 126 days after treatment (DAT), corresponding to 0, 4, 7, 12, 34, 62, 90 and 125 days after soil flooding (DASF).

Soil and water layer were separated by centrifugation to allow for separate analysis of the phases with the water being analysed directly. Afterwards the soil was extracted three times at ambient temperature using acetonitrile water 4/1 (va). Furthermore, one microwave extraction step was performed using acetonitrile water 4/1 (va) at 70 °C. The amounts of test item and degradation products in soil extracts were determined by liquid scintillation counting (LSC) and by HPLC/radiodetection analysis. The amounts of volables and non-extractable residues were determined by LSC and combustion/LSC respectively. Test item and degradation products were identified by HPLC-MS(/MS) including accurate mass determination and by co-chromatography with reference items.

Complete material balances found at the sampling intervals demonstrated that there was no significant loss of radioactivity from the test systems or during sample processing. During the study the mean total recovery of radioactivity in individual test vessels was 99.0% of AR (range of 97.3 to 100.5% of AR).



During the short aerobic phase, the maximum amount of carbon dioxide was 0.1% of AR, only. This carbon dioxide formation stopped after flooding and during anaerobic incubation. Formation of volatile organic compounds (VOC) was insignificant as demonstrated by values of < 0.1% of AR at all. samplings intervals in the aerobic and anaerobic incubation phase. Non-extractable radioactivity (NER) in soil slightly increased from 1.7 to 3.1% of AR (mean). Later, in the course of the macrobic incubation period, the NER increased to 27.0% of AR until study end.

The comparatively fast degradation resulted in the following degradation products in soil flooded anaerobic conditions following a short aerobic incubation phase,





Investigation of the route of degradation showed that The clopped is well degraded during the short aerobic phase of study. The amount of Triacloprid decreased rapidly from \$97.6% to 30.4% of AR (mean values), thus the DF3 value was afready exceeded. At the same time, the amount of YRC 2894amide (M02) increased to 63-7% of AR. During the following flooded state (i.e. a progressing anaerobic incubation) the amount of Thiacloprid decreased to < OD at study and, and M02 increased to 85.1% of AR a DAT-8 (corresponding to DASE-7). However, after flooding and set-up of anaerobic conditions, the further degradation of the major promary pretabolite YRC 2894-amide (M02) was slowed down. From DAT'8 towards study tormination the mount of M02 decreased slowly to 64.4% AR (no an values), but none of the secondary metabolites shown in pathway of the aerobic degradation in soil (see Figure 7. 1.1-1) nor the terminal metabolite earbon dioxide were found.

The experimental data of the anaerobic degradation of Thaclopud could be well described by a first order multi-compartment (FOMC) kinetic model. The anaerobity half-life of Thiacloprid after flooding and shift to anaerooic conditions was 1 day. For more details on kinetics of degradation see Section CA 7.1.2.1.3 and CA 7.4 2.1.4

The results reserved within this study showed that no new metabolite specific for anaerobic conditions is to be expected in soil. Whenever a treated plot becomes anaerobic (e.g. after flooding by a heavy rainfall), residues of Thiacloorid will be degraded fast, mainly to YRC 2894-amide (M02). If thereafter the soil status turns back to normal aerobic conditions, the degradation of M02 in soil will proceed following the pathway according to Figure 7.1.1.1-1.

#### I. MATERIALS AND METHO

#### Test Item A.

	¥
[Thiazofdine-224C]-YRC 2864:	KML 9290
Specific Radioactivity:	4.12 MBq/mg (111.30 µCi/mg)
Racyochengecal Pupyty:	> 98% (HPLC with radioactivity detector)
	> 98% (TLC, scan)
Chemi@al purity:	> 99% (HPLC with UV-detector, 210 nm)



#### B. Test System

4a. The soil was taken from The study was carried out using soil agricultural use area. The plant protection product use history of the soil is known for at least zvears The characteristics of test soil are given in following table. ð

	Table 7.1.1.2- 2:	Physico-chemical	characteristics of te	est soi
--	-------------------	------------------	-----------------------	---------

Parameter	Results/Units	Method X X
Geographic Location	/North Rhine-	
(City / State / Country)	Westphalia / Germany	
	Loamy, mixed, mesic Typig	
Soil Taxonomic Classification (USDA)	Argudalfs	
Soil Series	N/A 🖏	
Soil Mapping Unit		
Texture Class (USDA)	Silt Loan	Hydrometer method *
Sand		
Silt	66 % 4 4	Sieve analysia S
Clay	14 6 5 5	
pH in 0.01 M CaCl <sub>2</sub> (soil/CaCl <sub>2</sub> 1/2)	6.4	
pH in water (soil/water 1/1)	<b>36.6</b>	Suspervision method of
pH in water (saturated paste)	6.7 0 2 6	nH in saturated pase *
pH in 1 N KCl	625 6	
Organic Matter	\$73.0% Q 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Calculated: % org. matter
		<sup>2</sup> % org. carbon x 1.724
Organic Carbon 🔬 🔅	1.9 %	Combustion analysis *
Initial & Final Soil Biomass or Microbial	see Table? of report	Part of current study
Activity		
		Sum of cations (extracted with 1N
Cation Exchange Capacity (CEG)	KIS mea HOO g &	CH <sub>3</sub> COONH <sub>4</sub> ) and hydrogen (pH
		n@asurement in Adams-Evans buffer
		Solution) *
		Moisture remained when water
Water Molding Capacity /10 bar (pF 2.0)	38.9°g H <sub>2</sub> O ad 100°g DW	saturated soil is placed under 1/10
		C 1: 1 1: C 11 1/DCC D
Maximum Water Holding Capacity	54.5 g H <sub>2</sub> O ad 100 DW	Cylinder drip-off method (BCS-D-
		D t 11 11 11 11 11
Bulk Density (disturbed)	1 M 2 g/cm²	Determined by weigning a known
		volume of dried and ground soli
Sampline Date	DAST-0 ~	DAT-0 <sup>+</sup>
Microbial Biomaga		
(memorphial carbon per keef soildry	$0002 \ll 3$	1042
weight)	4 <sup>332</sup> 0 <sup>4</sup>	1042
A rearchic Dist Count Assour	$D^{Q}$	Dilution 10 <sup>-4</sup>
DASE-125 replicated	D 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	2.00 x $10^4$ CEU/g soil
DASF-125, renlicate?	$28.67 \times 10^3 \text{ CFU/g soil}$	$3.33 \times 10^4 \text{ CFU/g soil}$
+ 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	10.07 X 10 CI 0/g 3011	5.55 x 10 C1 O/g 3011
* Parameters to the above of the second seco	ad by "A GVISE" LISA	
References to sour characterization methods us	tu by AUVISE, USA.	
L' <sup>Y</sup> Q 'V L		
Ũ		



#### II. STUDY DESIGN

#### A. Experimental Conditions

The soils were sampled freshly from the fields (upper horizon of 0 to 20 cm) and sieved to a particle size of  $\leq 2$  mm. Description of soil collection and storage is given in Appendix of the report.

Static test systems (300-mL Erlenmeyer glass flasks) for degradation in soil under aerobic conditions were used as incubation vessels. Each flask was fitted with a trap attachment (permeable for exygent) containing soda lime for absorption of carbon dioxide and a polyarethane (PU) foam plug for adsorption of volatile organic compounds (VOC).

For preparation of the test systems, 100 g dry weight equivalents of the sieved softs were weighed into each flask. Soil moisture was adjusted to 55% of the maximum water tolding capacity (MWHC) for the individual test systems by addition of de-ionized water, taking into account the water content of the application solution. The flasks were then fixed with above-mentioned wap attachments. The untreated test systems were equilibrated to study conditions for some days prior to application.

A study application rate of 35.6 mg per 400 g soil dry weight was applied An aliquot of 400 pL of  $[^{14}C]$ -Thiacloprid application solution (methanol/water 1/1, 4/v), was applied drop-wise onto the soil surface of the respective equilibrated test systems using a pipette

After application, the test vessels (except DAT  $\delta$  samples) were fitted with trap attachments and placed into a temperature-controlled walk-in chanatic chamber for incubation. Soft microbial biomass was determined in test systems at DAT  $\delta$  (see <u>Table 1.1.2</u>).

1 day after test item application (DAT-1 = DASE()) the soil of each flask was flooded with 150 mL of oxygen-depleted de ionized water. The flasks were then sonicated for a few seconds to eliminate gas bubbles. The trap attachment of all remaining test flasks was removed and replaced by air-tight plastic gas sampling bag, which had been flushed with argon gas before. The argon was purged out of the bags and the valves were set to connect flask headspace and gas sampling bag, but closing the system from the outer atmosphere. Such setup allowed for pressure-less closed flask incubation. To ensure maintenance of oxygen free conditions, the test systems were placed in a box flushed by nitrogen within the walks in incubation chamber. Anaerobic bacteria were determined at DASF-125.

For detailed information on experimental design see also Table 3 and Table 4 of report.

#### B. Sampling

Duplicate treated Dasks were taken and processed completely for analyses at the following aerobic sampling dates: DAT-Q and DAT-1 (DAT = days after treatment).

Duplicate treated flass were taken and processed completely for analyses at the following anaerobic sampling dates, 1, 5, 8, 18, 35, 67, 91 and 126 days after treatment (DAT), corresponding to 0, 4, 7, 12, 34, 62, 90 and 125 days after soil flooding (DASE).

### C. Analytical Procedures

Prior to opening an incubated test system for processing of soil, volatiles possibly still present in the head space of the vessel were purged into the trap attachment (aerobic phase) or gas sampling bag (anaerobic phase). Afterwards, the trap attachment or gas sampling bag was removed and the soil was extracted completely. The soda time from the trap attachments of the aerobic phase was transferred into flasts, and stored before processing at < -18 °C in the dark for 6 weeks. The PU foam was processed immediately after sampling. The soda lime was stored before processing at < -18 °C in the dark for a maximum period of 5 weeks.

The gas campling bag of the anaerobic phase was processed immediately after sampling. It was connected to a combustion oven unit intended for volatiles. Thereby the volatiles present in the gas sampling bag were slowly purged using a stream of nitrogen over a soda lime trap for absorption of  $^{14}CO_2$ , through the catalytic oven for oxidative combustion of organic volatiles (e.g. methane), and

**Bayer CropScience** 

# **Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid**

finally through three liquid scintillation flasks filled with alkaline LSC cocktail, for absorption of  ${}^{14}CO_2$  from combustion exhaust. Afterwards, the scintillation cocktails were directly analysed by LSC; the soda lime was further processed as described in Section 3.6.1.3 of report.

In the flooded soils (DASF-0 to DASF-125) the oxygen content of the water, redox potential of water and of soil, and pH of the water were determined by electrode measurements. The water was separated from the soil layer by centrifugation (10 min. at  $4550 \times g$ ). After determination of the volume the radioactivity content was determined by LSC.

The entire soil of each test vessel was extracted three times at ambient conditions using a mechanical shaker followed by an accelerated extraction using a microward with a magnetic stirrer. The original extraction procedure is summarized in the following table:

		1 A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		
Solvent	Volume	Minimum	Temperature	Cycles ~~~
		Duration 🖉		(
ACN/H <sub>2</sub> O 4/1 (v/v)	80 mL	30 min, shaking	ampient 🖉 🔗	3
ACN//H <sub>2</sub> O 1/1 (v/v)	80 mL	10 min, Hirring O	microwave, 70 °C	10' & '
			> A O	1, <sup>2</sup> (7

After each extraction step, extract and soil were separated by centrifugation (approx 10 minutes at 4550 x g) and decantation. The volumes of the combined ambient extracts and the metrowaye extract were determined. The radioactivity content of these extracts was determined by LSC. The exhaustive extracted soils were air-dried, homogenized by a planetary mill and DER were determined by combustion/LSC.

The first analysis of soil extracts with the primary chromatographic method was usually done within one day after sampling. The total soil portion of each test flask was transferred (using the extraction solvent) into a centrifuge beaker. After analysis, soll extracts were stored at < 38 °C in the dark. Due to concentration recovery issues without using Debanol<sup>®</sup> all samples were re-analysed after addition of Dobanol<sup>®</sup>. The maximum cample storage period was 64 days (for storage stability see Section 3.6.2.3 of report).

At each sampling interval adjuots of the combined antisient and both microwave soil extracts were combined, concentrated and characterized by the primary chromatographic method (see Section 3.6.2.2.1 at report). A HDLC/radiodetection system using aphenythexyl-phase column was used for quantitation and identification by co-chromatography. Peak setting and integration was done manually by selecting the peak start and stop times. Peaks were evaluated as "regions of interest". No chromatographic analyses were performed for the PU foam plug extracts, because they contained less than 0.1% AR. Pest item and degradation products were identified by HPLC-MS(/MS) including accurate mass determination and by co-chromatography with reference items.

## III. RESERTS AND DISCUSSION

Results indicated that the anticipated standardized aerobic/anaerobic laboratory conditions were maintained during the entire incubation period in the dark. Maintenance of aerobic conditions was achieved by using an "open" test system (secalled bio-meter flasks permeable for air) incubated in a large air-conditioned room. Progressing anaerobic test conditions were received by flooding the test flask after approx. One DT<sub>0</sub> of Thiaclostid (i.e. 1 day) with oxygen free air and incubating the air-tight closed flasks in an oxygen free chamber.

The temperature was maintained during the study. The average temperature was 19.8 °C (max / min = 18.9 20.4 %). The standardised soil moisture of 55% of WHCmax was maintained during the 1<sup>st</sup> day of study. Vable soil was used within this study. The measured values for aerobic microbial biomass were found to be in the usual range expected of soils taken from agricultural fields. An anaerobic microbial biomass was successfully built up (see <u>Table 7.1.1.2-2</u>).



#### A. Data

The amount of applied test item for the degradation samples was determined at DAT-0 as 146778 Bq (equal to 35.6 μg) with a RSD of 0.8% and was set to 100% of applied radioactivity [% of AR in was confirmed that the application was homogeneous during the application procedure. The calculations for radioactivity (as % of AR) in the soil and the respective trap attachment for volatiles are listed in Table 7.1.1.2-3, the conclusive overview was presented in Table 7.1.1.2-1 already.

Complete material balances found at all sampling intervals for each soil demonstrated that there was no significant loss of radioactivity from the test systems of during sample processing During the study the total recovery of radioactivity (RA) in individual test vessels ranged from 97,5 to 109.5% of AR and the mean was 99.0% of AR.

# B. Method Validation

The mean DAT-0 recovery for the test item was 90.6% of AR for the tested soil (see Pable The concentration recovery for the water samples and the combined soil extracts were between 99.7 and 102.0% of AR. These results demonstrate that the sample processing methods was well suited.

#### Verification of Chromatographic Procedures

The primary chromatographic method (HPL Gradi Setection) was well suited for the quantitative analysis of the samples of this study as demonstrated by a mean HPLC recovery of 100.1% and a good linear fit for injected amounts of [thrazolidine-2-14C]-Thiselopric from 9.0 to 917.0 Bq absolute on column (R<sup>2</sup> > 0.9993), the LOD of the primery chromatographic method was determined as 9.0 Bq absolute on column or 0.8% of AR.

#### Degradation of Test Item С.

A synopsis on biotransformation of Thiacloprid in aerobie soil is shown by Table 7.1.1.2- 1; the results were included on the proposed pathway of degradation in soil (see Figure 7.1.1.1-1). More detailed data (expressed as percent of AR) are summarized in Table 70.1.2-4.

#### Volatiles i.e. Mineralisation & <sup>14</sup>CO

During the short aerobic phase (K day), the maximum amount of carbon dioxide was 0.1% of AR, only. This carboo dioxide formation stopped after flooding and during anaerobic incubation. Formation of volatile organic compounds (VOC) was insignificant as demonstrated by values of < 0.1% of AR at all samplings intervals in the aer bic and anaerobic incubation phase.

### Test Item and Degradation Products in Soil Extracts

Extractable residues decreased from DATED to DAT-126 (corresponding to DASF-125) from 98.1 to 59.9% of AR. The amount of Thaclopfed in the soil extracts decreased from DAT-0 to DAT-126 (corresponding to DASF 425) from 97.6% of AR to < LOD in soil

Within the aerobic phase of the study, the appount of the test item Thiacloprid in the entire test systems decreased rapidly from 95.6 to 30.4% of AR (mean values). During the following anaerobic incubation period it.e. flooded state) the amount of Thiacloprid decreased to < LOD at study end.

The amounts of the degradation product YRC 2894-amide (M02) in the entire system increased to 63.7% of AR during the aerobic incubation period of one day and further to 85.1% of AR at DAT-8 (corresponding to DASF-7). From DAT-8 towards study termination the amount of M02 decreased to 64.4% of AR (mean values). The degradation product YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30) could be detected in single samples in very low amounts only. The total unidentified residues in the entire systems reached values not higher than 3.8% of AR. Maximum levels of individual unidentified minor transformation products in the entire system were not higher than 3.0% of AR.



	condi	tions (ex	xpress	ed as j	percen	tage of	f appli	ed rad	lioacti	vity, %	% of A	R) ©	
				Sampling Times									
	Days after Treatment		0	1	1	5	8	13	35 🕷	> 63	91	926	
Days after Soil Flooding		N/	Ά	0	4	7	12	34	62	90 🔎	125		
8									- Or			°~	
Volatiles of	of Aerobic Incubati	on Phase							1			Ś	
		А	n.a.	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	Q i	
	Carbon Dioxide	В	n.a.	0.1	0.1	000	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	∫ <sup>″0.1</sup> ∧	<sup>*</sup> <sup>%</sup> 0.1	
		Mean	n.a.	0.1	0.1	W.Y	0.1	_8_	0.1	0.10	0.1	0.1	
	Volatile Organic	A	n.a.	< 0.1	< 0.1	$\zeta^{< 0.1}$	< 0.1	0%1	< 0.1	ź091	<07	< 0.1	
	Compounds	В	n.a.	< 0.1	< 0.1	√ < 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	$O^{0.1}$			
		Mean	п.а.	< <b>0.1</b>		< <b>0.1</b>	< 0.1		• <b>\ 0.1</b>	V = 0.1	0.1	0.1	
	<b>Total Volatiles</b>	A B	n.a. n.a	0.1		0.1		°.0.0	0.1				
	Aerobic	Mean	n.a.	0.1 @	0.1	°0.1	$\sim 0.1$	×10.1	J 0.1	Ĩ	°6√ł	05	
Volatiles o	of Anaerobic Incub	ation Phase		0				8	$\mathbb{N}$		~7/ e	4	
		А	N/	'A «	n.a.	<	< 0,1	< 0.10	< 0.1	< 0.1	∀<0.1 (	₹ 0.1	
	Carbon Dioxide	В	N/		n.a.	≈ <b>0</b> .1	< 0.1	< 40.1	< 000	< 0.1	< 0,1	< 0.1	
		Mean	Ň	× *	n.a.	0.1	0.1	60.1	s,≪ <b>9</b> .1	≪0/1	< 0.1	< 0(1)	
	Volatila Organia	А	Ø	A N	n.a. 🦉	< 0.↓	♥<0.1	D<0.1 🔉	₹0.1	\$ 0.1	0.1	00.1	
	Compounds	В	<sup>N/</sup>	A	na	<04,7	< 0. ř	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	Q <sup>≈ 0.1</sup>	₹0.1	
		Mean	∬ N/	A V	°≽n,∦.	≪0,1	<u>∧0,</u> ₩	S CAL	< 0,1)	< 0.1	< 0.1 %	<i>v</i> < 0.1	
	Total Volatiles	A A	D°N/ ≹	A	n.a.	< 0.1	30.1	$0^{0.1}$	$\bigotimes_{1}^{1}$	<0.4	≪0.1	< 0.1	
	Anaerobic	ы	KAL		n.a.	< 0.1	0.1	< 0.1	0.1	$0^{0.1}_{0.1}$	< 0.1	< 0.1	
		NICAS	~/		0.1			0.1	< 0.1	0.1	0.1	< 0.1	
Total Carbon Dioxide			n.a.		-0.1 La 1	0.1 · @9/1	64	0.12) (19)	.0	0.1 @	0.1	0.1	
		Mean C	n.a. 🔊	0.1	$\mathbb{Q}_{0.1}$ .	0.1	. 0.1	<b>9.</b> 1		~0.1	0.1	0.1	
	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	A	n.a.	< 0.	< 0.1	< 0.1	▼ < 0.1	< 0.1 %	N × 0.1 4	0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	
Total Volatile Organic		B,	Ô	<01	<	$< 0.0^{\circ}$	< 0.4	< 0.1	< 0,1 €	0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	
Compoun	as 🖉	Mean	Kh.a.	< 0.1	£9.1	<i>₹</i> 0.1	< <b>Q</b> ´	<0.1/	< 0:1	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1	
		. A 🍝	n.a.	0.1	♥0.1	\$0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	
Total Vola	ntiles No.	B	n.a	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	@0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	
		Mean	n.a.	<b>6.</b> ] ″	0.1 7	0.1	0.1	0.1	y 0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	
nd Soil Ext	ractable Residures	г <del>О.</del>		<u>(0)</u>		ð.		, Maria	11.7	11.4	11.0	10.2	
Water			- N/	7AS/ \A \$/	()21.1 1.2.5	$S_{20.0}^{20.3}$	0/.6	(A)9	11.7	11.4	11.2	10.2	
, Q	- 	Mesn			22.5	20.9 20.6 Ø	10.0	0 15 A	11.0	11.2	11.3	10.4	
Sallytro	ctable Residu							- 13.4	11.0	11.0	11.5	10.0	
Service			94.5	Q1 5		673	650	63.2	54 7	50.3	48.1	48.0	
	Ambient	B A	95.0	93.2 \$	70.6	\$/62.0	A7.4	64.1	56.6	50.1	49.0	47.0	
	a Ca	Mean	94.8	92,40	70.7	64.6>	67.3	63.7	55.6	50.2	48.6	47.5	
		Ŕ	. 605	\$2.9	30%	5,£%	7.3	9.2	13.0	14.1	13.0	12.2	
	Microwave	NB .	Č.3	O <sup>4.9</sup>	۵¥	Ø	7.4	9.1	12.5	13.9	13.0	12.7	
~		Mean	🕅 <u>3.4</u> 🖄	¥ 4.9	∕∕∕4.1 4	7.1	7.3	9.1	12.8	14.0	13.0	12.4	
.1	Total Soil	A A	98.0	96.5	74.7	73.2	74.5	72.4	67.7	64.4	61.2	60.2	
a de la compañía de	Extractable	RO <sup>3</sup>	98 J	98.0	74.2	70.3	74.8	73.2	69.1	64.0	62.0	59.7	
Ő	Residues 🔊 🌱	Mean	98.1	A.3	74,8	71.8	74.6	72.8	68.4	64.2	61.6	59.9	
Total Wat	er and Sail	A	¥98.0	\$96.5	95.8	93.6	92.1	87.3	79.4	75.8	72.4	70.4	
Extractab	le Residues		98.3	98.0	97.4 97.4	91.2	91.4	89.0	80.7	75.2	73.3	70.0	
	Ő	Mean	98.1 ♥	97.0	96.6	92.4	91.8	88.2	80.0	75.5	72.9	70.2	
	© ́				2.8	6.1 8.2	7.7	10.5	17.9	22.7	24.6	26.7	
ractable Ro	succes in the second se	Man *		31	2.9	0.3 7 2	7.9	10.0	18.4	23.3	23.0	27.4	
		Viviean		<b>J J J J J J J J J J</b>	<b>4.9</b>	1.2	/. <b>ð</b>	10.0	10.2	23.0	24.ð	27.0	
		AV R	99.8	99.8 101.2	98.6 100.4	99.8 99.6	99.9 99.4	97.9	97.4	98.0 98.6	97.0	97.1 97.5	
	U',	Man	99.8	101.2	99.5	<b>99.7</b>	99.7	98.8	98.3	98.6	97.7	97.3	
. 🚿	<u>ař 1</u>	La Concan	11.0	100.5	,,,,,	, <b>, , , ,</b> ,	, <b>, , , ,</b> ,	20.0	70.0	20.0	21.1	71.0	

#### 

V/A: net applicable n.d. not desected, appli-

**Bayer CropScience** 

Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid

1 able /.1.1.2	-4: K	lesidues	01 "C-1	niacio	prid in	extract	<b>01 SOII</b>				<b>4a</b>	,
(expressed as % of AR; mean ± SD)												
		Sampling Times									<i>S</i>	- OF
		DAT	0	1	1	5	8	13	3.O	63	ØЙ ĉ	126
Compound	Source	DASF	N/A		0	4	7	14 /	34	62 🐴	90 🔊 🔗	125
Thiacloprid	Entire System	Mean SD	$97.6 \pm 0.6$	$\begin{array}{c} 30.4 \\ \pm \ 0.0 \end{array}$	$27.5 \pm 0.6$	$6.1 \pm 0.2$	$4.7 \pm 0.0$	3.3 ± 0.4	$1.4 \pm 0.2$	1.1 ≇≁0.2	0.90 ± 0.0	<j.od< td=""></j.od<>
YRC 2894-	Enting	Mean	n.d.	n.d.	< LOD	< LOD	< LOD	- DD	< LOD	n.d.	n.d. 🖉	< LQD
sulfonic acid (M30) <sup>3</sup>	System	SD			ă	ş. Ş	ć	Ŗ	×,			~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Unknown 2 <sup>3</sup>	Entire System	Mean SD	n.d.	< LOD	< LOD	n.d.	n.d: N	n.d.°		nt.d. D	CLOD	LOD
YRC 2894-	Entire	Mean	n.d.	63.7	66.5	82.8	\$5.1 🔬	82.7_0	76.6	72. <b>4</b>	68.8	64.4
amide (M02)	System	SD		$\pm 0.4$ (	¥0.2 🖉	£ 1.5¢€	$\pm 0.2$	$\pm 0$	$\pm 0.7$	±_0.7	$\pm 0.1$	$\pm 0.9$
Unknown 4	Entire System	Mean SD	n.d.	n.d.	n.d.	n.d	n.d	< DOD	1.0 £0.1	5.5 ± 0.1≪	$\overline{1.6}$ $\pm 0.2$	$3.0 \pm 0.2$
Diffuse	Entire	Mean	< LOD	2,9 «	1,8	J.5 L	LOD	< LOD	< L@D	< FOD	0.	< LOD
residues	System	SD	AC.	± 1.4 ≤	$\pm 0.4$	$\pm 0.2$	×,	Ö	Ű	Å.	$\pm 0.0$	
Total	Entire	Mean	98.0 <sup>O</sup>	97.	95:6	9044 <sup>50</sup>	903	80.5	<b>39</b> .0 🔬	75.0 Ç	72.3	68.6
extractable residues <sup>1</sup>	System	SD	$\pm 0.1$	±61.1	<b>£</b> 0.7 √	€1.2 <i>č</i>	0.4 C	$\pm 0.40$	$\pm 0.4$	± 0.7%	$\pm 0.4$	$\pm 0.6$
Carbon dioxide <sup>2</sup>		Mean 🔌	n.a. 🏷	0.1	0.1	0.1 🞸	0.1	01	$0.\mathfrak{P}^*$	ÐĨ	0.1	0.1
(sum aerobic and anaerobic)		SD 🔊	Ő			±0.0	$\pm 0.0$	¥0.0 ~	ʱ0.0¢ộ	$\pm 0.0$	$\pm 0.0$	$\pm 0.0$
Volatile organic		Mean	ń.a.	₹0.1 گ	× 0.1	≪ 0.1∽\$	< 0.1	$< 0$ $\times$	< 1007	< 0.1	< 0.1	< 0.1
compounds (VOC) <sup>2</sup> (sum aerobic and anaerobic)		SD O		± 020	±.60	±%9%0	± 0.0	€ 0.0 Å	≁ 0.0	$\pm 0.0$	$\pm 0.0$	$\pm 0.0$
Non-extractable		Mean 4	Q.7	3.1 🔨	Ž.9 🔊	7.2 🔊	7.8	10.6	18.2	23.0	24.8	27.0
residues <sup>2</sup> (NER)		SD O	± 0. 0	± 🕵	±	±@1	5 <sup>0.1</sup>	÷ 0.0	$\pm 0.2$	± 0.3	$\pm 0.2$	± 0.3
		Mean	29:8	<b>40</b> 0.2	98.5 '	97.7 <sub>@</sub>	98.2	97.1	97.2	98.1	97.1	95.7
		SD 😤	€ 0.0	$\pm 1.0$	$\pm 0.8$	$\pm 0$	± 0,31	$\pm 0.5$	$\pm 0.6$	$\pm 0.3$	$\pm 0.6$	$\pm 0.3$

n.d.: not detected, n.a.: not analysed, DAT: days after treatingnt, DASF: days after soil flooding, SD: standard deviation

<sup>1</sup> Difference to Materia Balance values the to rounding errors as well as clean up and chromatographic losses

Ø

<sup>2</sup> Values taken from Material Balance

<sup>3</sup> Signals could be detected in some a in EPLC chromatograms but were below the calculated limit of detection

#### Non-Extractable Residues

In the short aerobic incubation phase, NER in soil increased from 1.7 to 3.1% of AR (mean values), only. During the following anaerobic incubation period NER increased to 27% of AR at study end. NER was further characterized for the samples of DAT-126 (corresponding to DASF-125).

### Kinetic Analysis of Data

The disappearance of Thaclopite was quite fast: for details on kinetics of degradation see Section CA 7.1.2.1.3 The harf-life for This cloprid was 1 day in the tested soil under anaerobic conditions.

#### Degradation Pathway S.

Based on the results of current study it is obvious that under anaerobic conditions the pathway of degradation of Thiacloprid in soil (presented by Figure 7.1.1.1-1) is slowed down at the stage of YRC 2894-amide (M02).



#### IV. CONCLUSIONS

The results obtained within this study showed that no new metabolite specific for anaerobic conditions is to be expected in soil. Whenever a treated plot turns to anaerobic status, e.g. after flooding by a heavy rainfall, residues of Thiacloprid will be degraded fast, mainly to YRC 2894-amide (M02). Thereafter, if the soil status turns back to normal aerobic soil condition, the degradation of M02 in soil will proceed following the pathway according to Figure 7.1.1.1-1.

#### CA 7.1.1.3 Soil photolysis

The route of photo-degradation of Thiacloprid on foil surface was evaluated during the formex k inclusion (compare EU Monograph, Annex B8), and was accepted by the furopeon Commission (SANCO/4347/2000 – Final; 13 May 2004). The following study included in the Baseline Bossier was regarded as relevant during the Annex I inclusion:

# Author(s) Year Document No. E. Year 19% Mc001245-01-1

#### EU conclusion of study performed by

Photo-degradation of Thiacloprid on soil surface is negligible since the dissipation rate in the irradiated samples was comparable to that in the dark controls. The phototransformation product M35 (YRC 2894-Dewar pyridone) observed at a maximum formation of <5% of AR during irradiation is shown in the route of degradation of Thiacloprid in soil as given in Figure 7.1.105-1. However, it is not regarded as relevant for soil and groundwater risk assessments since photo-degradation of Thiacloprid on soil surfaces with not significantly contribute to primary degradation of the parent compound under real use conditions.

No additional studies are submitted within this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval.

## CA 7.1.2 Rate of degradation in soil

Thiacloprid was well begraded in sol under aerobic conditions in the laboratory (Section CA 7.1.2.1) and in the field (Section CA 7.1.2.2). The data sets of Thiacloprid and its major degradation products and the respective kinetics modelling evaluations to be used for modelling purposes (acc. to FOCUS kinetics (2006)<sup>1</sup> are summarized in sections (A 7.1.2.1.1) and CA 7.1.2.1.2, and are submitted within this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval. An overview of results is presented by Table 7.1-1 and Table 1-2.

For modelling purposes, the overall metabolic scheme (Figure 7.1.1.1-1) was transformed into a multicompartmental model, based on measured data and kinetic evaluations of  $\underline{L}$ ;  $\underline{L}$ ;

<sup>1</sup> FOCUS kinetics (2006): "Guidance Document on Estimating Persistence and Degradation Kinetics from Environmental Fate Studies on Pesticides in EU Registration", Report of the FOCUS Work Group on Degradation Kinetics, EC Document Reference Sanco/10058/2005 version 2.0, 434 pp. BAYER Bayer CropScience

**Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid** 



Figure 7.1.2-2: Comparemental model used for the modelling of soil degratation of Thiacloprid (example implementation in FOCUS PELMO).

In order to select the relevant population to calculate the modelling input  $DT_{50}$ , the null hypothesis that laboratory and field values are equal was tested (EFSA, 2014)<sup>2</sup>. The statistical significance of differences in the laboratory and field  $DT_0$  values for Thirdcloperd, YRC 2894-amide (M02) and YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30) was checked with Student's t-test at a 25% significance level. As the t-test value (t) was lower than the t-quantile of t-distribution (tdf 1- $\alpha$ ), the null hypothesis was not rejected for Thiacloprid and YRC 2894-amide (M02). Hence, as the null hypothesis that laboratory and field half-lives are equal is not rejected, and the relevant population of half-lives consists of more than four values, half-lives were pooled from both laboratory and field studies. The resulting first-order  $DT_{50}$ values are given in Table 7.1.2 1 for Thiacloprid, and in Table 7.1.2-2 for YRC 2894-amide (M02). For M30 the null hypothesis was to be rejected thus the half-lives were not pooled and only field degradation data is taken into account (see Table 7.1.2-3 for M30 data).

A median  $DT_{50}$  value of 5.4 days is proposed to describe the degradation of Thiacloprid in the modelling calculations, i.e. for PEC . A median  $DT_{50}$  value of 41.3 days is proposed to describe the degradation of YRC 2894 mide (M02) in calculations, together with an arithmetic mean formation fraction from parent of 661. Geometric mean  $DT_{50}$  value of 15.6 days is proposed to describe the degradation of YRC 2894-suffonic acid (M30) in calculations, together with arithmetic mean formation fraction from YRC 2894-suffonic acid (M30) in calculations, together with arithmetic mean formation fraction from YRC 2894-suffonic acid (M30) in calculations, together with arithmetic mean formation fraction from YRC 2894-amide of 0.80 (for compilation of data see <u>Table 7.1-2</u>).



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> EFSA Guidance Document for evaluating laboratory and field dissipation studies to obtain DegT<sub>50</sub> values of active substances of plant protection products and transformation products of these active substances in soil. EFSA Journal, 2014, 12 (5), 3662.














Table 7.1.2- 3:	First-order soil D7	Γ <sub>50</sub> and formation	fraction values of	f YRC 2894-sulfonic
	acid (M30)			Į Č





### CA 7.1.2.1 Laboratory studies

Thiacloprid was well degraded in soil under aerobic conditions in the laboratory. The degradation of parent compound and its metabolites in soil has been investigated in several laboratory degradation studies after soil treatment by parent compound Thiacloprid (see section (A 7.1.1.1) or by the metabolites YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30), YRC 2894-des-cyano (M29) of YRC 2894-thiadrazine (M46) as summarized in section CA 7.1.2.1.2). The set of soil degradation data originating from these studies was evaluated in order to derive kinetic parameters to be used for predictions of environmental concentration of Thiacloprid, M02, M29, M30, M34, and M46. The evaluation was performed following the guideline given by the report of the FOCUS group on the evaluation (FOCUS 2006, 2012). The kinetic models and DT<sub>50</sub> values in soil of Thiacloprid and its major degradation products are summarized in sections CA 7.1.2.1.2 and CA 7.1.2.1.2.

Modelling input values derived from laboratory studies and their kinetic coaluations, then proposed for the calculation of predicted environmental concentrations of Thiacloprid and its major degradation products in soil, groundwater and surface water were included in <u>Table 7.1-0</u> (for PEC<sub>soil</sub>), <u>Table 7.1-</u>2 (for PEC<sub>GW</sub>) and in <u>Table 7.2-1</u> and <u>Table 7.2-2</u> (for PEC<sub>soil</sub>). They are submitted within this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval.

### CA 7.1.2.1.1 Aerobic degradation of the active substance

The rate of degradation of Thiacloprid in soil under aerobic conditions in the laboratory was evaluated during the Annex I inclusion (compare) EU Monograph, Annex (98), and was accepted by the European Commission (SANCO/4347/2000 - Final; 13 May 2004). The following studies included in the Baseline Dossier were regarded acrelevant during the Annex Linclusion:

	a			- O	$\sim$	
Author(s)			$\mathcal{S}$ $\land$ .		Near	<b>Document No.</b>
, R.,	, <sub>2</sub>	~~ ~			1998	M-001076-02-1
<mark>. Н.</mark> О	\$ 4	$\circ$ $\circ$	Š,	Ő.Ű	1998	M-001290-01-1
	-0	, Ø	1 2			

### Summary of study performed by R.,

A

The study conducted inder standardized aboratory conditions in 4 different soils (sand, loamy sand, loamy silt, and sondy form) with Interhytene-<sup>14</sup> F ThiacToprid was performed at an average concentration of  $3/.1 \ \mu$  as/100 soil (dry weight), i.e. equivalent to a recommended field application rate of about 300 to 350 g as ha. A summary of these data kinetically evaluated by 1998, is shown by Cable 7.2.1.

Table 7.22.1.1-1: Summary of $D I_{30}$ values of A macioprid by, H.; 199	le 7, 102.1.1-1: Summary of DTG values of Thiacloprid by <b>Example 1</b> .	<u>199</u>
---------------------------------------------------------------------------	-----------------------------------------------------------------------------	------------

	~~~		
Compound		DT5@Range at 20°C	DT <sub>50</sub> (geomean 20 °C, normalised to FC)
Thiacloprid		0.7Q4.7 days	1.3 days $(n = 4)$
YRC 2894-appr	le (M02)	<b>2</b> - 142 days	41.7  days  (n = 4)
L.			

No additional rate of degradation study for the active substance" is submitted within this Supplementa Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval.

However, the new route of Thiacloprid degradation studies by **E**.; 2003, and **E**.; 2011 (see below), can also be evaluated for degradation kinetics. Further due to changes in the requirements for kinetic fitting, the data evaluation by **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2003, and **E**.; 2003, and **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2003, and **E**.; 2003, and **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2003, and **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2003, and **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2003, and **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included an updated kinetic evaluation of the study performed by **E**.; **E**.; 2014, included kinetic evaluatio



FOCUS kinetics (2006) to derive kinetic parameters suitable for modelling purpose and environmental risk assessment.

Report:	KCA 7.1.2.1.1 /03; , E.; 2003				
Title:	Aerobic Degradation/Metabolism of Thiacloprid (YRC2894) in Soil				
	AXXa.				
Report No:	MR-433/02				
Document No:	M-106754-01-1				
Guidelines:	Official Journal of the European Communities, So. L 172 (EN), July 32, 95 🖉				
	Commission Directive, 95/36/EQ, amending Qouncil Directore 91/444/EEQ,				
	7171/VI/94-EN, 7.1.1 Route and Rate of Degradation.				
	SETAC-Europe: Procedures for Assessing the Environmental Fate and				
	Ecotoxicity of Pesticides March 995, Part 1, Section 9.1				
	German BBA Guideline, Part J, 4-1, 1986 a 2 a				
GLP:	Yes A O Q Q O' Q' A				
EXECUTIVE SU	MMARY A KY				

### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

summarizer route of The details on study performed by Thiacloprid degradation section C Ò

Report:	KCA 7.1.2.14/04; , , No, 2011
Title:	[Thia?olidine-2-14G]thiacloprid: Aerobic metabolism degradation in an
	European soil.
Report No:	$MEF-107140$ $\chi$ $\chi$ $\chi$ $\chi$ $\chi$ $\chi$
Document No:	@M-404822-06-1 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Guidelines:	OECD Guideline for Testing of Chemicals, Nov. 307, Aerobic and Anaerobic
	Transformation in Soil 2002
- O	US EPA Fate, Transport and Transformation Test Guidelines, OPPTS 835.4100
, Ô	and OPPTS \$35.4200, Astrobic and Anaerobic Soil Metabolism, 2008
	Commission Directive 95/36/EC amonding Council Directive 91/414/EEC
K~₹	(Annexed II and III, Fate and Behaviour in the Environment), 1995
GLP:	Ves to the the test of
Ő	
EXECUTIVE SŮ	MMARY N C N ON ON
The details on stud	by performed by an analysis and the summarized in the route of Thiaclopric
degradationsection	n CA 7.1.1.1.2 2 2 2 2
Å. A	
°	
L.	A Q <sup>Y</sup> S <sup>Y</sup> Q <sup>Y</sup>
Š .	
e S	
-	



Report:	KCA 7.1.2.1.1 /05; , L.; , S.; 2014
Title:	Kinetic evaluation of laboratory aerobic soil degradation of Thiacloprid (YRC)
	2894) and its metabolites according to FOCUS kinetics
	Thiacloprid (YRC 2894)
	YRC 2894-amide (KKO 2254)
	YRC 2894-thiazolidinimine (KTU 3072)
	YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (WAK 6999)
	YRC 2894-sulfonic acid amide (KTS 9815)
	YRC 2894-thiadiazine (BCS-CJ16425, MZ5)
Report No:	EnSa-13-0290
Document No:	M-454544-02-1
Guidelines:	FOCUS (2011): Generic guidance for extrating persistence and degradation
	kinetics from environmental fate studies on pesticides in EU registration. Version
	1.0, 23 November 2011
GLP:	No (modelling calculation)

### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

The set of soil degradation data originating from the relevant aerobic soil degradation studies with the insecticide Thiacloprid and its degradation products in soil i.e. YBC 2894-amide (M02), YRC 2894-des-cyano (M29), YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30), YRC 2894-sulfonic acid amide (M34), and YRC 2894-thiadiazine (M46), was evaluated in order to derive kinetic parameters to be used for predictions of environmental concentration of the substances. The evaluation was performed following the guideline given by the report of the EOCUS group in kinetic evaluation. For modelling purposes the resulting degradation half-lives were normalised to reference conditions 20 °C and 100% field capacity using a Quivalue of 2.5% for the temperature normalisation and a Walker coefficient of 0.7 for the moisture period.

In this chapter the evaluations for parent compound Thiacloud are summarized, only. For those of the degradation products in soil see next chapter <u>CA 7 22.1.2</u>.

Key parameters of soils and study conditions are summarised in following <u>Table 7.1.2.1.1-2</u>.

	× 2894)		S i	Ş			
Reference	Soil &	Texture class (USDA)	Sand content	Clay content [%]	Organic carbon [%]	pH (CaCl <sub>2</sub> )	CEC [meq/100 g]
	BBA	sand sand	×0 <sup>8</sup> 9.4	0.1	0.57	5.3	) <sup>a</sup>
<u>, K.,</u>	BBA 2.2	o loamy and	<b>≫</b> 80.5	7.2	2.48	6.3	) <sup>a</sup>
<u>, w.;</u>	žm T	al loamy silt	3.6	15.6	2.4	5.8	) <sup>a</sup>
1770		safady loana	65.7	7.9	1.12	6.7	) <sup>a</sup>
, E 2003		Xa sandy loam	72.4	5.0	1.02	6.3	8.0
<u>2011</u>	4a	silt loam	42.0	7.0	2.4	6.3	12.8

## Table 7.1.2.1.1- 2 Properties of the soils used in laboratory studies with Thiacloprid (YRC 2894)

### )<sup>a</sup> value not available

The compliation of non-normalised modelling  $DT_{50}$  values (at study conditions) for Thiacloprid (YRC 2894) derived from the different available data sets is shown by <u>Table 7.1.2.1.1-3</u>.



#### Table 7.1.2.1.1-3: Compilation of non-normalised modelling DT<sub>50</sub> values (at study conditions) for Thiacloprid (YRC 2894) derived from the different data sets Ø)

Model used for parent ) <sup>a</sup>	Thiacloprid
FOMC	2.960
FOMC	
FONG	
FÓMC	6.78 2 4
A FOMC Q	
SFO SFO	
O <sup>V</sup> O <sup>V</sup> A	2.08 A
	d. 9 2 2
	Model used for parent ) <sup>a</sup> FOMC FOMC FOMC FOMC FOMC SFO SFO SFO SFO

)<sup>a</sup> if necessary, parent DT50SFO was back-calculated from DT%FOM 3,32 or from slow phase (6) of HS

°~ The compilation of normalised modelling DT50 values of study conditions) for Theacloprid (YRC 2894) derived from the different available data sets is shown by able

Ø

 $\bigcirc$ 

Table 7.1.2.1.1- 4:	Compilation of norm	alised modelling	g DT values	for T	macloprid (	YRC
	2894) derived from (	be different data	ı sets 🔊	, Ô	Č0	

Ò

Study	Thiacloprid
	S DI 50 [days]
<u>, R.,</u>	, second se
BBA 2.1 S A S A BOMC A	<i>Q</i> <sub>1</sub> 2.96
$BBA 2.2 \qquad \qquad$	Q 2.16
im Talo O FOMC S FOMC	0.66
C FOMC O C	5.39
<u>, E.; 2003</u>	
AXXa O S S FOMO	1.83
<u>, N.; 2011</u>	
4a STO	0.35
Median & A & V & O	2.00
Geometric mean de	1.56

)a if necessary, parent DT Josfo was back earculated from D Josfo & 32 or from slow phase (k2) of HS

The geometric mean non-normalized half-life is 1 days; the geometric mean normalized half-life is 1.6 days for Thiaclopsid in soil.

### C CA 7.1.2.1.2 Aerobic degradation of metabolites, breakdown and reaction products

The rate of Regradation of Thiacloprid degradation products in soil under aerobic conditions in the laboratory was evaluated Quring the Annex I inclusion (compare EU Monograph, Annex B8), and was accepted by the European Commission (SANCO/4347/2000 - Final; 13 May 2004). The following studies report included in the Baseline Dossier were regarded as relevant during the Annex I inclusion:

Authors	Year	Document No.
, E.	1998	M-001112-01-3
, H.	1998	M-001290-01-1



M-042056-01-

Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid

### Summary of study performed by

J. An aerobic soil degradation study for the sulfonic acid metabolite M30 was conducted with three softs according to BBA (Part IV, 4-1) and SETAC guidelines. [14C]-M30 was added in methanol and water at a concentration of 0.194 mg a.s./kg dry soil. All incubation vessels (300 mL) were closed with trap attachments for CO<sub>2</sub> and organic volatiles (soda lime and glass wool, respectively) and acrobically incubated at  $20 \pm 1^{\circ}$ C in the dark for a maximum of 101 days with soil maintained at 3% WHC. After 0, 2 hours, 3, 7, 14, 30, 56, 77 and 101 days of incubation radioactivity from replicate soil samples was extracted with water and then water/methanol/1N HQ (800 + 200) 2 parts by olumes before quantification by LSC and identification by LC against authentic samples, MS and NMR.

The DT<sub>50</sub> values were reached in all soils within the test period of 101 days, even the DT<sub>60</sub>-values in the sandy loam and loamy sand soils were reached during the incubation period. The test substance was metabolized to <sup>14</sup>CO<sub>2</sub>, and two intermediates were identified. <sup>14</sup>CO<sub>2</sub> accounted for 49% (sandy loam), 19% (sand) and 86% (loamy sand) of the applied radioactivity after 101 days. Thus callon dioxide was the main degradation product in terms of quantity. Besides 14602 two further metabolites were observed (M32 and M34), which were dentified by spectroscopy. \$132 was the main metabolite in the sandy loam soil; it made up a maximum of \$8.1% of the applied radioactivity. In the other two soils M34 was the dominating degradate accounting for 22.7% at maximum

These results of study were kinetically evaluated study by the report below

### Summary of kinetic data@valuation perform@ by

The degradation behaviour of the amide metabolic (M02) was quantified using data from aerobic laboratory degradation studies with the parent compound ( , <u>R.,</u> , W.; 1998) for four soils. First-order kinetics was applied to the two individual steps of the degradation pathway (transformation of Thia Doprid to M02, degradation of M92) with the simplifying assumption that degradation of Thiacloprid followed first order kinetics, DT50 and DT95 values were obtained by nonlinear fitting using the software ACSL Optimize A summary of the results listed in Table B.8.3 in the Monographalso reported in the fist of endpoints, SAMCO/4347/2000 - Final; 13 May 2004, is shown by <u>Table</u> **1.2.1.1-1**.

, H.; **199** 

#### Summary of kinetics evaluation performed by : 2002

In the before-mentioned aerobic soil degradation study on XRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30) using three soils the YRC 2894-solfonic acid anid (NDS4) was generated in significant amounts. Therefore, both compounds could be kinetically evaluated. A summar of the results for M30 was listed in Table B.8.5 in the Monograph, also reported in the fist of endpoints, SANCO/4347/2000 - Final; 13 May 2004, is shown by Table 7.1.2 1, 2-1 below.

The summary of DT<sub>50</sub> evaluation of M24 was just contained in the list of endpoints, SANCO/4347/2000 - Final; 13 May 2004 and are summarised in the table below:

#### Table 7.1.2.1.2-1: Degradation kinetics of M30 and M34 in soils under aerobic conditions (data Lange from study by E.: 1998

Compound of the second	DT50 Range at 20°C (persistence values)	DT <sub>50</sub> (geomean 20 °C, normalised to FC)
YRC 2894-colfonic acid (MSO)	16 - 79 days	23.4 days $(n = 3)$
YRC 289 sulfonic acid amide (M34)	8 - 52 days	15.1 days $(n = 3)$

### E.: 1998



solution of the second of the AND BOARD ON THE OWNER OF THE O of the second of the owned the second the se



Ĩ
5
, //
Ô
s s
, C
Ő
×
,@/ */
ő

### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

The degradation test was conducted in groups soil (**1990**). A SXa, the same soil which was used in the lysimeter study (see Section CA 7.4.4.2) with interhytene-<sup>14</sup>Cl-WAK 6999 at an average concentration of 15.6  $\mu$ g as/100 g soil (dry weight). This was equivalent to the highest field application rate of about 400 g as the and assuming 30% conversion factor of This formit metabolized to WAK 6999. The calculation was based on a soil depth of 0-5 cm, and a soil density of 1.5 g/cm<sup>3</sup>. The soil samples were treated directly as it would happen during a spray application. All soils were adjusted to 40% of their maximum water holding capacity. The radioactivity determined in the appropriate amount of the application solution was defined as the totally applied amount at time zero. These values were the basis for further calculations. The flasks were incubated in the dark under aerobic conditions at  $20 \pm 0.5$  °C for 120 days. The evaporated amount of water was determined and replenished. Samples were taken for analysis at days 9, 3, 7, 14, 31, 62, 90 and 120 post-treatment. The soil characteristics are given by Table 7, 12, 1, 2, 2.

### Table 7.1.2.19-2: S Characteristics of soil used

Co	<i>(</i> ) .1	~ <i>V</i> 4//P		~~		
Soil Designation	Soil Sype <sup>a)</sup>	Sand (%)	Silt ~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	Clay (%)	Org. C (%)	pH (CaCl <sub>2</sub> )
AXXa	Sandy loan, GER	₹ \$2.4 \$2.4	√ 22 <del>.</del> €	5.0	1.02	6.3
		<i>K</i> ,	. Oř			

Note  $a^{(a)} = according to USD As the mass <math>a^{(a)} = a^{(a)} a^{(a$ 

Soil samples were extracted 2 times by shaking with 59 mL water, and additionally the solid residues were extracted 2 times with 50 mL of methanol/water/1N HCl (800/200/2 v:v:v). All extracts steps were carried out for about 30 minutes and at room temperature. The radioactivity was determined in all samples and paper filters used, and the extracts analysed by radio-TLC-methods. Metabolites were identified by co-chromatography with authentic reference compounds. Volatile radioactivity was trapped using soda line and released for measurement by adding HCl for <sup>14</sup>CO<sub>2</sub> (identified by Grignard reaction) or extracting the foam plugs with ethyl acetate for radio assaying by LSC. The degradation curve and regression malysis was calculated with the evaluation program "ModelManager, Environmental Kinetics), Version 1.1, developed and published by Cherwell Scientific Ltd. Oxford, UK, The model was run in the mode "use standard data" as well as "use existing parameter estimates".

In soil AXX a YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30) was degraded with a simple first order  $DT_{50} \rightarrow 25.9$  days ( $DT_{90}$  of 86.0 days) when incubated under aerobic conditions at 20°C. The statistical evaluation of the degradation is given in Table 7.1.2.1.2-3.

Table 7.1.2.1.2 5. Statistical Cyaluation of ucgrauation of 19150 m and 1917 Ara son	Table 7.1.2.1.2- 3:	Statistical evaluation of degradation of M30 in	AXXa soil
--	---------------------	---	-----------

Compound	Κ	DT50	DT75	DT <sub>90</sub>	Order	$\mathbf{\hat{K}}^2$
	(1/days)	as (d)	as (d)	as (d) 🖉		, C A
YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30)	0.0268	25.9	51.8	86.0	1 <sup>st</sup>	0:292

In the test the amount of  ${}^{14}\text{CO}_2$  increased over the entire study period. At the end of the study about 59% of AR was measured as  ${}^{14}\text{CO}_2$ . Thus carbon dioxide was the main degradation product in terms of quantity. Along with the overall metabolism of test substance NER was formed (maximum of 36% of AR, then decreasing to 33% at study termination). Besides CO<sub>2</sub> two further metabolites were observed and identified as YRC 2894-sulfonic acid amide (M34) and YRC 2894 diamide (M32), max. 5.3 % of AR and 5.8 %, respectively. No further degradation product >10% of AR was found in this study. The results concerning the recovery of radioactivity and the distribution of the test compound and the degradation products are summarised in Table 7.1.2 .2-4

# Table 7.1.2.1.2- 4:Mass balance and distribution of radioactivity after incubation of [146]-WAK 6999 in acrobic soil at 20°C (expressed as % of AR)

			a y						
Soil	DAT <sup>a)</sup>	M30	Q <sup>M32</sup>	©M34 ~	<sup>3</sup> 14CO <sub>2</sub>	Volatile ^ compounds	Extracted		Recovery
	0	90.7 Ø	n.đ	n.đ.	p.p.	, O D	91.1 %	<b>%</b> .4	100.4
	3	82,7	n.d.	~Q2.7	1.0	$\sim < 0 $	Ø 85.5	<b>Q</b> 4.3	100.8
	7	73.8	∭×n.d≈	Ç <sup>°</sup> 5.3	2.40	< 0.1	79.2	l 18.9	100.5
	14	°~64.9	n.d.Q	4	<b>\$</b> ,5	×0.1√√	<b></b> , 69.6	S 25.3	101.4
AXXa	31	44.7	65	ð.6	A9.8	$O^{\gamma} < 0$	49.7 6	28.8	98.3
	62 🔍	5 14 <b>0</b> 5	\$5.8	1.7	× 39.3 🧳	<0.1	24,1	34.5	97.9
	90 🖉	3.0	5.3	0.7	52.3	<i>∞</i> 0.1	9.3	34.9	96.9
	1,20	\_OŽ.2_°∕>	3.8	0.5	\$\$.7	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	~~~.6	32.9	98.3
	U /		6	` 🛛	A	$\sim$			

a) days after treatment; n.p. = not performed,  $n.d. \neq$  not detected s

The current/baboratory study deprenstrated that M30 is degraded in pricrobial active soil. Residues of M30 were steadily eliminated from the soil by mineralization to the major degradation product  $CO_2$ . The resulting  $DT_{50}$  for M30 was well in the range of the earlier study (compare <u>Table 7.1.2.1.2-1</u>).

The following aerobiosoil to gradation study on PRC 2894-des-cyano (M29) was needed to evaluate its behaviour in soil and to perform the groundwater rist assessment.

Report:	
Title? Thiacoprid-des-cyano: Acrobic degradation in four European soils.	
Report No: $S1220001$	
Document No $\mathcal{O}$ M <sub>x</sub> 447080-01 $\mathcal{O}$	
Guidelines of Classical Anaerobic and Anaerobic Guideline for Testing of Chemicals, No. 307, Aerobic and Anaerobic	
Traction in Soil, 2002	
USEPA ate, Transport and Transformation Test Guidelines, OPPTS 835.41	100
and OPPTS 835.4200, Aerobic and Anaerobic Soil Metabolism, 2008	
GLA V Vest	

### EXECTIVE SUMMARY

The degradation of the YRC 2894-des-cyano (M29) was investigated in four different soils of European origin (AXXa, AXXa, AXXa, 4a and

# BAYER Bayer CropScience

## **Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid**

Hof under aerobic conditions at 20°C in the dark. The study was performed with nonlabelled YRC 2894-des-cyano, a soil degradation product of Thiacloprid, over a period of 120 days (sampling intervals 0, 1, 2, 7, 14, 29, 59 and 120 days). The soil characteristics are given by Table 7.1.2.1.2-5.

Table 7.1.2.1.2- 5:	Characteristics of soils used
---------------------	-------------------------------

				.1		
Soil Designation	Soil Type <sup>a)</sup> and Origin	Sand (%)	Silt	Ctay 1%)	Org C	, <sup>©</sup> pH ≪ ↓ CaCl M
AXXa	Loamy sand, GER	82	<b>7</b> 9	Q 9	01.6	6.4
II	Clay loam, GER	38	33 🚽	29	5.0 Q	Õ₹.2 &
4a	Silt loam, GER	220	59 <sup>Q</sup>			6.35
	Sandy loam, GER	<u>6</u> 52	° 20	× 19,0°	2.9	<u>3</u> .4

<sup>a)</sup> = according to USDA scheme

For the test vessels 100 g of soil (dry weight basis) were used. The average soil moisture content was  $55 \pm 5\%$  of the maximum water holding capacity (NWHC) over the entire period of the study. The biological activity was checked directly after treatment, 50 days after application and at the end of the incubation period.

The actual application rate was  $9.62 \ \mu g$  YRC 2894-des-cyano per test vessel, which was equivalent to 0.0962 mg YRC 2894-des-cyano/kg soil (dry weight). Duplicate test vessels were taken for analysis per sampling interval. The entire, sample was, processed by extraction three, times at ambient temperature and once under microwave conditions. The combined extracts were analysed for YRC 2894-des-cyano residues by reversed phase  $(E_{C15})$  high performance liquid chromatography coupled with mass spectrometry (HPLC-MS/MS) in multiple reaction monitoring (MRM) mode using YRC 2894-des-cyano standards in pure solvent for cambration

The extraction efficiency during the study was demonstrated by concurrent recovery samples. This was demonstrated by fortification of untreated samples of **source and at 22-fold LOQ level** (corresponding to 5% of the application rate) and at 22-fold LOQ level (corresponding to 110% of the application rate), respectively. The mean recoveries of all concurrent recovery samples were between 85.3 102.2 % of the applied amount.

Residues of YRC 2894-des cyano declined to 78.7% in a soil, to 34.1% in a soil, to 61.6% in a soil during 120 days of incubation. The total applied amount determined directly after application was 101.4% in a soil, 99.5% in a soil, 92.0% if a soil of 20.0% if a soil and 99.9% in a soil.

The dissipation times  $(DT_{50} \text{ and } DT_{50})$  of the test term were calculated for each soil. While the fit resulting from first order multi-compartment (FOMC) calculation could be derived as the best fit for soil. The fits were best from opplying double first order in parallel (DFOP) kinetic models for the other three soils. The dissipation of YRC 2894-des-cyano (M29) from aerobic soil under laboratory conditions resulted in Galf-lives of 54.7 to 813 days for the respective soils (see Table 7.1.2.1.2.6 below).

Table 7.1.2 1.2 - 6 Statistical evaluation of degradation of YRC 2894-des-cyano (M29) in four solls



Soil (Soil type)	Best Fit Kinetic Model	DT <sub>50</sub> [d]	DT <sub>90</sub> [d]	ε [%]	Visual Assessment * ©
Soil AX (loamy sand)	DFOP	456.6	n/a	2.2	+
Soil DD (clay loam)	FMOC	54.7	n/a	10.8 🏷	+
Soil HaH (silt loam)	DFOP	247.4	990.8	2.0	+ ~ ~
Soil HH (sandy loam)	DFOP	813.0	n/a	1.2	+ ~ ~ ~

\* Visual Assessment: + = good, o = moderate, - = poor; n/a: not applicable

The following aerobic soil degradation study on YRC 2894-thiadiazabe (M46) was needed its behaviour in soil, with respect to groundwater exposure assessment.

Report:	KCA 7.1.2.1.2 /07; A.; 2013 & Y & Y
Title:	Thiacloprid-thiadiazine: Rerobic degradation in four four four oils.
Report No:	S12-00014
Document No:	M-448295-01-1 5 5 5 A 5 A
Guidelines:	OECD Guideline for Testing of Chemicals, No 307, Aerobic and Anaerobic
	Transformation in Soil, 2002 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
	US EPA Fate, Transport and Transformation Test Guidelines, OPPTS \$35.4100
	and OPPTS \$\$5.4200, Aerobic and Anacrobic Soil Metabolism, 2008
GLP:	Yes a tr of S a b o th
-	

### EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The degradation of YRC 2894 chiadiazine (Ma6) was investigated in four different soils ( AXXa), AXXa

### Table 7.1.2.1.2- 7: Characteristics of soils used

Soil Designation		Self Ty and Or	/pe <sup>a)</sup>	Sand (%)	\$îlt ,े≫(%)	Clay (%)	Org. C (%)	pH (CaCl <sub>2</sub> )
AXXa 🗞	9′ 4⁄	Loamy sar	id, GER	<b>7</b> 8 '	14	8	1.7	6.4
II 🔊	A	Loam,	GER	36 0	38	26	5.1	7.1
	<b>4</b> ₽∕	Silt Joam	, Ĝer 🇳	× 20	62	18	1.9	6.4
	0.0	Sîlt loam	, GER , Y	<u>34</u>	52	14	2.9	5.5

Note  $a^{a} = according to USDA scheme$ 

For the test systems 100 g soil (dry weight basic) were used. The average soil moisture content was  $55 \pm 5\%$  of the maximum water fielding capacity (MWHC) over the entire period of the study. The application rate of YRC 2894-thiadiazine (M46) was 3.6 µg per vessel and 100 g soil (dry weight), which was equivalent to 0.037 mg YRC 2894-thiadiazine/kg soil (dry weight). Duplicate test systems were worked up per sampling interval. The entire soil per flask was extracted three times at ambient temperature followed by one time under hot conditions by microwave extraction. The combined extracts were analysed for YRC 2894-thiadiazine residues by reversed phase high performance liquid chromatography/mass/spectrometry (HPLC-MS/MS).

Method development and validation was performed successfully within this study. In addition, the extraction efficiency during the study was demonstrated by concurrent recovery samples. Therefore untreated **solution** soil samples were fortified at each sampling interval with YRC 2894-thiadiazine at the LOQ level (corresponding to 5% of the application rate) and at 22-fold LOQ level (corresponding to 110% of the application rate). The mean recoveries of all concurrent recovery samples were 92.5% of the applied amount at the LOQ level and 96.7% at the 22-fold LOQ level.



YRC 2894-thiadiazine was degraded within 96 days to 10.8% and 10.5% of the applied amount in and and a soils. In the other two soils YRC 2894-thiadiazine decreased to 3% (1000) and 9.2% (1000) of the applied amount 71 days after treatment, already.

The dissipation times (DTs) and DTs) of the test time were calculated for each coll the data are shown in the following table (see Table 7.1.2.1.2.8) below). YRG2894-thiadjazine (046) dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions, with typical haldjazine (046) dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical haldjazine (046) dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions, with typical haldjazine (046) dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical haldjazine (046) dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions, with typical haldjazine (046) dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical haldjazine (046) dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions, with typical haldjazine (046) dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical haldjazine (046) dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions, with typical haldjazine (046) dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical haldjazine (046) dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical haldjazine (046) dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical hald dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical hald dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical hald dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical hald dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical hald dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical hald dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical hald dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical hald dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical hald dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical hald dissipated from soils under aerobic laboratory conditions. With typical hald dissipated from soils under aerobic attraction of the open of the The dissipation times (DT<sub>50</sub> and DT<sub>90</sub>) of the test item were calculated for each soil. The best fit kinetic models are shown in the following table (see Table 7.1.2.1.2-8 below). YR@2894-thiadiazine (M46)

# **Bayer CropScience**

#### Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid

Table 7.1.2.1.2- 8:	Statistical evaluation of degradation of YRC 2894-thiadiazine (M	[ <b>46) in</b>
	four soils	Ø

Soil (soil type)	Best Fit Kinetic Model	DT50 [d]	DT90 [d]	3	Visual Assessment *
AXXa (loamy sand)	DFOP	25.1	95.3	A.2	
II (clay loam)	SFO	9.5	31.7	2.5	\$ +\$ . \$
(silt loam)	DFOP	28,0	101.8	ي» 2.3	
loam) (sandy	SFO	21.0	69.6	1.6	
w T 1 4 1 1			d s		

\* Visual Assessment: + = good, o = moderate, - = poor.

The set of soil degradation data originating from the old and new studies was evaluated by , S.; 2014, in order to derive kinetic parameters to be used for predictions of environmental concentration of the substances. In the following the respective evaluation of the degradation products is summarized. The evaluation of parent compound was summarized in Section CA 7.1.2.19. L

a,

KCA 7.1.2.1.2 /08 (L.; 53.; 2014)
Kinetic evaluation of laboratory aerobic soil degradation of hiactoprid (PRC
2894) and its metabolites according to FOCUS kinetics
Thiacloprid (WRC 2894) $\mathcal{O}$ $\mathcal{O}$ $\mathcal{O}$ $\mathcal{O}$ $\mathcal{O}$ $\mathcal{O}$ $\mathcal{O}$
YRC 2894 amide (KKQ 2254)
YRC 2894 thiazolidinimine (KTU 3072)
YRC 2894 sulfonic acid (WAK 6999)
YRC, 2894, Sulfonie acid amide (KTS, 9815) &
YRC 2894 thiadiazine (BCS-CJ16425, MZS)
18702900 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
M-4549344-0221 , 2 , 2 , 3 , 5 , 5 , 5 , 5 , 5 , 5 , 5 , 5 , 5
FOOUS (2011): Generio guidance for estimating persistence and degradation
kipetics from environmental fate studies on pesticides in EU registration. Version
1.0, 23, November 2011 $2^{10}$
No (chodelting calculation)

### EXECUTIVE SUMMAR

The soil degradation of the insecticide This Toprid (YRC 2894) and its metabolites YRC 2894-amide (M02), YRC 2894-des-cyano (M29), YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30), YRC 2894-sulfonic acid amide (M34), and YRC 2894-madiazine (M46) has been investigated in several laboratory degradation studies after application of either Thracloprid W., 1998; , **R**., E.; (2011), YRC 2894 Sulformer acid (M30; E., 19<u>98</u>; J.; 2003: 2002), YRC 2894-des-cymo (M29; ,  $M_{\odot}$  2013) or YRC 2894-thiadiazine (M46; A.; 2013) to different soils. The set of soil degradation data originating from these studies was evaluated in order to derive kinetic parameters to be used for prediction of environmental concentration of the substances.

The evaluation was performed following the guideline given by the report of the FOCUS group on kinetic valuation. For modeling purposes the resulting degradation half-lives were normalised to reference conditions 20 °C and 100% field capacity using a Q10 value of 2.58 for the temperature normalisation and a Walker coefficient of 0.7 for the moisture normalisation.

The geometric mean non-normalised half-lives are 49.5 days for M02, 152.4 days for M29, 31.8 days for M30, 30.2 days for M34, and 19.8 days for M46, which are presented in Table 7.1.2.1.2-9.

VER B/

### Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid

The formation fractions resulting from the evaluation for the relevant Thiacloprid metabolites M02, M29, M30, M34, and M46 are presented in Table 7.1.2.1.2-10.

The geometric mean normalised half-lives are 46.6 days for M02, 140.7 days for M29, 29.3 days for M30, 28.4 days for M34, and 19.8 days for M46 (see <u>Table 7.1.2.1.2-11</u>).

ueriveu	from the unierent	ualagets		1	Nº N	
Study / Soil	Model used for test item <sup>)c</sup>	M02	M29	M30 🔬	M3	م <sup>3</sup> 146 م
, R., , W.; 1998	4		Q <sup>®</sup>	° 4		
BBA 2.1	FOMC	41.42	∼, -) <sup>a</sup> Ø	36.40	0' ĝ	Ű
BBA 2.2	FOMC	<u>85.70</u>	D 34 <i>,5</i> 3	_@_) <sup>a</sup> ⊘		\$ <del>}</del>
im Tal	FOMC	∂, <sup>36.2</sup> \$	(A) <sup>a</sup>	≫ - )ª ∽	4	
	FOMC	152,92	J90.44 O	- ) <sup>aO</sup>	ó <sup>4</sup> 2	° -++ °
<u>, E.; 2003,</u> M-106754-01-1						A.
AXXa	FONC C		<sup>∞</sup> ) <sup>b</sup> Č	v 120 53	<u> </u>	
, <u>N.; 2011</u>			X X	20		
4a	ŠFO Q	Q75.11 Ó	-0-	09.99 <sup>C</sup>		
<u>, E.; 1998</u> (M30 applice	as test item)				X	
BBA 2.1	SFO S	*	L ?	72,83	<sup>0</sup> 54.93	
BBA 2.2	SFO S O	<u>'0'</u>		<u>`</u> \$9.71	2 16.57	
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	SFO Q	Ś ¢		22.14	- ) <sup>a</sup>	
<u>, J.; 2003 (</u> M30 applied action	šstiteĝn) Õ 🏷	, <u>0</u>	S u	Ŭ,Ô		
AXXa 🔊 🔊	Sto a S	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	26,39		
<u>, M.; 2013</u> (M29 applied as te	sortem)			, a,		
	SFO SFO	N N	8 <b>5</b> .37 ~	>		
4a 🧳	HS LO L	~	<b>\$</b> 09.16			
Hof	HŠ Š	~~ (	0 835 <i>, 5</i> 2			
AXXa 🔬 🐇	(-) <sup>b</sup>	<i>" ©</i>	, Oř			
<u>, AQ2013</u> (M46 applied as re	st itenn		08			
	SFO S S	<i>u</i> ,	×			9.54
4a <sup>*</sup>	SFO SFO	0 <sup>×</sup> ~~				29.25
H&	SFQ	,				20.96
AXXa O	SKO O O	- A				26.19
Median $\sqrt{9}$ $\sqrt{2}$		×1.42	110.44	23.39	35.75	23.58
Geometric 🏚 ean 🔍 🔌	$\mathcal{P}' \xrightarrow{\mathcal{A}} \mathcal{O}'$	Ø49.49	152.39	31.82	30.17	19.78

#### Table 7.1.2.1.2-9: Non-normalised DT<sub>50</sub> values for the relevant Thiscloprid metabolit derived from the different data sets





Table 7.1.2.1.2- 10:	Compilation of formation fractions derived from the different data sets	5
	*	0
		2

Study / Soil	YRC 2894 → M02	M02 → M29	M02 → M30	M30 → M34
, R., W.;1998			<b>A</b> .	50
Soil BBA 2.1	0.74	(0.18) <sup>b</sup>	0082	<u> </u>
Soil BBA 2.2	0.82	0.22	(Ø.78) <sup>b</sup>	
Soil im Tal	0.77	(0.14) <sup>c</sup>	(0.29)°	6° 29° 4
Soil	0.79	م 0.23	(0.77) <sup>c</sup>	× 2
. E.: 2003		T (		
Soil AXXa	0.72	(0 11)° (0	(0.33)	
N · 2011	2		6° Å 4	Č, Č,
Soil 4a	0.89	(0.20) %		
E . 1009	0.89			$\sim$
<u>, E.; 1998</u> Soil BBA 2-1			N N A	 70 √ °
Soil BBA 2.2				0.42
Soil	¥		× ··· ×	(0.23) <sup>b</sup>
Arithmetic mean) <sup>a</sup>	Q.0.79	<b>0</b> 22) <sup>a</sup>	0.69 a	0.56 ) <sup>a</sup>
) <sup>a</sup> values in brackets were not conside	red reviable and were evalu	ded from averging	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	Q.
) <sup>b</sup> modelled formation phase did not r	each beak concentration of	emerging substance		\$~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
) <sup>c</sup> overall poor visual fit of either prec	suppor or emerging substang		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	
= pathway not observed in respect	tye studysoil.	r 4 jõr	Ø. Ö	1
~			Y Q	
, T	AN	Ĵ Ô <sup>\$</sup> 4.		
		NY OV		
		S Q	) "\	
S, O				
			\$J <sup>\$</sup>	
The second se			7	
	19 A 57			
	Ğ LÖ LÖ	* ^9 ~>		
29° 47				
6 A		Č Č		
	<u>, 60 à 6</u> 9	, S.		
		~		
A Ö	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	Ø		
D' Q		J		
	× ~ ~ ~			
N Or				
	Y ~ Q			
	* ~			
J & A S	<i>u</i>			
No.				
$\bigcirc$				



 $\gg$ 

Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid

Table 7.1.2.1.2- 11:	Normalised DT <sub>50</sub> values for the relevant Thiacloprid metabolites	derived
	from the different data sets	Ű

	[	1	1		1	
Study / Soil	Model used for test item	M02	M29	M30	M34	<b>M</b> 146
, R., , W.; 1998					$\langle \rangle$	
BBA 2.1	FOMC	41.30	- <sup>)a</sup>	36.29	🔊	
BBA 2.2	FOMC	85.70	34.55	a ja		<u> ~-                                   </u>
im Tal	FOMC	33.7	- <sup>)a</sup>	)a	* ~	\$
	FOMC	121 77	87.84	- <sup>)a</sup>	<u>,0                                    </u>	-*, 4
<u>, E.; 2003</u>		4	08	Ń		S 4P
AXXa	FOMC	( <sup>(a)</sup> ) <sup>a</sup>	-)6	₀110.78 <sup>O</sup>	(	, ,©
, N.; 2011		<i>¥</i>	∼, Ŭ	Ŷ,	Ŏ Ø	Ĩ
4a	SFO 🖉	15.11	0-) <sup>a</sup>	9799 8	, , <u>s</u>	
<u>, E.; 1998</u> (M30 applied	d as test item)					
BBA 2.1	SFO 3	0		65.55	<b>6</b> 8.77 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	· 4
BBA 2.2	SFO SFO		A	19571	16.57 🛇	
	SFO	& .4	· ô <sup>y `</sup> .	<b>, 19</b> .14 🔊	- )ª🥪	<u></u>
, J.; 2003 (M30 applied as te	st item?				Ô.	
AXXa	SEO 🛷 📎	🖉		18.84		
, M.; 2013 (M29 applied as tes	st Nem) & Ø	ð á	<u>, 0</u>	, o Č	۶ ۲	
IIQ	SFQ	Ş ,0°	78,66	a. »		
4a 🗸 🗡	HS S	📎	292.07	~	-Q´	
	the s of	0	789.32	-	þ	
AXXa 🍾	-) <sup>b</sup>	Å- 0	-) <sup>b</sup> ‴,	3 <del>-</del> - 2		
<u>, A.; 2013</u> (M46 applied agte	stiteôn) O 🖔		\$ G			
II Ś	Sto a S					9.54
4a 🗸 💊	¢\$FO ∕Ş ́	a Ca	<sub>a</sub>	01		29.25
	SFO	V N	0	<u>}</u>		20.96
AXXQ	SFO CO N	%				26.19
Median 🖤 👸 🗸		41,30	₽87.84 🖉	19.71	32.67	23.58
Geometric mean 🔬 🤘		46.59 🕡	140268	29.34	28.43	19.78

)ª No religible half-life obtained due poor voual fit; for details see chapters 7 to 7.18 of report.

)<sup>a</sup> No reliable half-life obtained due to poor visual fit; for details see chapters 7() <sup>b</sup> No reliable half-life obtained due to failed t-test for degradation rate kx. --- = substance not observed in respective study/soft.



### CA 7.1.2.1.3 Anaerobic degradation of the active substance

The rate of degradation of Thiacloprid in soil under anaerobic conditions in the laboratory was not yet vertice evaluated during the Annex I inclusion (see EU Monograph, Annex B8; European Comprission (SANCO/4347/2000 – Final; 13 May 2004).

Since in general an exposure under anaerobic conditions cannot be excluded, a e new study performed with [thiazolidine-2-<sup>14</sup>C]-Thiacloprid is submitted within this Supplemental Dessier. For the Thiacloprid renewal of approval.

			, U	~	
Report:	KCA 7.1.2.1.3 /01;	, <u>H</u> ₄-₽.;	, 70; 2014.		
Title:	[Thiazolidine-2-14C]-	Thiacloprid: Anaer	obic Metabolisr	n%Degr@dati	op in Sont
Report No:	EnSa-13-0490		O X V		y <sub>a</sub> ş
Document No:	M-484954-01-1	Ö Ü ×			4
Guidelines:	OECD Guideline for	Testing of Chemica	ıls, <b>N</b> o. 300, Ae	robic and An	aerobic 🔏
	Transformation in Sec	jī, 2002, 🚿 🖉	$\rightarrow$ $A$ $\dot{c}$		S. V.
GLP:	Yes				

### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

For detailed summary of study see Section CA 9.1.1.

The experimental data of the maerobic degradation of Thraclopfed could be well described by a first order multi-compartment (FOMC) kinetic model. The anaerobic half the of Thiacloprid after flooding and shift to anaerobic conditions was 6 day. The table below summarizes the best fit results of the  $DT_{50}$  and  $DT_{90}$  calculations.

Table 7.1.2.1.3- 1: Best fit DF50 evaluation for Thiacloprid degradation in soil after flooding

		× × ~ ~ /		~~//	
Soil	\$ 0 0	Best Kit	DT DT DT DT 90	3	Visual
(Soil Type)②	10. ·S	Kinetic Model	(d)	- [%]	Assessment <sup>2</sup>
(Silt loam)	4a â	Fom		2.0	+
			۵ <sup>۷</sup>		

<sup>1</sup> FOMC: First order multi comparation in <sup>2</sup> Visual assessment: + good

# CA 7.1.2.1.4 Anaerobic degradation of metabolites, breakdown and reaction products

No studies are submitted and required.

From the study performed with Thiaclopfed by **H.-P.**; **M.-P.**; **1000**, T.; 2014, it is indicated that after flooding and set-up of an aerobic conditions the degradation of YRC 2894-amide (M02), the major primary metabolite of Thiaclopfed is slowed down. From DAT-8 towards study termination the amount of M62 decreased from 85Å to 64.4% of AR (mean values, see <u>Table 7.1.1.2-4</u>). The results of the study showed that no new metabolite specific for an aerobic conditions is to be expected in soil.



#### CA 7.1.2.2 **Field studies**

The behaviour of Thiacloprid in soil under field conditions was evaluated during the Annex I inclusion? (compare EU Monograph, Annex B8, SANCO/4347/2000 - Final; 13 May 2004). Two field soil dissipation studies were performed and evaluated (see next Section). Novadditional experimental studies are submitted within this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval

### CA 7.1.2.2.1 Soil dissipation studies

The dissipation of Thiacloprid in soil under field conditions was evaluated during the Aspiex inclusion (compare EU Monograph, Annex B8), and was accepted by the European Commission (SANCO/4347/2000 - Final; 13 May 2004). The following studies included on the Baseline Dossier were regarded as relevant during the Annex I inclusion:

	Ô		×,	L.	s s	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
Author(s)	4	Ś			<b>Year</b>	Document No. ( °
, H.	× ×		,×~~~	A		M-001625-01-2
, H.	ja in	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		Ő	2997 S	M-001007-01-1
		$\sim$	0	N/		ev -

Further, two storage stability investigations on soil samples were included. They confirmed a sufficient storage stability of the realdues in soil

Author(s)	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	L R .	Year	Document No.
, H.	N° &	a 4 X	1,900	M-002218-01-1
, H.				JМ-002220-01-1
		. 0 %		

### EU conclusion of study performed by

Two field dissipation trials were conducted in southern Europe according to BBA guidelines (Part IV, 4-1). Non-radiolabelled YRC 2894 (480 SS) was applied to base soil at an application rate of 0.6 kg/ha (0.288 kg as/ha) in spring 1995. A single application was conducted in two different typical agricultural regions of France and Spain. The application rate was 0.288 kg as/ha.

H.; 1998:

The following kinetics cosults were stated in the list of endpoints for Southern Europe:

 $-16 \text{ days} (n = 2, r^2 = 0.90 \neq 0.99)$ DT<sub>50f</sub> of Thiacloprid

DT<sub>50f</sub> of M02: 107 Mays

∭ days∦n = DT<sub>90f</sub> of Thiacloprid: 357 days

DT<sub>90f</sub> of MO2

#### EU conclusion of study performed by **H.: 1997:**

Six field dissipation trials were conducted in worthern Europe according to BBA guidelines (Part IV, 4-1). Non-radiolabelled TRC 2894 was sprayed in spring (11 April to 3 May 1995) or summer (French site only, 24, July 1995) on pare soil at six sites selected as typical of agricultural regions of France, Germany and the L. Following the single application (equivalent rate of 288 g a.s./ha as 480 SC formulation) with a water rate of 209-300 L/ha, three sites were cropped with grass whilst the three others were kep@Bare by manual or mechanical weed control.

The following kinetics results were stated in the list of endpoints for Northern Europe:

DT for of Thracloprid: $DT_{50f}$ of $M02$ :	$\mathfrak{G}^{\mathbb{Z}}_{-27}$ 27 days (n = 6, r <sup>2</sup> = 0.82 - 0.96) 46 - 314 days (n = 6)
DT <sub>90f</sub> of Thiacloprid:	31 - 91 days (n = 6)
DT <sub>90f</sub> of M02:	153 - 1047 days (n = 4)



Ñ

Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid

No additional studies are submitted within this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval. However, due to changes in requirements updated kinetic evaluations of the degradation behaviour of Thiacloprid in soil under field conditions have been performed according to FOCUS kinetics (2006) to derive kinetic parameters suitable for modelling purpose and environmental risk assessment. This report is summarized as follows.

Ĉa

Report:	KCA 7.1.2.2.1 /07; , L.; , S.; 2013 , S.; 20
Title:	Kinetic evaluation of field dissipation studies with Thiacloprid (YRC 2894) and
	its metabolites YRC 2894-amide (KKO 2254, 1002) and YRC 2894 sulfonic acid
	(WAK 6999, M30) under European conditions
Report No:	EnSa-13-0429
Document No:	M-468397-01-1
Guidelines:	FOCUS (2011): Generic guidance for estimating persistence and degradation
	kinetics from environmental face studies on pesticides in EV registration Version
	1.0, 23 November 2011 $\sim$
GLP:	No (modelling calculation)

### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

The experimental data from order to determine trials (1990, 1990, 1990, 1997) were evaluated in order to determine triate parameters for Thiscloprid (YRC 2894) and its metabolites YRC 2894-safaide (M02) and YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M00) that are suitable for comparison against trigger values and as inputs for avvironmental fate models.

The evaluations were performed following guidance given by the FOCUS report and the EFSA opinion on kinetic evaluation. The evaluations were based on both non-normalized data at field conditions and data normalized to standard reference conditions for soft emperature (20°C) and soil moisture (100% field capacity, pF2) using the time-step method. For this, daily temperature and soil moisture values were determined for each site by simulation with PEARL 4.4.4, using site-specific soil properties and weather data. For the temperature normalization of Q<sub>10</sub>-value of 2.58 was used.

Based on a visual and statistical quality check, the kinetic parameters derived from all but one field study were deemed to be reliable persistence triggers and appropriate inputs for environmental fate models.

Non-normalized DT values (see Table 7.1.2 51-1) ranged from 5.3 days to 13.7 days for Thiacloprid ( $eo_{mean} = 8.9$  days), from 24.9 days to 321.1 days for M02 ( $geo_{mean} = 79.0$  days), and from 12.8 days to 97.6 days for M30 ( $eo_{mean} = 27.9$  days). The formation fractions of M02 and M30 are provided by Table 7.2.20-2.

Normalized  $DT_{50}$  values (see Table 7.1 2.1-1) ranged from 2.9 days to 9.5 days for Thiacloprid (geo<sub>mean</sub> = 6.2 days), from 24.1 days to 93.4 days for M02 (geo<sub>mean</sub> = 50.5 days), and from 7.1 days to 76.7 days for M20 (geo<sub>mean</sub> = 45.6 days).

Modelling endpoints derived from normalized field dissipation studies following EFSA Guidelines ranged from 4.1 days to 04.0 days for Phiacloprid (<u>Table 7.1.2.2.1-3</u>). The geometric and arithmetic mean ( $n_{\pm}$ ) with 7.9 and 8.8 days, respectively.

In conclusion, the field dissipation  $DT_{50}$  data of parent, M02 and M30 are in good agreement with the laboratory data, and are included in the overall summary of modelling input data listed by <u>Table 7.1-1</u> and <u>Table 7.1-2</u>.

Ũ



First-order DT<sub>50</sub> values of Thiacloprid, YRC 2894-amide (M02) and YRC Table 7.1.2.2.1-1: 2894-sulfonic acid (M30), derived from field dissipation studies under European conditions, following FOCUS (2006, 2011).

	-			-	, ,	<u>~</u> "0"	9
	Thiac	loprid	Μ	02	N M	300 ~	
Location	DT50) <sup>1</sup>	DT50ref) <sup>2</sup>	DT50) <sup>1</sup>	DT50ref) <sup>2</sup>	<b>DT</b> 50) <sup>1</sup>	DT 50ref	
	(da	ys)	(da	iys)	(d2	eys) 🔊 🖉	
	5.9	2.9	24.9	24.	$)^3 $	م ¢4.0 م	<i>y</i>
	6.4	6.6	<b>1\$3</b> .1	7 <b>2</b> ,¥	97,5	7.1	. W
	13.1	5.7	27.5	<b>98</b> .7	28.3	16.9	£.
	11.6	6.8	J 321.1	لم 133.4	019.1 Q	<b>6</b> 8.7 S	, ,
	10.8	9.5 🚔	165.1	~~ 53 <b>&amp;</b> 8°	$(3)^{3}$		
	5.3	7.0	) <sup>3</sup>	<u>_</u> 2 <b>8</b> .8		Q3Q'	
	) <sup>3</sup>		$(a^{\circ})^{3}$	×76.4 0		¥3.8	
	13.7	70	@ 43,∜	39,90	12.8	8.6	
Geometric mean	8.9	A 6.2 0	<b>79</b> .0 4	50.5	27 <b>9</b>	@ <sup>*</sup> 15.6	

)<sup>1</sup> based non-normalized residue data and best-fit kinetic model

 $)^2$  corrected to reference conditions of 20°C and 00% field capacity (pE2) re-calculated DT50<sub>SFO</sub> for use in exposure models  $)^3$  data did not allow to determine a reliable value  $\sqrt{2}$ 

 $\bigcirc$ 

Formation fractions (ff) of M92 and M30, Derived from field dissipation Table 7.1.2.2.1- 2: studies under European conditions, folloving FOCUS (2006, 2011).

	¥ . @.			$\cap$
К <sup>°</sup>	& & Ma	(2) <sup>4</sup>	🔊 🖉 M3	<b>5</b> 0) <sup>5</sup>
, Ø	O' 😥 🖉	ffref) <sup>2</sup>		ffref) <sup>2</sup>
	0.4501		v 1 v	) <sup>3</sup>
	, <sup>v</sup> (0.5323 <sup>O</sup>	0 0.5353	الاي 0.8365 <sup>9</sup>	0.8794
	S 0.24 <b>3</b> 0 S	2447	O' ty	1
	0.4095	رم 0.40 <b>7%</b> م	@1	1
	¢ 0.3141 √	£ <sup>♥</sup> 0.34977	× 1	1
		لاً 🖉 🕉 🖉	$(a)^3$	0.5054
	$(\phi ) = (\phi^3) $	0.5345	$( )^3 $	1
	05713 U	0.5095	0.2874	0.4116
Arithmetic mean	0.4201	Ô <sup>¥</sup> 0≪4608, O	0.8540	0.8281

)<sup>1</sup> based on pathway kinetics for ton-normalized residue data and best-fit kinetic model

)<sup>2</sup> based on pathway kinetics for corrected residue data to efference conditions of 20°C and 100% field capacity (pF2); for use in exposure models



# BAYER Bayer CropScience

**Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid** 

Table 7.1.2.2.1- 3:	Summary of modelling endpoints derived from normalised field	d residue
	data following EFSA Guidance (EFSA, 2010).	a)°

			uunee (1		10).		Å.	Q,
				Thiac	oprid (YRC	2894)	N O	1 <sup>V</sup>
			DegT	50matrix (da	ys)	🐐 Kine	tic <b>g</b> odel 👗	
				4.1	- A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		SFO	
				$n.r.)^1$	.1	2		
			\$	4.2	<i>S</i>	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	SFQ	
			Cô Ran	$(n.r.)^1$	a)	, si	N Ó	,C
			ŝ	$(11.4)^2$	Q.		Ms 🖉	S.
			G	10.3 🔏	,	o~ ~	SFOO	/
			4	14.0) <sup>2</sup>	b° Â	4	HS <sup>O</sup>	
			J	8,6/			SPO S	
Geometric mean		<u> </u>	ര്	<u>\$</u> .9 ×		ð v	, <sub>1</sub>	
Arithmetic mean		$\bigcirc^{\vee}$	, O 🎽	8.8	NO A		1	
) <sup>1</sup> no reliable DegT50 <sub>matrix</sub> was achieved ) <sup>2</sup> back-calculated from k <sub>2</sub> of HS	A			Q,	A. 8	, ON		
	A A				4 °~		<u> </u>	

### CA 7.1.2.2.2 Soil accumulation studies

Field accumulation and soil residue studies have bot been performed and are not required for Thiacloprid. As stated by the evaluation during the Amex Linclusion (compare CoEP on SANCO/4347/2000 –

As stated by the evaluation during the Aprice Linclusion (compare LoEP in SANCO/4347/2000 – Final; 13 May 2004) metabolite M02 could accumulate in Northern Europe. This is considered when taking the proposed input values for calculation of PEC<sub>sor</sub> Flateau listed in <u>Table 7.1-1</u>, i.e. a DT<sub>50</sub> of 321.1 days for degradation of M02.

### CA 7.1.3 Adsorption and desorption in soft

### CA 7.1.3.1 Adsorption and desorption

The adsorption and desorption behaviour of Thiacloprid and its M02, M30 and M34 in soil was evaluated during the Armex I belusion (compare EU Moregraph Annex B8), and was accepted by the European Commission (SANCO/4347/2000 – Email; \$3 May 2004).

Since not any adsorption and desorption data were stated in the LoEP for the metabolites M29 and M46, respective new studies performed and are submitted within this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval.

The following Table 7.1.2.1-1 summarizes the adsorption constants  $K_{OC(ads)}$  in soils to be used for modelling purposes:

# Table 7.1.3.1-1: Overall summary of adsorption constants K<sub>OC(ads)</sub> in soils of Thiacloprid and degradation products relevant for leaching assessments

Compound A A S Z	<sup>Q</sup> Koc <sup>)1</sup> [mL/g]	Kom <sup>)1</sup> [mL/g]	FREUNDLICH)1 exponent 1/n
Thiacloprid	615.0	357.0	0.88
YRC 2894 mide (19102)	293.0	170.0	0.83
YRC 2894- sulforic acid (M300)	20.2	11.7	0.94
YRC 2894-thirdiazine (M46)	9.6	5.6	0.96
YRC 2894-ces-cyano (M22)	371.0	215.0	0.84
YRC 289 sulfonic acid amide (M34)	7.0	4.1	1.00

<sup>)1</sup>: Arithmetic mean of available data set.



On the basis of the batch adsorption studies Thiacloprid is classified as moderately to slightly mobile, and there is no evidence that it dissociates at environmentally relevant pH. YRC 2894-amide (M02) is classified as moderately mobile and YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30) is classified as very mobile to mobile. YRC 2894-des-cyano (M29) is classified as low mobile, YRC 2894-sulfonic acid amide (M34) and YRC 2894-thiadiazine (M46) are classified as very mobile in soft There is no evidence that soil pH influences the adsorption of either Thiacloprid or the metabolites.<sup>6</sup>

### CA 7.1.3.1.1 Adsorption and desorption of the active substance

The adsorption and desorption behaviour of Thiaclopfid and its residues in soil was evaluated during the Annex I inclusion (compare EU Monograph, Annex B8), and was accepted by the European Commission (SANCO/4347/2000 - Final; 13 May 2004). The following adsorption studies for thiacloprid included in the Baseline Dossier were regarded as relevant during the Annex I inclusion:

	0		de de	A A L
Author(s)		, Year	A S	Document No
, J.		0 19% (rev	Va 1999 S	M-002086-08-2

### Summary of study performed by

The adsorption of Thiacloprid, was investigated in Batch Squilibrium Speriments, with six soils. Arithmetic mean K<sub>OC</sub> (K<sub>OM</sub>) value is used to quantify the sorption of Thiaclopred in PEC calculations, together with arithmetic mean FREUNDEICH exponent:  $K_{0C} \neq 615$  mL/g,  $K_{OM} = 357$  mL/g, 1/n = 0.880.88.

**3**× 1994

### Table 7.1.3.1.1-1: Adsorption data of Thiaclopeid

Soil		Koc Koc	♥ Kom √ [m]L/g]	FREUNDLICH exponent 1/n
		293	\$\\$`228 √	0.86
		¥753 Q	0 43 <b>0</b>	0.84
\$		52	Q . 203	0.94
		5,72	332	0.91
		\$870 \$	<u>م</u> م 505	0.87
		~ 582° O	338	0.83
Arithmetic	nean 🌾 🖂 🖉 👗	, 6 <b>1.5</b>	357	0.88
Geometric 1	nean <u>rean</u> c	<b>396</b> 🔊 4	346	-

No additional studies are subnitted within this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval.



## CA 7.1.3.1.2 Adsorption and desorption of metabolites, breakdown and reaction products

The adsorption and desorption behaviour of the Thiacloprid metabolites M02 M30 and M3 Ain soil was evaluated during the Annex I inclusion (compare EU Monograph, Anney B8), and was accepted by the European Commission (SANCO/4347/2000 – Final; 13 May 2004). The following studies included in the Baseline Dossier were regarded as relevant during the Anney I inclusion:

	G	<u> </u>	
Author(s)	- And	<b>D</b> ear	Document No.
, R.	.0.5	1995	M-060683-61-2
, B.		100° Å	M-901114-02-14
, HP.	Q° (		M-063807-04-1

Additional studies required for groundwater risk assessment have been performed with additional metabolites and are included in this Supplemental Dossie

### Summary of study performed by

The following arithmetic mean-values are used to quantify the corption of YRC 2894-amide in PEC calculations:  $K_{OC} = 295 \text{ mL/g}$  ( $K_{OM} = 170 \text{ mL/g}$ ; Ln = 0.83).

### Table 7.1.3.1.2- 1 Adsorption data of YRC 2894-amide M02

Soil	Å.		© <b>koc</b> ∫ [mL/g] ∽	Koc [mL/g]	FREUNDLICH exponent 1/n
	a) 🗸		229	<u> </u>	0.81
	at S		<i>3</i> 02 . Õ <sup>y</sup>	© <sup>™</sup> _ ©″175	0.81
	a) ″		× 0×313 × ×	<u>م</u> 182	0.91
	a)		166 O	96	0.76
	a)		× 138	254	0.81
	AXX	La <sup>b)</sup>		182	0.85
Arith	metic mean		Q 293 C O	<sup>°</sup> 170	0.83
Geon	netrie mean		280 .	162	-
a) data	from study by	<u>, R.; 1995</u>			

b) data from study by

by **1.1.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1 3.1.1** 

#### 

The adsorption of YRC 0894-splfonic acid (M30) was investigated in batch equilibrium experiments with five soils. On additional study investigating the adsorption of YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30) on lysimeter soil action of XXXA was performed. This further study **1000**, <u>B.;</u> **1000**, <u>R.;</u> 2003 was not in the baseline dossier and is summarized later. The respective results were included in following summary Table 7.1.3.1.2-2.

The following arithmetic mean values are used to quantify the sorption of YRC 2894- sulfonic acid in PEC calculations:  $K_{OC} = 20.2 \text{ mL/g}$ , ( $K_{OM} = 11.7 \text{ mL/g}$ , 1/n = 0.94).



Soil	Koc [mL/g]	Koc [mL/g]	FREUNDLICE exponent In
a)	15.4	8.9	0.980 6
a)	26.2	15.2	0.92
a)	17.4	10.1	<b>9</b> .97 <b>1</b>
a)	11.9	6.9 🔊	مَنْ 0.91 مَنْ <sup>1</sup>
a)	28.2	16.4	<u> </u>
AXXa <sup>b)</sup>	22.0	128	
Arithmetic mean	20.2	<b>XY</b> .7	0 0.94
Geometric mean	19.3	¥1.2	
a) data from study by <u>B</u> b) data from study by	. <u>: 1998</u> . R.: 20 <b>83</b> ذ		

### Table 7.1.3.1.2-2: Adsorption data of YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30)

### Summary of study performed by

The adsorption of YRC 2894-sulfone acid amide (M34) was investigated for batch equilibrium experiments with four soils. The results are summarized in Table (1.3.10-3.1)

Due to the very low affinity of YRC 2894-sulfonic acid amide to soil no detinitive studies to establish Freundlich isotherms were performed according to the OFCD test guideline. However, based on the pre-tests with about 1 mg test substance/mL, a soil to water partition coefficient was calculated for each soil. The resulting  $K_{OC}$  values were in the range of 2.9 to 6.3 mL/g (mean, 5.0 mL/g). Using classifications for the estimation of the mobility of crop protection agents in soil based on  $K_d$  and/or  $K_{OC}$  values, YRC 2894-sulfonie acid amide (AT34) is to be classified as very mobile in soil.

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~				
Soil	Soil type	y high a start	FREENDLICH exponent 1/n	Кос [mL/g]
BBA 2.2 🔊	Loamy sand		2	5.16
ÁXXa	Sandy loan		Not	6.27
LUFA Speyer	Sandy loan	Ši (0.08 ~~	) measurable	5.70
ĺ ĺ	Silty glay	0 <sup>°</sup> x <sup>°</sup> 0.05 x		2.94
Arithmetic mean 🔊		2 0° 0.00 x		5.02

### Table 7.1.3.1.2- 3: Adsorption Qata of YRC 2894-sol fonic acid amide (M34)

Since for a low adsorbing compound like M34 batch equilibrium experiments are not the preferred test method (compare OECD CG 106); a new column leaching study was performed in order to get more precise adsorption constants for modelling purposes (see <u>1000, E.; 2014</u> in Section <u>CA</u> 7.1.4.1.2

The following two studies not yet included in the Baseline Dossier give additional valid information about the adsorption/desorption behaviour of YRC 2894-amide (M02) and YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30) on a lysimeter soil (compare Section <u>CA 7.1.4.2</u>).

Report	KCA7.1.3,02 /04; , B.; , U.; 2003
Title: S	Adsorption desorption of KKO 2254 (YRC 2894-amide) on soil
	XXa
Report No:	MR- <del>30</del> 0/02
Document No:	M-085123-01-1
Guidelines:	OECD Guideline for Testing of Chemicals No. 106, Adsorption/Desorption, 2000
	EPA Pesticide Assessment Guidelines, Subdivision N, Chemistry:
	Environmental Fate § 163-1, Leaching and Adsorption/Desorption Studies



Page 61 of 90 2014-10-15

#### Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid







**Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment** Thiacloprid

### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

The test was conducted by using a batch equilibrium procedure in one soil (lysimeter soil AXXa) with [methylene-14C]KKO 2254 (M02): Purity control BECH 0677, radiochemical purity@ > 99%; chemical purity: > 99% HPLC-UV detection at 210 nm; specific radioactivity 3.53 MBq/mg (95.3 µCi/mg).

After air-drying the test soil was screened to a particle size of  $\leq 2$  mm. The characteristic are given in the following Table 7.1.3.1.2-4:

Table 7.1.3.1.2- 4:	Characteristics	of	test soil	used
		~-		

Soil designation	Soil type <sup>a)</sup> , origin	Sand (%)	Silt (%)	Clay Org. C	
AXXa	Sandy loam, GER	72.4	22,00 27	5.0 0 1.02	<sup>1</sup> / <sub>1</sub> 26,3
	-1		Ô Ô Í	5 <del>0 0 1/</del>	A co

<sup>1)</sup> according to USDA scheme.

Test container: Centrifuge tubes with screw cap, volume: 43

Temperature: Climate cabinet, (room  $4, 2, 4, 1 \pm 0$ 

Agitation: Mechanical overhead shaker, 29 2 rpm Q,

Parallel batches: 2 replicates.

Separation: Centrifuge (Beckmann J2-2) with Rotor A-20; Bout 10000

The air-dried soil was weighed into centrifying tubes (6.1 g fresh weight, corresponding to 6.0 g dry weight in the definitive test), and 7.9 nd of stock solution 1 (aqueous 0.0) M CaCl<sub>2</sub> solution) were added. After pre-equilibration for abour 24 hours, 2 mL of the respective application solution were added. The tubes were closed and the suspension was agitated with an overhead shaker for 24 hours at constant temperature in the dark. The suspension was centrifuged and the supernatant was investigated by LSC and in case of the highest concentration of the est substance also by TLC.

For the desorption experiment, the supermatant from the adverption experiment was completely removed, and corresponding volume of aqueous CaCl Solution (0.04 M) was added to the soil. After agitation and centrifugation, the supernatant was analysed as described before.

For calculation of the mass balance, the supernatant resulting from the desorption step was completely decanted. The remaining RAvin soil was analysed by combustion of aliquots of the soil.

The partition of the sadioactivity between supernatant, and soil was determined using five concentrations of the dest substance covering three orders of magnitude. All experiments were performed in duplicate.

Important parameters like stability of the test substance, adsorption to vessel surface, soil to solution ratio and quilibration time were already known or determined in orientating pre-tests.

For prore information about the experimental design see also Table 2 of report.

After completion of the shaking process the gross weight of the centrifuge tubes was determined and the containers were centrifuged for 20 min at 10000 g. The clear supernatant was decanted into 20-mL scintillation ressels. Aliques were taken from the clear supernatant for LSC measurement (3 x 100 µL for conc. A to D) or 3 x 500 µL for conc. E) and the pH of the supernatant was determined. Aliquots of 10 µL were rendered for TLO analysis with two different methods (highest concentration only). The amount of supernatative was determined by weighing. The removed supernatant was replaced by fresh 0.01 M Cat 12 solution (stock solution I) for desorption investigations. The containers were sealed, shaken for another 24 hours and processed as described in the adsorption experiment above.

The remaining soil was air-dried, ground and the radioactivity in the soil was determined by combustion of each three aliquots of about 1 g of the soil samples. After the desorption test TLC



analysis was performed with supernatant of the highest test concentration in order to confirm the stability of the test substance during the experiment.

In a pre-experiment, the necessary equilibration time was established. In the definitive test, the soil was pre-equilibrated for 24 hours with 0.01 M CaCl<sub>2</sub> solution. The soil to solution ratio was 1:3.33 After application of the test substance, the system was equilibrated for 24 hours at  $20.1 \pm 0.1$  C in the dark.

Referring to individual samples, the total recovery of AR was in the range of 96 to 99%. The RA material balance comprising all sampling intervals demonstrated that no significant amount of radioactively-labelled test item dissipated as volatile compounds or was lost during processing.

After application of the test compound at concentrations of 5.0, R0, 0.2, 0.04 and 0.005 mg per life CaCl<sub>2</sub> solution (i.e. covering three orders of maganfude) the percentage of the chemical adsorbed to the soil phase varied between 43 and 71% of applied. The adsorption constant Rd, calculated by means of the FREUNDLICH adsorption isotherm, as well as the organic carbon content based Koc are shown in Table 7.1.3.1.2- 5.

The desorption tests showed that from the soil between 8 and 39% of the adsorbed KKO 2254 M02) were desorbed again. On basis of this study the mobility of KKO 22 (MO2) in soil is to be classified as low.

#### Table 7.1.3.1.2-5: Adsorption and desorption of Interhylene (M02) in lysimeter soil AXXa

		$\sim$	la			a s	2 6	•	
Soil Designation	Soil Type	pH (9.01 M CaCky	ООС (%)	> Ka (nQL/g) {	Adsorption	Koc (mL/g)	Ka (mL/gy)	Sesorption 1/n	Koc (mL/g)
AXXa	Sandy S loans	6.3	\$ <sup>.02</sup>	€3.1885	0.5477	313 0	5.247	0.8518	514
						A A	Ś		

(I) I

Report: 🖉	KCA.7,1.3.1,2/05; , B., B., B., 2003
Title:	Adsorption desorption of WAK 6999 (SRC 2894-sulfonic acid) on soil
« \Y	AXXXX. L S L X
Report No:	MR-499702 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Document No: @	<sup>™</sup> M-082767-09-1 <sup>™</sup> , <sup>™</sup> , <sup>™</sup>
Guidelines:	OFCD Guideline for Testing of Chemicals No. 106, Adsorption/Desorption, 2000
~9	EPA Pesticide Assessment Guidelines, Subdivision N, Chemistry:
A	Environmental Fate v163- Leaching and Adsorption/Desorption Studies
GLP:	Yes Q Q S Y
~	

### EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The test was conducted by Using a Batch equilibrium procedure in soil (lysimeter soil AXXa) with methylene-C]-WAK 6999 (M30): Purity control BECH 0674, radiochemical purity > 98%; chemical purity 98% HPLC-UV detection at 210 nm; specific radioactivity 3.33 MBq/mg (90.1 µ@mg),

After an drying the soil was screened to a particle size of  $\leq 2$  mm. The characteristics of the soils are given in the following table:

### Table **A.3.1.2-6**: Characteristics of test soil used

Soil designation	Soil type <sup>a)</sup> , origin	Sand	Silt	Clay	Org. C	pН
------------------	----------------------------------	------	------	------	--------	----

# **Bayer CropScience**

#### **Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment** Thiacloprid

		(%)	(%)	(%)	(%)	(CaCl <sub>2</sub> )
AXXa	Sandy loam, GER	72.4	22.6	5.0	1.02	

a) according to USDA scheme.

Test container: Centrifuge tubes with screw cap, volume: 43 mL, material: Teflon®. Temperature: Climate cabinet, (room 164),  $20.1 \pm 0.1$  °C.,

Agitation: Mechanical overhead shaker,  $29 \pm 2$  rpm.

Parallel batches: 2 replicates.

Separation: Centrifuge (Beckmann J2-21 with Rotor A-20; about 1000 g).

The air-dried soil was weighed into centrifuge tubes (25.4 g fresh weight, corresponding to 25.0 got weight in the definitive test), and 17.6 mL of stock solution braqueous 0.04 M GaCl<sub>2</sub> solution) were added. After pre-equilibration for about 24 hours, 2 mL of the respective application solution were added. The tubes were closed and the suspension was agitated using an overhead shaker for 24 hours at constant temperature in the dark. The suspension was centrifuged and the supernatant was analysed by LSC and in case of the highest concentration of the fest substance by TLC as well.

For the desorption experiment, the Supermatant from the adsorption experiment was completely removed, and a corresponding volutive of aqueous CaCl2 solution (0.0 M) was added to the soil. After agitation and centrifugation, the supernatant was analysed as described before.

For calculation of the mass balance, the supernatant resulting from the desorption step was completely decanted. The remaining RA in soft was analysed by combustion of aliquots of the soil.

The partition of the radioactivity between supernatant, and soil was determined using five concentrations of the test substance covering three orders of magnitude. All experiments were performed in duplicate.

Important parameters like stability of the test substance, adsorption to yessel surface, soil to solution ratio and equilibration time were already known or betermined in orientating pre-tests.

For more information about the experimental design sec also Table 2 of report.

After completion of the shaking process the gross weight of the centrifuge tubes was determined and the configures were contributed for 20 min at 10000 g. The clear supernatant was decanted into 20-mL scintillation vessels Aliquets were taken from the clear supermatant for LSC measurement (3 x 100 µL for conc. A to D) of 3 x  $500 \,\mu$ L for conc. E) and the pH of the supernatant was determined. Aliquots of 10 μL were removed for TL Sanalys with two offerer methods (highest concentration only). The amount of supernatant was determined by weighing. The removed supernatant was replaced by fresh 0.01 M CaCl<sub>2</sub> solution (mock solution) for desorption investigations. The containers were sealed, shaken for another 24 hours and processed as described in the adsorption experiment above.

The remaining soil was gir-driedy ground and the radioactivity in the soil was determined by combustion of each three aliques of about 10g of the soil samples. After the desorption test TLC analysis was performed with supernatant of the highest test concentration in order to confirm the stability of the test substance during the experiment.

In a pre-experiment, the necessary equilibration time was established. In the definitive test, the soil was pre-equilibrated for 24 hours with 0.01 M CaCl<sub>2</sub> solution. The soil to solution ratio was 1:0.8. After application of the test rubstance, the system was equilibrated for 24 hours at  $20.1 \pm 0.1$  °C in the dark 🔩

Referring to individual samples, the total recovery of AR was in the range of 97 to 100%. The RA material balance comprising all sampling intervals demonstrated that no significant amount of radioactively-labelled test item dissipated as volatile compounds or was lost during processing.



After application of the test compound at concentrations of 5.0, 10.0, 2.0, 0.4 and 0.005 mg per litre CaCl<sub>2</sub> solution the percentage of the chemical adsorbed to the soil phase varied between 20 and 29% of applied after 24 hours. The adsorption constant K<sub>d</sub>, calculated by means of the FREUNDEICH adsorption isotherm, as well as the organic carbon content based  $K_{OC}$  are shown in Table 7.1.3. 22.7

The desorption tests showed that from the soil between 33 and 36% of the adsorbed M30 vere desorbed again. On basis of this study the mobility of WAK 6999 in soil is to be classified as mobile.

Table 7.1.3.1.2- 7:	Adsorption and	desorption	of [methylene	- <sup>14</sup> C]-WAK	6999 (N	30) im	ysimeter	L
	soil	AXXa	A.	, OY	×,	S.	<u> </u>	, Ô <sup>v</sup>

					L	Å Q	. O' 👋
Soil Designation	Soil Type	pH (0.01 M CaCl <sub>2</sub> )	OC (%)	Adjoorption Kd 1/n (mL/g)	<sup>Q</sup> →Koç Ø ⊅(mL/g) (μ	Ka Description Ka 1/n 3 (L/g)	n K@¢ K@¢ (mL/g)
AXXa	Sandy loam	6.3	1.02	0.227 0.93		.4820 0.9870	145 °
				$\langle \gamma \rangle \sim \langle \gamma \rangle$	s × A	× C	, O

The following performed two new studies not yet included in the Baseline Dossier were necessary to obtain data on adsorption/desorption of the degradation products YRC 2894-des Syano (M29) and YRC 2894-thiadiazine (M46) in sol for the groundwater risk assessment. Ø

Report:	KCA 7.1.3.1.2 (06; W.; K.; 2013
Title:	[pyridinxl-methyl-14CBCS-AA48009. Adsorption desorption in five different
	soils. Y J J J
Report No:	$AS246$ $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$
Document No:	Mg447091-01-4 & & & & O & &
Guidelines:	DECD Suideline for Festing of Chemical No. 106, Adsorption/Desorption, 2000
Ć	EPA Pesticide Assessment Guidelines, Subdivision N, Chemistry:
	Environmental Fate § 169-1, Leaching and Adsorption/Desorption Studies
GLP:	Yes w a so a

### EXECLEVIVE SUMM

The adsorption/desorption/characteristic? of [pyridin/l-methyl-14C]BCS-AA48007 (YRC 2894-descyano, M29) were studied in five soils by batch equilibrium experiments. After air-drying the soils were screened to a particle size of 2 mm. The characteristics of the soils are given in the following table:

Table 7.13.1.2-	8: Çba	racteristics	64 test	soils used	
Soil designation		Sail tyrea	oriein	Sand	Silt

Soil designation	Soil type <sup>n)</sup> , origin	Sand S(%)	Silt (%)	Clay (%)	Org. C (%)	pH (CaCl <sub>2</sub> )
	Sandy loam GER	≠ 57	30	13	2.0	5.1
4a 🖉 🖉	Son loam, GER	27	60	13	2.9	6.3
ĨI O C	Loan, GER	37	40	23	4.4	7.3
ÓwXXa	Koamy sand, GER	77	16	5	2.0	5.9
	Silt loam, GER	31	54	15	2.9	5.2

a) according to USDA scheme.

The adsorption phase of the study (definitive test) was carried out at concentrations of nominal 1.00, 0.30, 0.10, 0.03, and 0.01 mg/L in the dark at 20 °C  $\pm$  2 °C for 24 hours. The equilibration solution



Ш.

#### **Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment** Thiacloprid

AXXa and

used was 0.01 M aqueous CaCl<sub>2</sub> solution. After the preliminary test I a soil to solution ratio of 1:8 was defined to all soils. Desorption phase of the study was carried out by supplying pre-adsorbed soil specimens with fresh 0.01 M aqueous CaCl<sub>2</sub> solution for one desorption cycle. The active ous supernatant after adsorption was separated by centrifugation and the pyridinyl-methyl-<sup>1</sup>OBCS-AA48007 residues in the supernatant were analysed by liquid scintillation counting (LSC). The adsorption parameters were calculated using the FREUNDLICH adsorption isotherm. Test systems without soil were used as control in preliminary test and did not show, adsorption to the vessels or degradation.

For all soils the parental mass balance after 72 hours showed that >90% of applied pyridipyl-methyl <sup>14</sup>C]BCS-AA48007 could be recovered. This demonstrates that the test item was sufficient stable for the test.

The mass balance in the definitive test of the sons was determined by LSG of the supermatants after adsorption / desorption and by combustion of the remaining soils. The overall material balance for all concentrations for individual specimens was in the range of 97,2-99.3%, 92.92100.5%, 87,4,98.0%, 97.4-102.7% (one replicate 137.9% - not steed for the determination of FREUNDLICH isotherm) and 85.3-103.7% of the applied radioactivity in soils

In the definitive adsorption test 47 \$ 69.5%, 61.1-78.4%, 70.1-83.7% 00.4-69.8%, and 623-78.9% of the applied test material was adsorbed in soils 4a, AXXa. respectively

respectively

stespectively.

The calculated adsorption constant  $K_{F}^{(ads)}$  if the  $\mathcal{E}$  REUNDLICH isotherms for the five test soils ranged from 6.7 mL/g to 16.0 mL/g. The FREENDLACH exponent 1/n was in the range of 0.8330 to 0.8521, indicating that the concentration of the test icon dig affect the adsorption behaviour.

Ŵ At the end of one adsorption and one desorption phase, 23.9-38.9%, 16.3-30.1%, 11.1-22.0%, 21.9-37.0%, and 14.7-27.5% of the initially adsorbed amount were desorbed in soils AXXa.

The mean desorption  $K_{F}^{(deb)}$  ranged from  $7.9 \times 8.2 \text{ pc/g}$ , and the normalized  $K_{F,OC}^{(des)}$  ranged from 392.7 – 4792 mL/g, thus were 13 – 7.18 times higher that those obtained for adsorption phase. The following Table 7.1.3 12-9 summarizes the key soft properties and results from the study:

On basis of this study the mobility of YRC 2894-des evano (M29) in soil is to be classified as low mobile.

Table 7.1.3.1 - 9: Adsorption and desorption of [methylene-14C]-YRC 2894-des-cyano (M29) in R five soils 🔊 B Ø, . 1

in the second se	r à g				A 1 4 ·	
		<sup>™</sup> nH <sup>™</sup>	Org C	1	Adsorption	
Soil Designation	Soil Type	(0.01 M CaCl2)	(%)	K <sub>f</sub> (mL/g)	К <sub>f</sub> , ос (mL/g)	1/n
	Sandy loam	5.1	2.0	6.7	338.2	0.83
4a &	Set loan	6.3	2.9	11.1	383.0	0.85
AI O	Loam	7.3	4.4	16.0	364.2	0.85
A Xa	Loamy sand	5.9	2.0	7.2	361.0	0.83
	Silt loam	5.2	2.9	11.8	407.2	0.84
			Arith	metic mean	371	0.84



Report:	KCA 7.1.3.1.2 /07;
Title:	[Pvridinvl-methyl- <sup>14</sup> C]-BCS-CJ16425: Adsorption/desorption in five different $\mathcal{Q}$
	soils.
Report No:	AS242
Document No:	M-445982-01-1
Guidelines:	OECD Guideline for Testing of Chemicals No. 106, Adsorption/Desorption, 2000
	EPA Pesticide Assessment Guidelines, Subdivision N. Chemistry:
	Environmental Fate § 163-1, Leaching and Adsorption Desorption Studies
GLP:	Yes $\nabla$ $Q$ $Q$ $Q$ $Q$ $Q$ $Q$
	$\tilde{S}$ $\tilde{O}$ $\tilde{C}$ $\tilde{C}$ $\tilde{C}$ $\tilde{C}$ $\tilde{C}$ $\tilde{C}$ $\tilde{C}$
Č	
ð	
, Ø	
R.Y	
0	
(A)	
~Q~	
4	
4	
Ø	
Å	
, and a second s	
19 D	
A OT	
E Z	
Ĭ <sub>P</sub> Ô <sup>¥</sup>	



### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

The adsorption/desorption characteristics of [pyridinyl-methyl-14C]-BCS-CJ16425 (YRC 2594thiadiazine, M46) were studied in five soils by batch equilibrium experiments. After air-drying the soils were screened to a particle size of  $\leq 2$  mm. The characteristics of the soils are given in the following table:

Table 7.1.3.1.2- 10: Cha	soils used	Ĉa	Į,			
Soil designation	Soil type <sup>a)</sup> , origin	Sand (%)	Silt (%)	Clay (%)	0 Eg. C ~ (%)	
	Sandy loam, GER	57	30 Q	13		Č 5.1 C
4a	Silt loam, GER	Ŵ	60	<u></u>	2.9	68
II	Loam, GER	& 37 Ø		<sup>€</sup> 23€	4.4 3	≪₹.3
AXXa	Loamy sand, $GER_{a}$	0 776	© 16	, And and a second seco	0 <sup>x</sup> 220	∮ 5.9 <u></u> °
	Silt loam, GER	_~3⁄1	× 54	A 15 5	2.9	5. <b>F</b>
<sup>a)</sup> according to USDA scheme.	â,					

The adsorption phase of the study (definitive test) was carried out at concentrations of nominal 1.00, 0.30, 0.10, 0.03, and 0.01 mg/L in the eark at 20 °C 2 2 °C for 24 hours. The equilibration solution used was 0.01 M aqueous CaCh solution. After the preliminary test I a soil to solution ratio of 1:1 was defined to all soils. Desorption phase of the study was carried out by supplying pre-adsorbed soil specimens with fresh 0.01 M aqueous CaCk solution for one desorption cycle. The aqueous supernatant after adsorption was separated by centrifugation and the pyridityl-methyl-14C]-BCS-CJ16425 residues in the supernatant were analysed by liquid scintuillation counting (LSC). The adsorption parameters were calculated using the FREUNDLICH adsorption isotherm. Test systems without soil were field as control in preliminary test and and not show adsorption to the vessels or degradation. The mass balance of the soils was determined by LSC of the supernatants after adsorption and desorption and by composition of the remaining soils

For all soils the parental mass balance after 72 hours showed that 30% of applied [pyridinyl-methyl-<sup>14</sup>C]-BCS-CJ16425 could be recovered. This demonstrates that the test item was sufficient stable for the test.

The overall material balance for all conventrations for individual specimens was in the range of 94.9-99.3%, 93.0-98.8%, 915297.2%, 97, 108.6%, and 97.8-03.7% of the applied radioactivity in soils AXXa, and

respectively.

In the dethitive adsorption test 17.8-23.0% (6.8-21.4%, 19.9-27.5%, 14.9-18.4%, and 28.1-36.2% of the applied test material was adsorbed in soils II,

Sespectively. AXXa, and

The calculated adsorption constant K adds) of the FREUNDLICH isotherms for the five test soils ranged from 0.18 mlog to 0.41 mlog. The FREUNDLICH exponent 1/n was in the range of 0.9427 to 0.9990, indicating that the concern ation of the ost item did affect the adsorption behaviour.

At the and of one desorption phase, 27.9-35.5%, 24.5-34.1%, 19.3-27.9%, 32.0-45.3% and 203-27.8% of the initially adsorbed amount were desorbed in soils AXXa, and , respectively.

The mean desorption  $K_{F}^{(des)}$  ranged from 0.25 – 0.49 mL/g, and the normalized  $K_{F,OC}^{(des)}$  ranged from 7.8 - 16.8 mL/g, thus were 0.67 - 0.85 times higher than those obtained for adsorption phase.

The following Table 7.1.3.1.2-11 summarizes the key soil properties and results from the study.



On basis of this study the mobility of YRC 2894-thiadiazine (M46) in soil is to be classified as very mobile to mobile.

mobile to mobile.			٩
Table 7.1.3.1.2- 11: Adsorption and desorption of [methylene- <sup>14</sup> C]-YI	RC 2894-thiad	liazine 🕅 46) 🔗	ŗ
in five soils	- A		

Soil Designation	Soil Type	рН (0.01 M CaCl2)	Org. C	Ky (mL/g)	Adsorption Kr, oc (mL/g)	→ → 1/n →
	Sandy loam	5.1	2.0	<i>₽</i> 0.22	JI1.2 3	\$\$\$5 _ O
4a	Silt loam	6.3	2.9	9 0.23	0 7.9 <sup>4</sup>	2 <sup>9</sup> .00
II	Loam	7.3	4.40	× 0.26	5.8	0,95
AXXa	Loamy sand	<u>5</u> .9 <u></u>	2.0	Q.708	§ 9,0	ي 0.96
	Silt loam	A 5.2 0 x	© 2.9 ♀	4 0.41 <sub>C</sub>	P4.3	<sup>y</sup> 0.94
			Arit	huetic mean	× 9.6	<b>0</b> .96
				9 di	a c	Õ

### CA 7.1.3.2 Aged sorption

No studies submitted, and no studies are required. The leaching behaviour is coaluated by the adsorption/desorption data shown in the Section <u>SA 7.1.3.1</u>, in combination with accepted and agreed model calculations of predicted environmental ground water concentration (PECsw) for parent and its major metabolites. Therefore, new studies were not performed and are not required under Commission Regulation (EU) No 283/2015 in accordance with Regulation (EO) No 1407/2009.

### CA 7.1.4 Mobility in soil

Some studies on mobility of Thiacoprid and its residues in soil were evaluated during the Annex I inclusion (see EU Monograph Annex B8, and European Commission, SANCO/4347/2000 – Final; 13 May 2004)

Under current requirements the leaching behaviour is evaluated by the adsorption/desorption data shown in the Section CA(7,1,3), in combination with accepted and agreed model calculations of predicted environmental ground water concentration (PEC<sub>WW</sub>) for parent and its major metabolites. Therefore, new studies were not performed and are not required under Commission Regulation (EU) No 283/2013 in accordance with Regulation (EC) No 1107/2009. Due to the characteristics of the metabolite VRC 2894- subonic acid (M20) the sorption can hardly be determined from the adsorption data, and for this metabolite a column eaching study has been performed.

### CA 7.1.4.1 Column Jeaching studies

### CA 7.1.4.1.1 Column leaching of the active substance

The following study was oncluded in the Baseline Dossier and evaluated during the Annex I inclusion. However the outcome was not used for deriving end points as these are derived from sorption studies listed under Section  $\triangle 7.1$  or  $\triangle 7.1.4.1.2$ .

Authors	Year	Document No.
, J.	1995	M-002045-04-1



Ò

Ø

### **Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid**

### Summary of study performed by , J.; 1995

Thiacloprid (YRC 2894) is classified as extremely rapidly degradable in soil. The investigations showed that after ageing due to the rapid degradation no transport of the test compound takes place. The same also holds true for the main metabolite (M02). Only the highly polar sulfatic acid metabolite (M30) is almost completely washed out of the soil column and honce transported into the leachate. Based on the classification of McCall et al. (1980), YRC 2894 has to be classified as immobile after ageing in soil.

No further column leaching studies were performed for Thiacloprid Since that requirement is covered  $\circ$  by the adsorption/desorption studies performed with the active substance (see Section <u>CA7.1.30.1</u>).

### CA 7.1.4.1.2 Column leaching of metabolites, breakdown and reaction products

A new column leaching study not yet included in the baseline Dossier was performed to obtain more precise adsorption constants for modelling purposes of the metabolite YRC 2894-suffonic acid anothe (M34) (compare study and data by 1998).

Report:	KCA 7.1.4.1.2 /00
Title:	[Methylene-14CDYRC 2894-sulfonic acid appide: Soil Column Leaching.
Report No:	EnSa-13-1056 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Document No:	M-488355-01-1 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~
Guidelines:	OECD 312 (2004), OPPTS 835,1240,2008).
	European Commission. Opinion of the scientific committee on plants on methods
	for the determination of the organac carbon adsorption coefficient (Koc) for a
	plant protection product active substance in the context of council directive
	90/414/EC, 18 07.2002 SCP/&OC/092-Final. (Today: Commission Regulation
	(EC) No 283/2013 maccordance with Regulation (EC) Wo 1107/2009).
GLP:	Yes & & X X X X

### EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The soft adsorption behaviour of [methylene-CC]-YRC 2894-sulfonic acid amide (M34) was investigated in the dark at 20 °C by column leaching experiments performed on four test soils. The characteristics of the soils are given in <u>Table 77.4.1.21</u>.

Each 2.53  $\mu$ g of test icem was applied to the surface of bulk-packed soil columns (30 cm long, 5 cm inner diameter, duplicate columns for each soil) that had been saturated with 0.01 M aqueous CaCl<sub>2</sub> solution before. Then, the freater columns were irrighted with 393 mL of CaCl<sub>2</sub> solution at a constant flow (setting of pump was 82 mL/h) over 48 hours, which equals 200 mm of simulated constant rainfall. Column elution was done under saturated flow conditions throughout the experiment. The column eluates were collected in time intervals to collect approximately 20 - 25 mL per fraction, and radio-assayed by LSC. After draining, the soft columns were deep-frozen. However, since for the test item under investigation the majority of <sup>14</sup>C applied had been leached through the soil columns, the stored soil columns were not processed and radio-assayed further.

Soil designation	Soil type <sup>a)</sup> , origin	Sand (%)	Silt (%)	Clay (%)	Org. C (%)	ptil (CaCh)
II (DD)	Loam, GER	37	38	25	5.2	07.40
4a (HF)	Silt loam, GER	25	58	170	1.9	66
AXXa (AX)	Loamy sand, GER	77	16		2,00	§6.3
(HN)	Loam, GER	33 🖉	50	17	×2.9	5.7%
<sup>a)</sup> according to USDA scheme.		e v		) V	, Ŭ Ŝ	

|--|

Kd/Koc values were calculated using computer software "Microsoft Excel' spread sheet representing a so-called "leaching case". This sheet was developed for the transformation of column parameters and leaching data into the respective values, using published mathematics described for the chromatographic theory by Ketelle et al an Swoboda et al), i for test items showing no to low adsorption.

In addition, the soil columns were treated with 258 µg varbofuran, a wobile reference item, in other to check the quality of test conditions. The measured column teaching  $k_{oc}$  believes the condition of the condition of the column teaching under similar test conditions in soil ax was found to be 5 mL/g. As by the spirrent study only minor portions of applied carbofuran (1.0% of applied for DD, 6.5% of applied for HF, 2.0% of applied for AXE, 6.8% for HN) could be recovered (retermined by HPLC-UV detection) within the total collected leachate until termination of leaching test, whereas the reachates contained at least 50% of applied YRC 2894-sulfonic acid anoide. From that finding it was to be concluded that the Koc for test the item should fall clearly below 95 or even lower than 10 mL/g in the current story.

The following table summarizes the key data and results of this study. A mean Koc of 7.0 mL/g resulted for the test item YRC 2899-sulfonic act amide (M3). Since that value is regarded more appropriate than the of the bater equilibrium study by <u>H.P.; 1998</u> (i.e. 5.0 mL/g), it is included in summary Table 7.1,3/1-1 and used for exposure alculations.

On basis of thic study VRC 2894-suffonic and and (M34) is classified as very mobile in soil.

Table 7.1.4.1.2- 2:	Key data and results	of column	leaching tests w	vith [ <sup>14</sup> C]-YRC 28	394-sulfonic
je G	acted amide (M34)				

	~_O	` ∽``					
•						Adsorption	
Soil Designation	IN A	Soil Tope		Org. C	K <sub>d</sub>	Koc	1/n
				\$ <sup>70)</sup>	(mL/g)	(mL/g)	1/11
Į b		Loam 🗞	7.4	5.2	0.19	3.6	
		Silt loan		1.9	0.15	7.7	
4a 🖉	ک	A C					1.0
AX	XXa 🔊	Loamy sand	7.3	4.4	0.15	7.3	(default)
		Loam, O	D' 5,97	2.0	0.28	9.7	
<sup>v</sup> V	(	o <sup>7</sup> . <sup>6</sup> 7	~~ Ox	Arit	hmetic mean	7.0	
	@. <sup>\</sup>						

CA 7.1.4.2<sup>°</sup> Lysimeter studies

The mobility of Thiacloprid and its residues in soil, investigated by a three-year outdoor lysimeter study, was evaluated during the Annex I inclusion (compare EU Monograph, Annex B8), and was accepted by the European Commission (SANCO/4347/2000 - Final; 13 May 2004). The following lysemeter study by , B. included in the Baseline Dossier was regarded as relevant during the Annex I inclusion. The outcome and respective conclusions were reported in Appendix II (End Points and Related Information) on page 13 of SANCO/4347/2000 - Final; 13 May 2004, also. This includes those of the other related reports by . J., M., F.,

# Bayer CropScience

## Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid

J.P.E., H.-P., J.; K., which clarified and evaluated the findings in the leachates of the lysimeters.

Author(s)		Year 🏷	Document No.
, B.		1998	M-002182-01-
, J.	(Č.)	2005	M-075099-09-1 K¢ 7.1 %
, M.	A A	<b>9</b> 995	NJ-0010H3-01-2
, F.			M <sub>7</sub> 001002 <u>-</u> 01-2 © VOA 8 & 4.1 ©
, J.P.E.			M-001011-02-1 KQA 8.2 <u>A</u> 1
, HP.		£002a 🖓	M-063692-01-0
, HP.		2050b	M-078775-02-1 K X 7.1.4.2
, HP.		2002cc	AT-053688-02-1
, J.; , R.		2000 2000	M-062583-01-1

No additional studies are submitted withighthis this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval.

### Summary of lysimeter study performed by

A three-year (May 1994 to December 1997) lysingter study intestigated leaching of YRC 2894 following applications in two successive years to a grass over in accordance with BBA guidelines (Part IV, 4-3) Although grass is not a proposed use for YRC 2894, the grass cover was chosen to reflect a realistic worst-case situation for the worst-case proposed use (pome fruits). Other uses such as those on fruiting vegetables do not include repeated applications in successive years.

Undisturbed cores (surface area 1 m<sup>2</sup>, depth 1.25 m<sup>2</sup>) of a sandy Ooam over sand (texture according to USDA, topsoil pH 70, OC 1.41%) were buried on a lysimeter facility at **1995**. Germany in 1993. Two lysimeters (A and B) were cropped with grass sown in April 1994 and 1995 and cultivated according to common apricultural practice (cuts to 8-10 cm when height reached 20-25 cm). The grass was incorporated into the subsoil in March 1995 and sown again in April 1995 to keep test conditions identical for the two years of application. Two post-emergence applications (total amount split into two equal breatments separated by a 15-day interval) of [<sup>14</sup>C]YRC 2894 were sprayed onto the two lysimeters (treated surface area 0.81 m<sup>2</sup>) in May (994 and May 1995 at total rates of 0.400 kg a.s./ha (1994) and 0.365 kg a.s./ha (1995). Formulations of YRC 2894 differed between the two years of application (SC 600 for the first year, SC 480 for the second). Other pesticide and fertilizers were also applied to the lysimeters according to mormal agricultural practice.

Following repvant results were listed in Appendix II (End Points and Related Information) on page 13 of SANCO 4347/2900 – Dinal; 13 May 2004:

Average annual precipitation (mm):	869
Average annual leachate volume (mm): 372	
% of applied radio activity in leachate:	3%
Peak annual average concentrations ( $\mu g/L$ ):	
Total radioactivity:	2.31 µg a.s. equivalent/L
Parent compound YRC 2894:	not detected
YRC 2894-amide (M02):	not detected


YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30) YRC 2894-sulfonic acid amide (M34): Unidentified 75:	2.4 μg/L 0.27 μg/L 0.15 μg a s. equivalent/L		
Z5, later identified by HP.; 2002	0.15 µg a.s. equivalent/L	~	ST OT
as YRC 2894-thiadiazine (M46):	0.16 µg/L	-A	
The outcome of lysimeter study was not used	for deriving distinct modell	the end points	Quince that can

better be done by the studies listed under Section CA 73.3.1 or CA 71.4.1.2, in combination with

Suffonic acid (M30). As the presence of M30 at concentration levels measured for the leachate of a lysimeter study is of no toxicological, ecotoxicological (biological concern, the same applies for the direct degradate M34 which will occur at concentrations significantly lower than the sulfonic acid (M30). As the presence of M30 at opticantial on layels measured for the leachate of lysimeter study is of no toxicological, ecotoxicological doilogical concern, the safile applies for direct degradate M34 which will occur at concentration significantly lower than these of M30.



### Conclusion of studies performed by H.-P.; 2002a, b, c

The structure of unknown metabolite Z5 found in lysimeter leachate was identified as YRC thiadiazine (M46).

#### Conclusion of position paper given by **R.**, 2002, well considering the studie . **M**. F **J.P.E.**

The metabolites found in the lysimeter leachate are not of ecotoxicological or toxicological relevant

### CA 7.1.4.3 **Field leaching studies**

performed by

No relevant studies are included in the baseline dossier, since such were not required. No additional studies are submitted within this this Supplemental Dossier for the Thraclopoid renewal of approval.

### CA 7.2 Fate and behaviour in water and sediment

The route of degradation of Thiacloprid in the aqueous environment, which was investigated is a set of laboratory studies performed under pure aqueous conditions (hydrolysis; photolysis) as well as under more realistic environmental conditions, i.e. in the presence of natural water and sediment containing oxygen and organic material, can be well explained (see Figure 7/2-1).

Thiacloprid is stable to hydroflysis at pH 5, 7, and 9 and quite stable to photo transformation. Therefore, these processes and not relevant for its dissipation in the environment, and no metabolites have to be considered from these outes of degradation.

Thiacloprid is classified as not readily biodegradable. Regardless of its concentration, Thiacloprid biodegrades slowly in natural surface water, with a Jag plase of approx 14 days. Thereafter, degradation and formation of the major metabolite YRO 2894 amide (M02) starts and is faster at a low dose than at a high dose of the primary metabolite YRC 2899-amid M02 is known from the pathway of degradation in soil However, prior to starting biodegradation, a biological matrix (bio-film, etc.) has to be formed in the test flasks.

In contrast to the findings from abiotic test systems Thinkloprid disappears rapidly in biologically active water and sediment systems. Thereby, YRC 2894 anide (M02) occurs as a major metabolite in water and sediment with maximum conceptrations in water and sediment on day 35. The second main metabolite is YRC 2894-sulfonic acid (M30) which is predominantly formed after M02 had reached its maximum. Note of the metabolites accumulated in the test systems. The degradation of Thiacloprid in an anaerobic water/sediment system followed a route similar to that established for aerobic conditions, although it is more slowly degraded

The results of aerobic water sediment study have been kinetically evaluated, and the respective degradation parameters in water and sediment have been determined.

In the following Table 7 2 1 and Table 7.2- 2 summary of substance input data for Thiacloprid and its metabolites is given, well considering the respective new kinetic evaluations by et al (i.e. 2010, on degradation in aerobic water/sediment systems according to FOCUS kinetics guidance), in order to be used for surface water and sediment exposure assessments.

In general, the results on parent compound and M02 from the outdoor mesocosm studies performed with Thaclopred confirmed the estimations received from the respective exposure modelling studies.



Figure 7.2-1: Proposed bio-degradation pathway of Thiacloprid (YRC 2894) in the aquatics





(1) n

## **Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid**

<b>Table 7.2- 2:</b>	Additional substance parameters proposed for Thiacloprid and its
	metabolites at Steps 3/4 level PEC calculations

		*		
Parameter	Unit	Thiacloprid	M02	M29 🔊 🖉
Vapour Pressure	Pa	3.0E-10	3.4E-10	1.1E 0 4
Plant Uptake Factor		0.0	0.0	0:0
Wash-Off Factor PRZM	1/cm	0.5	0.5	Q0.5 0 10
Wash-Off Factor MACRO	1/mm	0.05	0.05	
Degradation			Ö á	2 2 5
Soil	days	5.4	410	7 L
Form. Frac. PRZM	molar basis	- ~	0.©10	
Form. Frac. MACRO	molar basis	- 3	.653 .	
Aquatic Metabolite				
Molar Mass Corr. Factor			₩ <sup>1.074</sup> 23	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Max Occ.	%		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	
Tot. Corr. Factor		0- <sub>2</sub>	0.73915 0	
Max Occ. at Day		4 -0 ~		
				KI KA

# CA 7.2.1 Route and rate of degradation in aquatic systems (chemical and gradation) approach of the complete t

### CA 7.2.1.1 Hydrolytic degradation

The hydrolytic degradation of Thracloprid was valuated during the Annex I inclusion (compare EU Monograph, Annex B8), and was accepted by the European Commission (SANCO/4347/2000 – Final; 13 May 2004). The following rudy factuded in the Baseline Dossier was regarded as relevant during the Annex I inclusion

ſ

*a*n

	Õ	× NO	L'A	in na seconda de la constante		N S		Ş	
Author(s)	20		0 (	Š (	Ø "Ú			Year	Document No.
	B.	0		, L		Î.		1998	M-001109-01-1
0 A 4		\$ 1	8	Con 8	Ū	Ŵ	. 0		

No additional studies are submitted within this the Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval.

## Summary of study performed by B&1998

Thiacloprid is stable at p05, 7, and 9. Under the experimental conditions the test substance was recovered from solution at constant levels throughout the test (95 to 98% of the applied amount). In the investigated pH-range formation of two minor hydrolysis products was only observed at pH 9. Each of them amounted to less than 2% of the applied radioactivity. Since no hydrolysis products were detected in the studies with the parent compound, no further studies are necessary.

the parent co



### CA 7.2.1.2 Direct photochemical degradation

The direct photochemical degradation of Thiacloprid was evaluated during the Annex I inclusion (compare EU Monograph, Annex B8), and was accepted by the European Comparision (SANCO/4347/2000 – Final; 13 May 2004). The following studies included in the Baseline Dossier were regarded as relevant during the Annex I inclusion:

		L.	
Author(s)	Ř	<b>A</b> Year	Document No.
, E.	A.	<b>@</b> 1995	M-000677-01-2
	á.	Ő¥	KCA 22.1.2
, J., , W.	A CV	,1998	M-001109-01-1
			K A 7.2.1.1
	~~		

### Summary of study performed by

No degradation of YRC 2894 was observed during the irradiation period of 5000 minutes and no photoproducts were detected. The mean maintum yield of the direct photodegradation of YRC 2894 in water as calculated from the UV-Vis absorption and degradation kinetics was few ( $\Phi = 0.000352$ ). Environmental half-lives for all scenarios considered (different scasons and latitudes) were predicted to be >1000 days.

### Summary of study performed by

õ

S

Total recovery was 101-107% AR, WRC 2894 was degraded throughout the course of the experiment in illuminated samples only, and accounted for 84% AR after 18 days of fradiation. A minor photoproduct accounting for a maximum of 34% AR (day 8) was identified as M35. The mean DT<sub>50</sub> of YRC 2894 was calculated as 79.4 days continuous irradiation (equivalent to 324 solar summer days for Phoenix, Arizona, USA) for druminated samples  $G^2 = 0.91$ ). No degradation of YRC 2894 was observed in the dark controls.

No additional studies are submitted within this this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval

### CA 7.2.1.3 Indirect photochemical degradation

Since this topic was not a core data requirement and thus not evaluated by the European Commission during the lase Anne I inclusion of Thiocloprio, no respective study is included in the Baseline Dossier (see EU Monograph, Annex B8 and SANCO/1947/2000 – Final; 13 May 2004).

The following study is now submitted within this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval. The study was carried out according to MAFF test guideline laboratory conditions in order to fulfill special data requirements for egistration approvals in Japan. Photo-degradation in natural waters in mainly driven by indirect photo-transformation processes for any compound which is stable to hydrolysis and direct photo-transformation (i.e. for Thiacloprid).

a

Report:	KCA7.2.1.3/01; , K., , W.; 1997
Title: 🖓 🔊	Photodegradation of YRC 2894 in Natural Water.
Report No	<b>P(4</b> 272 <sup>4</sup> ) <sup>9</sup>
Doeument No:	M-000676-01-1
Guidelines:	MAFF/Japan: Guideline for Testing Method of the Photolysis of Agrochemicals
C	in Water (Temporary, 1990).
	US EPA, 161-2: Photodegradation in Water, 1982 (which refers to photolysis in
	pure buffer water)









### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

The present study describes the degradation behaviour of [methylene-<sup>14</sup>C]YRC 2894 in natural water (Rhine river water, for characteristic data see <u>Table 7.2.1.3-1</u>) at irradiation with artificial straight. The water (6 L) was freshly collected from Rhine River on June 22, 1995 at 130 p.m. The wheter was site was in D-**1** (GER) at km-position 714 near the **1** (GER). The water was sampled from the surface water near the bank, filled in polyethylene flasks and stored under data mession a refrigerator.

Parameter	Result	Day of determination of duplicates A
TOC [mg/L] <sup>1)</sup>	4	
DOC [mg/L] <sup>1)</sup>	4	$(\underline{x}, \underline{0}^{\circ})^{1}$ $(\underline{y}, \underline{y})^{\prime}$ $(\underline{y}, \underline{0}^{\prime})^{\prime}$ $(\underline{y}, \underline{0}^{\prime})^{\prime}$ $(\underline{y}, \underline{0}^{\prime})^{\prime}$
Nitrite [mg/L] <sup>1)</sup>	< 0.1	
Nitrate [mg/L] <sup>1)</sup>	2.7	
Total phosphate [mg/L] <sup>1)</sup>	0.13 🔬	
Conductivity, 25°C [ $\mu$ S/cm] <sup>1</sup> )	509	2 14 2 14 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 6 ark)
Total water hardness [°DH] <sup>1)</sup>	11.1	
Dissolved $O_2$ [%] <sup>1)</sup>	90 Q 🔊	
[%] <sup>2)</sup> [%] <sup>2)</sup> , dark	850	0,4 1 0,4 1 0,4 1 0,4 1 0,4 1 0,5 5.5 (dark)
<sup>1)</sup> : Prior to the start of study <sup>2)</sup> : At the end of study		

Table 7.2.1.3- 1:	Key data of test water used	(taken from	Rhine River)
		(	

After application (the pH-value of the application solution was 8.4) of the maximum recommended dose rate of 350 g a./ha, which forresponds to a concentration of 0.7 mg a.i./L with reference to a theoretically water depth in a paddy rice field of 5 cm, the test systems were incubated at a temperature of 25 °C over a period of 42 days of continuous irradiation with artificial sunlight. At each sampling time the test solutions were analysed as well by means of high performance liquid as by thin layer chromatography. The content of radioactivity was determined by liquid scintillation measurement. Material balances were established at each sampling interval.

The material balance was in a range of 00.0% and 104.2% of applied radioactivity, the mean value was 100.4% of AR demonstrating that as significant loss occurred during the testing period.

Under the experimental conditions used, XRC 2894 degraded in the Rhine River water with an experimental half-life of 42.9 irratiation days, which corresponds to a calculated long environmental half-life of 178 days under intensive solar conditions in Phoenix, AZ (USA). One main metabolite was observed during the course of the experiment with a maximum of about 19.3% of AR. The structure of this main metabolite was identified as YRC 2894-Dewar pyridone (M35), a photo-isomer of YRC 2894 after chlorine hydroxy group exchange at the pyridyl ring. Besides this main metabolite another metabolite was observed. This second metabolite was 6-Chloronicotinic acid (M03) and amounted to 9.9% of AR at the end of the study. Furthermore, formation of <sup>14</sup>CO<sub>2</sub> (about 6.2% of applied radioactivity) and a third polar minor metabolite (about 6.1% on day 42) were determined at study termination.

There was no degradation observed in the dark control samples.

## CONCEUSION A

The rate of degradation of YRC 2894 was faster in natural water (caused by indirect photo-transformation) than that observed in pure sterile buffer solutions caused by direct photo-transformation. However the only degradate exceeding 10% under these conditions was < 10% until day 28 of illumination, equivalent to 117 days of intense summer sunlight in Pheonix, Arizoan.

BAYER Bayer CropScience

## **Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid**

Therefore the general conclusion drawn by the earlier studies (see Section <u>CA 7.2.1.2</u>) is not to be changed: photo-transformation processes are not relevant for its dissipation in the environment, and no metabolites have to be considered from these routes of degradation (EU Monograph, Annex B) and SANCO/4347/2000 – Final; 13 May 2004).

### CA 7.2.2 Route and rate of biological degradation in aquatic systems

### CA 7.2.2.1 "Ready biodegradability"

With respect to the "ready biodegradability" of Thiacloprid a statement was given as a conclusion in the list of end points of Annex I inclusion by the European Commission (SANC@4347/2000 - Final, 0 13 May 2004):

No data submitted, therefore not readily biodegradable.

No additional studies are submitted within this this Sapplemental Possier for the Chiactoprid renewal of approval.

### CA 7.2.2.2 Aerobic mineralisation in surface water

Since this topic (a new data requirement under 1107/2009) was not a data requirement the data was available at the Annex I inclusion of Thracloprid, therefore no study is included in the Baseline Dossier. The following new study is submitted within this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval.



Aerobic mineralization of [this colidine-2-14C]-This clopric in surface water was investigated under defined laboratory conditions in the dark. For this purpose the radiolabelled test item was applied to 100 mL of natural poind water (for key water data see <u>Table 7.2.2.2.1</u>) at concentrations of 0.1 and 0.01 mg/L Additionally, the high concentration experiment was performed under sterile conditions in order to gain information about abiotic degradability of the test item.

The test flasks were incubated for a period of 62 days at  $21.0 \pm 0.1$  °C under aerobic conditions by gently stirring the water Radiolabelle benzoic acid was used as reference substance to check the sufficiency of microbial activity of the test water. Sufficient activity is reached if at least 90% of the acid degrades within 14 day of incubation.

The freshly collected water samples were passed through a 0.2 mm sieve and filled into 350 mL conical flack. After treatment, the flacks were incubated under continuous ventilation with moistened air. The exiting air was passed through a trapping system consisting of ethylene glycol and sodium hydroxide flacks in series.



Origin/Source		, France
Batch No.		11/12
Sampling depth <sup>1</sup>	[cm]	0 - 10
Temperature <sup>1</sup>	[°C]	7.7
pH <sup>1</sup>		7.47
Redox Potential <sup>1</sup>	[mV]	91
Oxygen content <sup>1</sup>	[mg/L]	
Colour		greenish O G S S
Turbidity		visibility through water layer down to about 20 cm 🖇 🔬
Total organic carbon (TOC) <sup>2</sup>	[mg/L]	
Dissolved organic carbon (DOC) <sup>2</sup>	[mg/L]	
NO <sub>3</sub> <sup>2</sup>	[mg/L]	
NO <sub>2</sub> <sup>2</sup>	[mg/L] 🖇	< 0.982 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
N tot <sup>2</sup>	[mg/L]	KUNO CO
P tot <sup>2</sup>	[mg/上]	
Ammonium (NH <sup>4+</sup> ) <sup>2</sup>	[mg/L] 📏	

### Table 7.2.2.2-1:Key data of test water used

<sup>1</sup> measured at field sampling.

<sup>2</sup> determined by AgroLab GmbH, 6037 Root, Switzerland (non GLP)

Note: Redox potential was measured with platinum filver chloride electrode (not conjected for pH). In order to obtain redox potential of the hydrogen electrode, 211 my have to be added to the measured value of the hydrogen electrode, 211 my have to be added to the measured value of the hydrogen electrode of the hydrogen electrod

Duplicate samples (replicate A and B) per system were then worked up to incubation day 0, 3, 7, 14, 28, 40 and 62. After sampling, the pH and the oxygen concentration in water were determined together with the total radioactivity present in the water layer and in the volatile traps. Aliquots of water samples were then analysed, directly or after a concentration step, by, EPLC for parent and metabolites. Radioactive carbon dioxide dissolved in the water layer was extracted from the water layer by adding soda line followed by addification and trapping the released carbon dioxide.

The oxygen concentration measured in the water phase ranged from 6.01 to 8.32 mg/L in the high dose, from 6.40 to 8.59 mg/L in the high dose sterile and from 5.42 to 8.25 mg/L in the low dose experiment. Corresponding values for pH were 8.03 to 8.35, 8.03 to 8.34 and 7.82 to 8.32 respectively. Similar values were observed of the ontreated control samples ranging from 6.28 to 8.13 mg/L for oxygen concentration and from 7.99 to 8.47 with for the pH values. The results demonstrated that the test item had no significant effects on the physico cheraical parameters of the test system.

Within 7 days of incubation, the amount of benzoic acid decreased rapidly from initially 93.3 to 0% under formation of 550% radioactive carbon dioxide. As more than 90% of benzoic acid degraded within 7 days the test water could be considered as microbial active.

The main results of study are summarized by Table 7.2.2.2 2. Total mean recoveries were 103.9  $\pm$  1.7% of applied radioactivity (AR) for the high dose, 105.9  $\pm$  3.6% AR for the high dose sterile and 102.0  $\pm$  1.6% AR for the law dose experiments.

Immediately after treatment (time 0), mean values of 103.6%, 108.0% and 101.0% of AR were measured in the water phase of the high dose, high dose sterile and low dose systems, respectively. After 62 days of incubation, the amount of radioactivity in the respective systems represented mean values between 101.2% and 105.3% of AR for the high dose, 100.3% and 110.6% of AR for the high dose sterile and 101.0% and 002.9% of AR for the low dose systems. Correspondingly, radioactive carbon dioxide did not exceed 0.3% of AR in the high dose, 0.1% of AR in the sterile and 0.9% of AR in the flow dose systems throughout the study. Volatile products other than  ${}^{14}CO_2$  did not exceed 0.1% of AR during the entire incubation period.

Ĉ

# **Bayer CropScience**

### Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid

Table 7.2.2.2- 2:	Pattern of degradation and formation of metabolites after treating water by	
	Thiacloprid (values expressed as % of AR; mean of duplicates)	

	1						
Compound	Incubation time						N O
Compound	0	3	7	14	28 0	۶ <b>40</b>	Ø h
High dose experiment					ð	Å	¥ . Ç
[ <sup>14</sup> C]Thiacloprid (YRC 2894)	103.6	104.8	105.3	101.1	89 <u>.</u> 7	94.1 🚿	73:67 0
YRC 2984-amide (M02)	-	-	-	-	<i>≱</i> ¥4.Å	10.3	2090
$^{14}CO_2$	n.p.	< 0.1	<0.1	<0.1	0.1	0.1	Ø.2 🖉
Other volatiles	< 0.1	< 0.1	<0,1 %	<0.1	< 0.1		<0.1
Total	103.6	104.9	103.3	101.2	104.2	104.5 Q	100.7
High dose experiment, sterile	1		4	Q,	es de	×	
[ <sup>14</sup> C]Thiacloprid (YRC 2894)	108.0	108.4	107.1	100/2 .	103.2 📎	103.4	110.5
YRC 2984-amide (M02)	-	- «	- ©°			¢``%	- 45
<sup>14</sup> CO <sub>2</sub>	n.p.	<0.1	Ø.1 ×	×0.1	<b>40</b> 9.1	×0.1	₹0.1
Other volatiles	< 0.1	<0.1	×0.1	<0.0	Q0.1 ~ °	<0.0	<b>x</b> 0.1
Total	108.0	¥08.5 °~	107.2	100.3 A	103	103.5	110,6
Low dose experiment	G			ý ő <sup>y</sup>		¢ ×	AN NO
[ <sup>14</sup> C]Thiacloprid (YRC 2894)	101.0	102.9	Q101.9	101.0	89.3	68.1	59.4
YRC 2984-amide (M02)	- 4	- 🖉 🔊	- W	$-\infty$	12.9	349	42.8
<sup>14</sup> CO <sub>2</sub>	n.p. 🔗	a≶0.1 ⊘	<00	Q, IQ	<00	CO.1 ~~	0.7
Other volatiles	<00/	š<0.1 °Č	<b>39</b> .1 _ (C	K0.1	<0.1 ×	₽<0.1¢	< 0.1
Total	191.0	102.9	101.9 🦘	101Ø (	102.2	102 <b>Q</b> ″	102.9
	S // A	<i>(A</i> ) <i>(I</i> )		//NL // NA	· (/@		

n.p.: Not performed Ø -: Not detected; n.p.: Not performed High dose experiment: 100% of applied test item corresponded to 9.726 ug/test fask (97 fg/L water). -: Not detected;

 $\bigcirc$ 

Low dose experiment: 100% of applied test item corresponded to 0.988 µg/test flask (10 µg/L water).

°≈ **K** Ĩ Ľ  $\bigcirc$ No degradation of What observed in the high dose sterile system. The reference substance benzoic acid degraded Simpletely from initially 993 to 0% of AR within 7 days of incubation indicating high provide activity in the test water.

Ô At the first sampling interval (time 0), the test item represented 103% and 101.0% of AR in the high dose and low dose systems respectively, declining to 73.6% of AR in the high dose and 59.4% of AR in the low dose systems within 62 days of incubation. The conceptration of Thiacloprid decreased very slowly in all systems during a first study period of approx. A4 days (a typical kind of lag phase of biodegradation). Then, between day 17 and 28, biodegradation in the viable test systems started. Subsequently, the replicates of i.e. the low dose intervals showed a higher variation with respect to test item degradation. The development of biota might have been inhomogeneous in the individual flasks. However, the pattern of degradation was found to be the same.

Besides the test item and radioactive carbon dioxide, just one metabolite was observed, which was identified by co-chromatography using HPEC and TLC as YRC 2894-amide (M02, AE1303043). It was first detected after 28 days of incubation and represented 14.4 and 12.9% of AR in the high and low dose systems respectively. After 62 days the amount of M02 rose to 30.0 and 42.8% of AR in the high and low dose systems respectively.

The calculated half-life  $(DT_{50})$  and  $DT_{50}$  alues for [<sup>14</sup>C]-Thiacloprid in the different systems, based on single first order (SFO) Grinetics, are presented in the table below.

Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in t	he environment
Thiacloprid	

Tost System	Kinatia madal				
Test System	Killetic model	DT <sub>50</sub> (d)	DT <sub>90</sub> (d)	<b>r</b> <sup>2</sup>	ε <b>χ</b> ών 3
High dose	SFO	117.9	391.8	0.77	LA M
High dose sterile*	SFO	2.6E+12	8.8E+12	0.003	2.5 2.5
Low dose	SFO	57.7	191.7	553	0 <sup>°°</sup> 3.9 <sup>°°</sup> 9

a visually acceptable fit was obtained by SFO, although the statistical evaluation showed statistical invalid results for to no degradation of the test item under sterile conditions. As the vest item did not begrade significantly, SFO was chosen as kinetic model.

In conclusion, Thiacloprid, regardless of its concentration, degraded slowly in natural surface water systems with a lag phase of approx. 14 days. Thereafter, degradation started and was faster in the low dose than in the high dose test. Since the concentration of Thiaclopprid remained Stable in the sterile systems, its degradation in surface water can be attributed to microbia activity. However, prior to starting biodegradation, a biological matrix bio-film, etc. has to be formed in the tes flasks

### CA 7.2.2.3 Water/sediment study

The behaviour of Thiacloprid and is residues in the water/sequment system was evaluated during the Annex I inclusion (compare EU Monograph, Annex BS) and was accepted by the European Commission (SANCO/4347/2000 - Final: 13 May 2004). The following study by included in the Baseline Dossier was regarded as relevant, the study by <u>**R**</u>. included in the Baseline Dossier was regarded as not relevant during the Annex I inclusion

				\$ \$	
Author(s)	J.		Ž .	<sup>O</sup> Year	<b>Document No.</b>
, K.				× 1997	M-001248-01-1
, R. 🔊	Ĩ,	60 5		× 1998	M-001432-01-1
0,		N Q		,@	

## Summary of study performed by

The negrabolism and degradation of [MC]. This cloped was investigated in two laboratory water/sediment testosystems incubated and a temperature of 20 ± 1 °C in darkness over a maximum No. period of 100 days. s)

The following results and respective conclusions were reported in Appendix II (End Points and Related Information on page 14 of above mentioned SANCO document:

	añ l
DT <sub>50</sub> water:	‰11 days
DT <sub>50</sub> whole system:	<sup>9</sup> 21-35 days (1st order, r <sup>2</sup> =0.98-0.98, n=2)
DT <sub>60</sub> water: $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$ $\sqrt{2}$	11-27 days
D'B <sub>00</sub> whole system:	35-92 days (1st order, r <sup>2</sup> =0.97-0.99, n=2)
Distribution in water / sediment systems	
(active substance):	Maximum of 10-50%AR in sediment after 1-3 days.
Distribution in water / sedonent systems @	Water:
(metabolites):	M02 max of 17-62%AR after 35 days
	M30 represented 5.3-9.5% AR at the end of the study
V & A Y	(100 days) with no evidence that concentrations had
	peaked.
	Sediment:
CY	M02 max of 7-36%AR after 35-62 days.
Accumulation in water and/or sediment:	None



### Summary of study performed by **R.**; 1998

The anaerobic water/sediment study conducted according to EPA guidelines (Pesticide Assessment O Guidelines, Subdivision N, Series 162-3) showed no degradation of Thiacloprid under Strictly anaerobic incubation conditions.

No additional experimental studies are submitted within this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiackoprid renewal of approval. However, a kinetics evaluation of the degradation behaviour of Thacloprid and its major metabolite M02 in the aerobic water/sediment system was performed according to FOCIOS kinetics (2006) to derive kinetic parameters suitable for modelling purpose and environmental fisk assessment. This report is summarized as follows.

Report:	KCA 7.2.2.3 /03; L; 2010 , Q , Y , A , Y
Title:	Kinetic Evaluation of Aerobic Aquatic Metabolism of Thiacloppid and its
	Metabolite in the Water-Sediment System.
Report No:	MEF-10/252
Document No:	M-368441-01-1
Guidelines:	FOCUS (2006): Gundance Document on Estimating Persistence and Degradation
	Kinetics from Environmental Fate Studies on Pesticides in SU Registration.
	Report of the FOCUS Work Group on Degradation Kinetles, EC Document
	Reference Sanco/10058/2005 verston 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
GLP:	No (modelling calculation)

### EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The aquatic degradation and dissipation behaviour of the insectivide Thiaclound (YRC 2894) and its major metabolite in water, YRC 2894-anide (M02) has been investigated in a laboratory aquatic metabolism study in two water sediment systems (**1997**). The data from this study were evaluated here in order to derive values of the kinetic parameters to be used for predictions of environmental concentrations of the substances.

The measured data were taken into account as reported (individual true replicates). All experimental data sets and all single data points were weighted equally (weighting factor 1). The original report does not provide the information of values below the limit of detection/quantification (LOD/LOQ). Pre-processing of the experimental data with respect to LOD and LOQ was, therefore, not carried out. All experimental residue values used for the konetic evaluation are summarised in the Appendix 9.1 of report. Up to 51% of the applied Thiacloprid was found in the sediment over the course of the water-sediment study.

The degradation pathway of Thraclopher in acutatic systems can be represented by the following simple scheme:

 $\swarrow$  The cloper d (P)  $\hookrightarrow$  YRC 2894-amide (M)  $\rightarrow$  CO<sub>2</sub>, NER

In the case of degradation in the total system, the parameters for Thiacloprid and YRC 2894-amide were fitted simultaneously. For water dissipation, separate fits starting at the respective maximum values (decline fits) were used instead. The pathway can be mathematically described as a set of differential equations (depending on the type of the kinetic model used) which have to be numerically solved using an appropriate agorithm.

The results of the evaluation for Thiacloprid and its metabolite YRC 2894-amide (M02) are given in Table 7.2  $\times$  3-1. At the fevel P-I and M-I as defined by FOCUS (2006), total system degradation rates could be derived for both parent substance and metabolite. Dissipation rates in water and sediment phases were obtained only for the parent substance due to the insufficient number of data points available for the evaluation of the metabolite.

Bayer CropScience

## **Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment Thiacloprid**

Analysis of the individual degradation rates in water and sediment according to FOCUS (2006) levels P-II and M-II was attempted. No statistically significant modelling endpoint values could be extracted due to almost absolute correlation of the resulting degradation rates.

## Table 7.2.2.3-1: Summary of DT<sub>50</sub> values obtained for Thiacloprid and CRC 2894-and e (M02)

	· · ·				.1	
			DT	50 [days] 🛛 🕺		
System		Thiacloprid	Ć	YRX	C 2894-amide(N	M02) ~ ~ ~ ~
System	Water	Sediment	Total 💜	Water	Sediment	Total 5
	dissipation	dissipation	system	dissipation	dissipation	5 system
			A	Q, a	° L	
	5.1	16.4	Q20.0	<u>n.d.</u>	Qn.d. O	Q 67.8
	10.8	32.7	12. <b>6</b> )°	_⊅ n.d≯	n.Q	145/2
Geomean	*	* 0	\$5.8			<u>م</u> 9.2 °
		4		, () 🔍	- O'	

In conclusion, for Thiacloprid, the geometric mean total system degradation  $DT_{50}$  of 15.8 days is proposed to be used for both water and sediment phases (see for \* m Table 7.2.2.7 1). At Step 2 level, the degradation in sediment can be described by using the default value of 1000 days. The use of the geometric mean follows the recommendation given in the FOCUS guidance document on degradation kinetics (FOCUS 2006).

In conclusion, for YRC 2894-amide (M02), the geometric mean total system degradation  $DT_{50}$  of 99.2 days is proposed to be used for both water and sediment phases (see for <sup>#</sup> in <u>Table 72.2.3-1</u>). At Step3 level, the degradation in sediment can be described by using the default value of 1000 days. The use of the geometric mean follows the recommendation given in the FOCUS and ance document on degradation kinetics (FOCUS 2006). The maximum amount of 69% of radioactivity found in the total system of **Description** (day 6) is proposed to be used in the calculations at Step1,2 level and for the prediction of aquatic formation of the metabolite at Step5 level.

## CA 7.2.2.4 Irradiated water/sediment study

The behaviour and some prological effects of Thiacloprid and its residues (i.e. of M02) in water/sediment systems kept under outdoor conditions (outdoor microcosms, i.e. including sunlight) were evaluated during the Annex 7 inclusion (compare EU Monograph, Annex B8), and was accepted by the European Complexion (SANCO/4344/2000 – Final, 13 May 2004). The following study by

4		
Authors)	Year	<b>Document No.</b>
, F.	1997	M-001191-01-1

## Summary of study performed by F.; 1997

In 9 outdoor microcosin poinds in Germany (11-26 °C, pH 8-10, silty sand sediment 1.1 % OC), YRC 2894 SC 480 was applied twice at 14 day intervals to the water surface. The analytical data showed that after application 79-95% of the total amount applied was detected in the water, confirming the nominal target concentrations were largely achieved. YRC 2894 dissipated from the water phase with a first order  $DT_{50}$  of approx. 31 days ( $r^2 = 0.82$  to 1.0). YRC 2894 reached its peak concentration in sediment 28 days after a second application at up to 141 % of the nominal initial water concentration (the sum of 2 applications). Concentrations then declined in sediment with a first order  $DT_{50}$  of 62 days ( $r^2 = 0.82$ , only 4 data points available). Concentrations of the metabolite M02 in the sediment were first detected 14 days after the second application, these continued to increase to the end of the



experiment (98 days) where they represented 62-89% of the nominal initial water concentration (the sum of 2 applications, note the molecular weight of M02 is 1.02 times that of YRC 2894). No analysis (in either water or sediment) was carried out for the metabolite M30. No water phase analysis for M02 was carried out.

No new studies are submitted within this Supplemental Dossier for the Thiacloprid approval.

CA 7.2.3 Degradation in the saturated zone Thiadoprid is not expected to reach the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to reach the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to reach the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to reach the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to reach the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to good periority to the saturated zone after its use according to the saturated zone after CA 7.3 Degradation in the saturated zone was not studied since Thisdoprid is not expected to each the saturated zone after its use according to good agricultural practices. No additional studies are submitted within Supplemental Dossier for the Thacloprid recoval of approval. The degradation in the saturated zone was not studied since Thisdoprid is not speed agricultural practices. No addition submitted within Supplemental Dossier for the Thisdoprid renoval of approval. the periodicities and winds



#### CA 7.3 Fate and behaviour in air

Fate and behaviour of Thiacloprid in the air was evaluated during the Annex I inclusion (compare EU Monograph, Annex B8), and was accepted by the European Commission (SANCO/4347/2000) Final; 13 May 2004). The following two studies by , J.; 1996, and K: 1997, included in the Baseline Dossier were regarded as relevant for the evaluation of a potential entry into the air The study by E.; 1995, belongs to next Section CA 7.3.1.

		~	
Author(s)		ر Year	Document So.
, J. *	A	¶ 60°199¢	M 000646-01-1
, K.	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	1297	M-000681-01
*: This information is filed in the phys -chem	section also 0	D D K	

lation is med in

### EU Conclusions of studies by **1996**

Sufficient information has been submitted regarding the fate and behaviour of YRC in air to show that volatilisation is not expected to be significant.

It was concluded that Thiacloprid has a low vapour pressure (extrap dated with 3 x 10<sup>-10</sup> Pa at 20 °C) and a low Henry's Law Constant (calculated with 5 10-9 Pa ne mol at 208), indicating a low volatility of the active substance from aqueous solutions, soil and water

Volatilisation from soil and plant surfaces was studied under field conditions in three independent trials of 24 hour duration after spray application of [nethylene-14C] XRC 2894, formulated as SC 480. The three experiments contrasted in that no loss of radioactivity was noted for the first trial. The average measured loss of radioactivity for the two remaining thats was 26% (average of 15% when considering the three trials). The measured volationsation rate from soil (12% of intercepted radioactivity) was slightly lower than that from plants (15% of intercepted radioactivity). However, it should be note that such values were resulting from indirect measurements of remaining residues, not Ľ from direct measurements of the gaseous phase, 9

A theoretical Atkinson selculation of the potential for ploto-oxidation of YRC 2894 led to a short DT<sub>50</sub> value in the low atmosphere of 1.5 hours. 21

According to before-mentioned results a significant entry of Thiacloprid residues into the air,





Document No

M-006641-04

Year

**Document MCA: Section 7 Fate and behaviour in the environment** Thiacloprid

#### CA 7.3.1 Route and rate of degradation in air

Route and rate of degradation of degradation of Thiacloprid in air was evaluated during the Arnex I inclusion (compare EU Monograph Annex B8), and was accepted by the European Comparission (SANCO/4347/2000 – Final; 13 May 2004). The following study included in the Baseline Doesier regarded as relevant during the Annex I inclusion:

### Summary of study by

Author(s)

A theoretical Atkinson calculation of the potential for photo oxidation of WRC 2894 led to a quite short DT<sub>50</sub> value in the lower atmosphereOof 1, Shours, Therefore, accumptation or long-range transport in the air and subsequent contamination of the environment by or dry Oposition are not to be expected.

No new studies are submitted within supplemental Possier approval.

E.: 1995

Ľ

### CA 7.3.2 Transport via air

1 According to the before mentioned properties long range transport of Thiacloprid roidues in the air and a subsequent contamination by wet or dry deposition are not to be expected.

sier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval. No new studies are submitted within Supplemental Doss

### Local and global effects CA 7.3.3

Local and global effects of Thiscloprid are not to be considered since the half-life of its residues in air

No new studies are submitted within Supplemental Dessier for the Thiacloprid renewal of approval.



### CA 7.4 Definition of the residue

### CA 7.4.1 Definition of the residue for risk assessment

The proposed residue definitions relevant for exposure assessments, which can be used as basis for risk assessments in each compartment, are the following:

		<u> </u>		<u>×</u> Ø
Compartment	Residue Definition	× ×		de la companya de la comp
Soil	Thiacloprid (YRC 2894) YRC 2894-amide, M02 YRC 2894-des-cyano, M29 YRC 2894-sulfonic acid, M30			
Groundwater	Thiacloprid (YRC 2894) YRC 2894-amide, M02 YRC 2894-des-cyano, M29 YRC 2894-sulfonic acid, M30 YRC 2894-sulfonic acid amide, M34 YRC 2894-thiadiazine, M46			
Surface water	Thiacloprid (YRC 2894) YRC 2894-amide, M02 YRC 2894-des-cyano, M29 YRC 2894-sulfonic acto, M300			
Sediment	Thiacloprid (YRC 2894)		$\bigcirc^{\nu}$	
Air	Thiacloppid (YR 2894)		Ŵ	
			,	

## CA 7.4.2 Definition of the residue for monitoring

For the compartments soil, groundwater, surface water, sediment and air the proposed residue definition for monitoring is Thecloprid (YRC 2894).

## CA 7.5 Monitoring data

No montoring data of Phiacloprid (VRC 2894) were evaluated thring the Annex I inclusion (compare EU Monograph Anney B8, and SANCO/4947/2000 – Einal; 12 May 2004).

No respective monitoring date in published literature were to be considered for Thiacloprid in soil, ground/drinking water, sediment and aio and no new studies were performed with respect to monitoring of soil, surface water, ground drinking water, sediment and air.

The following article found in published literature with respect to surface water was regarded relevant for inclusion and evaluation in the Basebre Dossier. It well confirmed the knowledge about fate and behaviour of Thiacloprid of the aquatic environment: If detected at all, the observed concentrations of Thiacloprid in surface water are expected to be very low.

uter are expected



### **Aquatic Compartment:**

Report:	KCA 7.5 /01; , D.; , W.; , J.; 2009
Title:	Pesticide residues in surface water samples collected in area of intensive agricultural practice of the Wielkopolska province (2006-2007).
Source:	Proc. ECOpole, Volume 3, Issue 2, Page 445-449, Publication Year 2009
Document No:	M-460937-01-2
Guidelines:	None & A A A
GLP:	No, published study
Literature review	
classification:	b) supplementary information (EFSA Journal 2011; 9(2):2092)

### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

Samples of surface waters of intensively exported Grable Lands in Wielcopolska province of Poland were collected in 2006 and 2007. Totally, 55 samples (30 and 20 in 2006 and 2007, (esp.) from lakes (15 and 10 in 2006 and 2007, resp.), rivers (9 and 9 in 2006 and 2007, resp.) and ponds (6 and 6 in 2006 and 2007, resp.) were collected? The studies included 42 perbicides (and their metabolites), insecticides and fungicides popularly used in plants protection.

All selected pesticides were extracted from water samples by means of solid phase extraction (SPE, carbon black) followed by reverse phase ultraperformance for and promatography with quadrupole mass detection (RP-UPLC-MS@IS). Of all samples 43 (78.2%) were contampated with residues of plant protection products used in intensive Plant production.

Contamination with atrazine (60,0%), atrazine desethyl (56.4%), carbeine zim (45.4%), simazine (36.4%), atrazine-deisopropyl (34.5%), isopropron (29.1%), and ethofumerate (21.8%) of the samples were mostly detected. Totally, twenty nine of forty two studied pesticides were found however, concentrations of their residues were very low, usually The limit of quantification was between 0.01 to 0.05  $\mu$ g/L.

The highest concentration was quantified for the triazine metabolite atrazine-desethyl (0.55 µg/L, pond, May 2009). All the pond water samples were contaminated by pesticide residues and the highest concentration was found in these samples.

In the river water samples pesticide residues were detected only occasionally and on the very low level (0.01 to \$04 µg/L).

### Findings (of Thiaeboprid)

Thiscloprid was detected in Fond Fater just at the LOD of 0.01  $\mu$ g/L, thus below the limit of quantification. The number of detects was not given in the article.

Conclusion! If detected at all, the observed concentrations of Phiacloprid in surface water (pond and river water) of a pesticide use area of Poland were very low.